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January 31, 2008

The Legislature

State of Hawaii

Senate Commitiee on Ways and Means
State Capitol, Room 210

Honolulu, Hi 26813

Attn: Aaron Nyuha

Child and Family Service is pleased to submit to the Legislature, State of Hawati, our
proposal for: Grant-in-Aid (Emergency Shelter and Transitional Housing Complex
for Abused Families — Leeward Oahu)

Child and Family Service continues to build positive working relaticnships with our
funders and the various organizations in the community. We remain very committed
to partnerships with each of our funders to deliver services of the highest quality that
meet the needs of the people of Hawaii. If you ever have any concerns about our
working relationship or services, do not hesitate to contact me at 681-1418.

We give careful consideration to all proposals we are submitting for funding in order
to deliver services that support our mission of “strengthening families and fostering
the healthy development of children.” The attached proposal is consistent with a
thorough review that we conducted to determine which requests for proposals we
would pursue. In addition to the importance of a fit with our mission, we also make
decisions to pursue funding for programs and services that we believe we can provide
in a high quality manner consistent with the RFP requirements.

We have enclosed one original and one copy for your review ang consideration,

On behailf of our Board of Directors and all of the staff at Child and Family Service we
look forward to working with you to provide services that will meet the needs of our

community.

With Warm Aloha,

Howard Garval
President and CEQ

Our Mission: Strengthening Families and Fostering the Healthy Development of Children



House District THE TWENTY- FOURTH LEGISLATURE
HAwAI't STATE LEGISLATURE

— - APPLICATION FOR GRANTS & SUBSIDIES For Leniaiature's Use Only
CHAPTER 42F, HAWAI'l REVISED STATUTES

LogNo: 31-0

Senate District

Type of Grant or Subsidy Request:
B GRANT REQUEST — OPERATING [J GRANT REQUEST — CAPITAL (] SussiDY REQUEST

"Grant" means an award of state funds by the legislature, by an appropriation to a specified recipient, to suppott the

activities of the recipient and permit the community to benefit from those activities.

"Subsidy" means an award of state funds by the legislature, by an appropriation to a recipient specified in the
appropriation, to reduce the costs incurred by the organization or individual in providing a service available to some or all
members of the public.

"Recipient” means any organization or person receiving a grant or subsidy.

STATE DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY RELATED TO THIS REQUEST (LEAVE BLANK IF UNKNOWN):

STATE PROGRAM LD, NO. (LEAVE BLANK YF UNKNOWN):

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION: 2, CONTACT PERSON FOR MATTERS INVOLVING
APPLICATION: :

Legal Name of Requesting Crganization or Individual:

Child and Family Service Name CAROL HOUGH

Dba: Title Director of Program Services

Street Address: Phone # 808-681-1494

2970 Kele Street, Suite 203
Lihue, Hawaii 96766 Fax # B08-681-5280

Mailing Address: -mail choudh @ cfs-hawaii
91-1841 Fort Weaver Road e-mail chough@cfs-hawaii.org

Ewa Beach, Hawaii 96706

3. TYPE OF BUSINESS ENTITY: 7. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT’S REQUEST:
NON PROFIT CORPORATION EXPANSION O F HEAD START SERVICES TO SERVE ADDITIONAL
D FOR PROFIT CORPORATION . ELIGIBLE CHILDREN AND EXTEND PROGRAM HOURS.
D LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY (Maximum 300 Characters)

] SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP/INDIVIDUAL

4. FEDE TAX ID # 8. FISCAL YEARS AND AMOUNT OF STATE FUNDS REQUESTED:

5. STATETAXID #
6. SSN (IF AN INDIVIDUAL):

FY 2008-2009 $ 71,428.00

9, STATUS OF SERVICE DESCRIBED IN THIS REQUEST:

[ New SERVICE (PRESENTLY DOES NOT EXIST) SPECIFY THE AMOUNT BY SOURCES OF FUNDS AVAILABLE
EXISTING SERVICGE (PRESENTLY IN OPERATION) AT THE TIME OF THIS REQUEST:

STATE $

FEDERAL $

COUNTY §

PRIVATE/OTHER $

TYPE NAME & TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

VY

DATE SIGNED

PATTI BATES, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
I LE

IZED Sl UR NAVE &




BUDGET

{Period: July 01, 2008 to June 30, 2009)

3 spplicant/Provider:  Child and Family Service

Contract No.:

Contract Name:

Early Head Start and Head Start Programs

BUDGET
CATEGORIES

Budget Request|
(@)

(b)

{c)

(d)

A. PERSONNEL COST
1. Salaries

38,708

2. Payroll Taxes & Assessments

4,161

3. Fringe Benefits

4,471

TOTAL PERSONNEL COST

47,340

B. OTHER CURRENT EXPENSES
Airfare, Inter-{sland

Airfare, Out-of-State

Audit Services

143

Contractual Services - Administrative

9,500

Insurance

571

Lease/Rental of Equipment

Lease/Rental of Motor Vehicle

1
2
3
4,
5. Contractual Services - Subcontractors
6
7
8
9

Lease/Rental of Space

10. Mileage

600
N

11. Postage Freight & Delivery

12. Pubilication and Printing

( 13. Repair & Mainfenance
14. Staff Training

15. Subsistence/Per Diem

16. Supplies

1,087

17. Telecommunication

18. Transportation

19. Utilities

20. Other: Administrative Support

12,062

21. Other: Auto Expenses

22. Other: Auto Insurance

23. Other: Auto Registration

24 QOther: Client Assistance

125

25. Other: Provisions

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT EXPENSES

24,088

C. EQUIPMENT PURCHASES

D. MOTOR VEHICLE PURCHASES

TOTAL (A+B+C+D)

71,428

SOURCES OF FUNDING
(@) Early Head Start - OCS FY09

71,428

Budget Prepared By:
Marie Herbert

440-8344

{b)

Name (Please type or print)

Phone
1218107

{c)

(d)

Vi

Sim!tuofﬁ\ul ized Official
ivi

asunadd, Director of Finance

Date

Name and Title (Please type or prini)

( TOTAL REVENUE
-

71,428

For Stata Agency Use Only

ISignab.rre of Reviewer

Form SPO-H-205 (Effective 10/01/98)
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DECLARATION STATEMENT
APPLICANTS FOR GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES
CHAPTER 42F, HAWAI'l REVISED STATUTES

The undersigned authorized representative of the applicant acknowledges that said applicant meets and
will comply with all of the following standards for the award of grants and subsidies pursuant to section
42F-103, Hawai'i Revised Statutes:

(1) Is licensed or accredited, in accordance with federal, state, or county statutes, rules, or ordinances,
to conduct the activities or provide the services for which a grant or subsidy is awarded;

2) Comply with all applicable federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination against any person
on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, creed, sex, age, sexual orientation, or
disability;

3) Agree not to use state funds for entertainment or lobbying activities; and

4) Allow the state agency to which funds for the grant or subsidy were appropriated for expenditure,
legisiative committees and their staff, and the auditor full access to their records, reports, files,
and other related documents and information for purposes of monitoring, measuring the
effectiveness, and assuring the proper expenditure of the grant or subsidy.

In addition, a grant or subsidy may be made to an organization only if the organization:

n Js incorporated under the laws of the State; and

(2) Has bylaws or policies that describe the manner in which the activities or services for which a
grant or subsidy is awarded shall be conducted or provided.

Further, a grant or subsidy may be awarded to a non-profit organization only if the organization:

(1) Has been determined and designated to be a non-profit organization by the Internal Revenue
Service; and

2) Has a governing board whose members have no material conflict of interest and serve without
compensation.

Further, the undersigned authorized representative certifies that this statement is true and correct to the
best of the applicant's knowledge.

Child and Family Service
( d Name of Individual or Organization)

V%) 04
(Signature) : (Date)
Patti Bates Chief Operating Officer
(Typed Name) (Title)

Page 8
Application for Grants and Subsidies



Applicant: Child and Family Service

EXPANSION OF HEAD START SERVICES

PROPOSAL
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Applicant: Child and Family Service

Section I :
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY

Child and Family Service has more than 100 years of experience providing quality support
services to the families of Hawaii. The organization has been providing services on Kauai since
1982 and was awarded the federal contract to provide Head Start services on Kauai in July of
2000. Kauai Head Start program currently provides services to 147 low income families in 9
centers located across the island from Kekaha to Kilauea.

Child and Family Service proposes the following 1) to provide comprehensive Head Start
services to an additional 7 income eligible children that are currently unserved; 2) to expand one
center to a full day program for 20 Head Start students and, 3) to expand one of the Lihue Head
Start centers through June to meet the needs of Head Start parents who work full year. All of the
proposed expansions can be accomplished within our current Head Start facilities without any
increase in occupancy costs. The Kauai Head Start proposed program expansion will not only
provide an opportunity for unserved children to receive Head Start services but will also expand
the Kauai Head Start program hours for another full day program which would also provide
services through the month of June for families who are employed or in training programs year
round. Most of the Head Start centers operating on Kauai have traditionally provided only five
hours a day of classroom time for children 10 months a year. A combination of State (Office of
Comrmunity Services, foundation grants, etc.) provide additional funding to support several full
day program options, the proposed program expansion will increase the number children in the
- Kauai Head Start program and families will benefit from full day programs that provide low-
income parents with quality child care during working hours. The full-day centers support the
increasing number of Head Start eligible parents who are working, in training programs,
attending school or trying to enter the work force.

The Kauvai Head Start centers will provide comprehensive services to eligible families. In
addition to the daily early childhood education, health, safety and nutrition services provided to
the children, parents learn how to support the medical, educational and social development of
their young children. All CFS Head Start staff and program services meet Hawaii State
Licensing Requirements as well as all Federal Head Start performance standards. Many of the
centers are located on elementary public school grounds and work closely with the elementary
school staff to see that the children smoothly transition into kindergarten ready to learn and take
full advantage of their primary school years.

Head Start family members play a vital role in the planning, implementation and evaluation of
the Head Start program. Parents are active volunteers in the classroom or participate in Head
Start work days. Many parents become members of their center’s parent committee and the Head
Start Policy Council. The Head Start Policy Council has a representative on the Child and
Family Service Board of Directors. This representative provides regular program updates to the
Board on Head Start issues and accomplishments. Through the Head Start program parents learn
the benefit of being active participant in their child’s educational experiences.



Applicant: Chitd and Family Service

. The proposed expansion will allow us to increase our funded capacity and place an additional 7
income eligible children. This proposal directly increases the number of Head Start slots
available on Kauai. It will also allow us to provide expanded full day services to 20 families. By
providing quality, Head Start services to meet the varied needs of eligible families on Kauai,
Child and Family Service continues to support low income parents in their achievement of self-
sufficiency and economic stability. Parents will also improve their parenting skills and learn to
promote safety, education, health and social competency for their children. :

Head Start services are offered to low income families with children 3-5 years old who are in
need of pre-school services. The families may be seeking employment, employed or involved in
training or education programs. Children with special needs are welcomed at all centers and
program options. At least 10% of the children in Head Start services are children with special
needs.

The proposed services include providing 1} Head Start services on Kauai to an additional 7
income eligible children and families; 2) extending one Head Start to a full day center for 20
children and families who need full day care due to work, training or educational commitments
and, 3) providing an expanded June program. The additional children will be placed in centers
around the island that are convenient to the families’ home or work situation. The proposed
extended-day, center-based service will be provided at the Lihue Hale Malie Head Start center.
Lihue is centrally located between Puhi and Hanamaulu towns, which have low income housing
units and large populations of immigrants and laborers. Kauai Head Start provides a unique
opportunity to help families improve literacy skills, find employment/education programs and
adjust to the economic demands specific to the island.

Statewide indicators and the Kauai Community Assessment show a continued need for Head
Start on Kauai. Creating a full day and a June program in Lihue helps Head Start provide
programs hours that meet the varied needs of our low income families. In the past we have had a
waitlist for full day services in Lihue and there were many documented instances of losing
enrollment due to this lack in service.

The proposed service expansions are designed to provide continuous, high quality early

“childhood development, health and education services throughout the day. The Extended-day
program at the Lihue Hale Malie Center is scheduled to be open Monday through Friday from
August through May. A Tune “summer” program will also be offered in Lihue. The month of
July is designated for pre-service training, classroom repair and maintenance and set-up for
classroom staff. Recruitment activities for the Head Start program are conducted throughout the
year. Family Advocates enroll families and make home visits during the summer so that children
are ready to begin the first day of school. The proposed seven additional Head Start slots will
offer half or full day Head Start services depending on the needs of the children and farnilies and
provide Head Start services to eligible children and families who would otherwise be denied
access to Iead Start services. Parents and children will actively participate in all Head Start
services. Child Care Homes which meet Head Start and DHS licensing requirements will be
contracted in the areas on Kanai that do not have Head Start services available. Families will
meet all Head Start eligibility requirements. '
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Section II
SERVICE SUMMARY AND QOUTCOMES

A. PROPOSED APPROACH TO PROGRAM SERVICES/SCOPE OF WORK

The Expanded Head Start program option complies with Federal requirements for
administration of a Head Start Program. Each component of the program has a service area
plan which lists the essential functions, person responsible, goals and review criteria. The
service areas are highlighted below.

The following services are provided to Head Start children and families within the
component of Early Childhood Development and Health: Child Health and Development
Services, Education and Early Childhood Development, Child Health and Safety, Child
Nutrition, and Child Mental Health.

1. Child Health and Development Services: Kauai Head Start is committed to providing a
comprehensive health program that involves chiidren, families and staff. Kauai Head
Start makes an initial determination of each child's health status, including medical and
dental histories, identification of medical home, mental health status, developmental
history, and immunization history. Working collaboratively with parents, the Kauai Head
Start staff collect information in a systematic method so that children entering Head Start
have adeguate protection from discase, adequate dental care, services for developmental
disabilities as indicated, mental health services if needed and the establishment of a
medical home.

Kauai Head Start conducts a Health Services Advisory Committee. Membership consists
of representatives from the Department of Health Public Health Nursing, Kauai Medical
Clinic, Nursing Department at Kauai Community College (KCC), Ho’ola Lahui, a
nutritionist and elected parents from each center. This Committee focuses on health
issues and goals based upon prevalent community health problems. On Kauai, these
issues include: access to; childhood asthma; children’s nutrition; and dental health
prevention and treatment. Kauai has a very high incidence of baby bottle tooth decay in
children 0-3 leading to a high percentage of preschool children needing extensive dental
treatment.

Kauai staff and parents are actively participating in the State Oral Health Initiative to
interface with the professional community, state and local agencies for the development
of a State Head Start Oral Health Strategic Plan. The most pressing concern is lack of
dentists throughout the islands and specifically those who will treat children and low-
income families. Kauai Head Start staff also arrange for and partner with parents to
secure further diagnostic testing, examination and treatment by a professional provider for
each child with an observable, known, or suspected health or developmental problem and
implement a follow-up plan for any identified health concern. Children who are up-to-
date with well-child care appointments, immunizations and who have an established
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medical home will be followed by the Service Area Specialist in Health throughout the
service year to be sure health services continue and are documented in the child/family

file.

Developmental, Sensory, and Behavioral Screening: Within 45 days of a child’s entry
into the program, Kauai Head Start staff provide developmental screenings in order to
identify children who need to be referred for more formal evaluation. Screening includes
auditory, visual, gross motor, fine motor, language, perceptual and emotional domains.
Kauai Head Start staff collect multiple sources of information in a profile of each child’s
functional skills, by using a variety of screening tools, teacher’s systematic observation,
assessment and screening schedules, and parent anecdotes. Early screening allows the
staff time to develop partnerships with the parents and child and to establish referrals for
services as needed to assist the child duzing the preschool years. Tools are sensitive to
the children’s cultural diversity and backgrounds. Teachers or assistants who speak the
child’s language spoken at home are available to perform the screening. Parent
observations are also systematically collected in the screening interviews.

Findings are reviewed by the staff along with Service Area Specialist and parents to
determine whether the results corroborate experiences and impressions of the child at
home and in the program. Consultants are available as needed in areas of mental health
and child development and provide observations, annual and on-site training and staff and
family consultations as needed.

Follow-up: Kauai Head Start initiates an Individualized Action Plan (IAP) for
preschoolers who display a health or developmental need. These plans are developed
collaboratively with center staff, Service Area Specialists and parents to set a course of
action to address the child’s needs. Referrals, follow-up dates, who is responsible and
outcomes are noted on the plan. Staff provide parents with support in accessing a service
for their child outside of the Head Start program. Advocates can provide needed
transportation and linkage to community resources and assist the parent in any follow-up
requested by the service provider. When possible, families are assisted and referred to
providers such as WIC, Department of Education, ParentLine, Ho’ola Labui,
HomeReach, MedQuest, and Public Health Nursing. If a service is indicated by the
screening and is unavailable to the family through community providers, Kauai Head
Start staff locate resources so that the service need can be met using Head Start funds.

In addition to the JIAP and follow-up up assistance to families, Kauai Head Start staff
provide ongoing care and evaluation of the child’s developmental and health needs and
routinely gather and record observations by teachers and parents. Staff make regular
contact with community service providers regarding the status of the child in well-baby
care check-ups, annual physical exams, dental check-ups, and other services. New or
recurring concerns are identified early and additional referrals made.

Involving Parents: Parents are immediately consulted when a health or developmental
concern arises, whether during a screening or program observation. Kauai Head Start
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staff work with parents as partners in promoting the child’s health and parents are viewed
as the expert in their child’s growth and development. Parents are provided materials and
information regarding screening procedures and rationale. They are included as partners
in the Individual Action Plans developed to address specific concerns as they arise.
Parents are provided training and support by staff in how to ask questions, community
health standards, immunizations, fluoride, dental hygiene, and other health areas. Staff
provide support and encouragement for parents to assist their child in understanding
health procedures (a visit to the dentist for example) and preparing them for what to
expect.

Staff promote health care standards for the entire family. Parents are encouraged to
accompany children to health appointments and staff assist parents in meeting this goal
by helping set up appointments and providing transportation if needed. Child and Family
Service on Kauai has Iong-standing collaborative relationships with area health and
developmental service providers and can assist parents in accessing these resources as
needed.

Because parent involvement is required for all parents; special consideration is given to
working parents whose center is funded under this proposal. Parent meetings are
scheduled based on availability so as to accommodate the most parents possible. The
same is true for the Family Advocates when arranging the home visits. As for classroom
volunteering, parents are encouraged to help with materials in the evenings and/or on
weekends in order to maintain their commitment and contribution to the program. For
the most part parents are grateful for the flexibility and individual consideration in
allowing for the precious opportunity to be involved in their child's growth and education.

. Education and Early Childhood Development Approach; Including Children with
Special Needs: Child and Family Service on Kauai presents children with an exciting
education curriculum in a safe and nurturing environment which enhances social skills
and preschool educational competencies. A Head Teacher, a Classroom Aide and at least
one volunteer staff each class. The education activities are led by the Head Teacher and
based on sound child development principles, supported by stimulating, challenging and
age-appropriate activities. Parents and family members are encouraged to volunteer in
the classroom and receive fraining and support to work comfortably and successfully with
the children.

The objective of the educational program is to provide children with a safe, nurturing,
engaging, enjoyable and secure learning environment in order to help them gain the
awareness, skills, and confidence necessary to succeed in their present environment, and
to deal with later responsibilities in school and in life.

Each child is treated as an individual in an inclusive community that values, respects, and
responds to diversity. The varied experiences provided by the program support children’s
growth and development in the following domains;

e Physical
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¢ Social/femotional

e Fine and gross motor
o Cognitive

¢ Language

Children who receive a referral for more extensive evaluations, which lead to a
documented developmental or health related disability, are referred to the Department of
Education for special education services as indicated. It is anticipated that children
referred to DOE services will continue to participate in the Kauai Head Start program
with ancillary services. Development and implementation of the Individual Education
Plan is coordinated between Kauai Head Start, the local DOE preschool staff, and the
parents to support the child’s special needs in the program.

Children with special needs are included in Head Start activities in accordance with their
Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Documents include a statement of the child’s levels
of development, and have a plan for expected outcomes. Teaching staff provide learning
environments that are varied and interesting, use routines, activities and experiences that
achieve the goals of the JEP and participate in meetings with professionals in disabilities
and health, along with parents, to plan and implement the IEP. Teaching staff are
provided support through consultants with expertise working with children with special
needs and Child and Family Service Kauai staff.

In addition to the Education Manager, Child and Family Service Kauai Head Start
currently contracts with specialists to provide in-house speech services, occupational
therapy and mental health consultation. The Mental Health Consultant visits each of the
classrooms at the beginning of the program year and observes the interactions of the
children. The consultant helps the teacher develop individualized plans for helping
children accommodate to their new environment. If the teacher still has concerns, the
parents are involved and a more thorough assessment is provided. The Mental Health
Consultant may develop a behavior plan with the teacher and parents for both the
classroom and home, if indicated.

Children, whether diagnosed with special needs or are typically developing, receive
individualized attention in each domain of development. Thus, each child's individual
age, stage and pace are taken into consideration in the Lesson Plans and there is
documentation that each child was attended to in a particular lesson.

Staff value and understand the importance of diversity and incorporate the values and
traditions of the cultnres of Kauai into their curriculum. This is enhanced as parents
collaborate with staff in developing and implementing the curriculum.

Head Start teachers develop lesson plans that provide a balance of child-initiated and
adult-directed activities in individual activities and group activities. The program format
emphasizes an integration of each child’s individual growth and talents with the whole
group learning. With this balance of individual and group learning, children develop
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personal self-esteem and a concept of self as an individual and as a group member and
partner with peers. Individual and group learning help the children develop social
competence skills. :

. Child Health and Safety; Child Nutrition Procedures: Emergency procedures address
the quick response of teachers and other staff to safeguard the health and well being of
each child. Staff are trained in these procedures annually. Head Teachers and Classroom
Aides are trained in first aid and CPR. The Health Specialist also assists the Child and
Family Service Safety Coordinator, and attends organization-wide training on Health and
Safety Standards, conducts regular safety checks on the classrooms and monitors
children's special health needs, treatment plans, and physician recommendations as
needed. The Nutritionist reviews menus for all of the meals served at the Head Start
program and works with the teachers and parents of children who have food allergies or
individualized food requirements to accommodate their needs in the classroom. Staff
also conduct parent training in emergency procedures and make recommendations for
home safety. Children are provided activities addressing fire safety, use of 911 system,
and preventive safety information. Each classroom is equipped with a fire evacuation
plan, a hurricane plan, and drills are conducted on site. Child and Family Service uses
Incident Report Forms to note and monitor safety issues in the centers and to identify
appropriate changes to environment as indicated. Staff are also trained in child abuse and

neglect signs, symptoms, and reporting procedures.

Conditions of Short-Term Exclusion and Admittance: Children who have a short-term
injury or contagious illness may be temporarily excluded from classroom participation
until contagion has passed, or accommodations are made for classroom participation.

The Health Specialist is responsible for addressing contagion concerns and working with
parents, teacher, and physician to establish the limits of the short-term exclusion,

Medication Administration: Medication Administration Procedures clearly identify the
process for addressing individual children's needs and person responsible for monitoring,
administration of medication, and any follow-up up as needed. The Health Specialist and
Registered Nurse on contract are responsible for communication with parents, physicians
and child in establishing the individual special health plan and for any training to teaching
staff on sign of problems, monitoring, and ongoing follow-up. The Health and Safety
Specialist is responsible for overall supervision of these procedures regarding storage,
handling, and administration and recording of any medication. The Head Start program
has a qualified Registered Nurse on contract who provides specific oversight of
medication administration when it is indicated.

First Aid: First Aid Kits at each center are stocked and checked monthly as part of Child
and Family Service's ongoing safety checks. The Health Coordinator is responsible for

- monitoring these kits, and training in use of materials for staff. Teaching staff are
provided with first aid certification training by a certified trainer.
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Child Nutrition: Child and Family Service Kauai Head Start program provides nuirition
services to assist families in meeting each child's nutritional needs, training on
establishing good eating habits and nurturing healthy development. Each child's
individual nutritional needs are assessed within the first 45 days of the program. The
Head Start program consults with a Nutritionist to design and implement nutritional
services for each child who has a food allergy or other nutrition concern and works with
family members as well on home health needs. The nutritionist also reviews meal plans

" and makes nutrition recommendations. Head Start provides daily breakfast, lunch and
afternoon snacks for the extended-day center free of charge. Meals are contracted
through a private provider following USDA guidelines.

. Family and Community Partnerships

Family Partnerships: Both families and community partnerships are integral to the
success of Head Start. Families of children participating in the Head Start program will
have an in-home assessment of their strengths, needs, and educational and cultural values.
The Family Advocates then works with the family on developing a Family Partnership
Agreement (FPA). This FPA allows families to articulate their needs and goals for the
upcoming year. These FPAs are a valuable means of addressing parents’ concerns and
helping structure the formation of individual and family goals with timelines and reviews
of actions and outcomes.

Family Advocates provide routine in-home follow-up to review the family’s progress on
their goals and support parents in connecting with the specific services to promote self-
sufficiency. Home visits also support family involvement in Head Start activities and
their child’s education. Special efforts will be made to accommodate non-English
speaking children and families by providing interpreters whenever possible to support
families in completing applications and making community linkages.

Parents are encouraged and requested to become an integral part of the Head Start
experience by contributing to curriculum development, volunteering as storytellers, arts
and crafts teachers, and attending meal times. Parent involvement with the children
promotes optimal development of a positive parent-child interaction. Parents have
~ information about their child’s development that can be expressed to staff when they are
working together in the classroom. This involvement helps staff better understand the
needs, expectations, and background experiences of the children. Parents can learn to
become excellent observers of their children when they work with staff in the program.
These observation skills will help parents later advocate for their child’s needs outside of
the Head Start program. Parent-staff conferences in and outside of the home help parents
learn about their child’s growth and development, allowing them to use this information
in their home environment to help the child meet developmental goals.

When parents attend the classroom, children see their parents as part of their preschool
community. Staff model praise and reinforcement skills for the parents. Parents are able
to learn what their children learn in the classroom about group dynamics and social
competency. Parent-to-parent networks become established when several parents become
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involved in the classrcom. This parent support network is invaluable for families who
can share resources together and create opportunities for expansion of classroom
activities into their homes and communities.

Community Partnerships: Child and Family Service Kauai has developed formal and
informal networks of contacts and agreements with a wide range of community partners
including the Department of Education, WIC, Kanai Rural Health Association, Ho’ola
Lahui, HUD housing, Easter Seals Zero-to-Three Program, Queen Lilivokalani Children’s
Center, Alu Like’s Native Hawaiian Family Based Education Services, Hawaiian
Housing Authority, Public Health Nursing, and the Department of Human Services. Child
and Family Service staff strive to develop a continnum of services for families in our
community to foster self-sufficiency and high quality of life for our program participants.
Child and Family Service is actively engaged with community professionals individually
and in advisory committees in developing a seamless transition from one service area to
another for the children, and in supporting the role of parents as advocates for their
children to procure the services needed for success.

Kauai Head Start is pleased (o have Foster Grandparents in nearly every classroom and to
involve them annually in a joint orientation with teaching staff. Their presence in the
classroom enhances the family atmosphere appropriate in preschool and offers the valued
kupuna a safe and fun environment to express their time and love.

B. QUALITY ASSURANCE AND EVALUATION

Child and Family Service — Commitment to a Responsive and Comprehensive
Approach to Performance and Quality Improvement

Child and Family Service is dedicated to providing quality services to the individuals and
families served, and to be accountable to those who fund the services. CFS has well
established Performance and Quality Improvement (PQI) mechanisms. PQI is an ongoing
process that occurs daily as staff members strive to improve the service they provide

. internally and externally. On a quarterly basis, the organization-wide committees meet to
review aggregate data, and program and support staff review their outcome data, identify
their strengths, discuss compliance issues and troubleshoot areas of concermn.

The PQI structure is overseen by the Quality Assurance and Training Department and PQI
Committee. The committee receives and evaluates reports from the PQI Subcommittees,
which includes departments and programs, for significant trends, and determines whether
services meet pre-determined expectations of quality and outcomes. The PQI Subcommittees
include Safety and Risk Management, Qutcomes, Internal and External Reports, Case Record
Review, Clinical Risk Management, Training, and Fiscal Impact. Systematic evaluation of
effectiveness and efficiency of services includes review of incident reports, client complaints
and grievances, internal and external monitoring reports, client satisfaction surveys,
outcomes, case record/utilization reviews, quarterly performance indicators and program
accreditation support reports. Once a quarter the PQI Committee reports to management on
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the quality assurance activities, summarizing the important improvement areas identified in
their data analysis, and identifying specific training areas needing emphasis. Quarterly the
Director of Quality Assurance and Training reports to the Board of Directors a summary of
the organization’s strengths and areas for improvement.

Recent improvements in the PQI process include:

¢ Development of a Cultural Diversity Task Force to strengthen cultural competency and
develop awareness and an appreciation of cultural diversity. The task force is responsible
for: ensuring compliance with the national standards on Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Services in Health Care (CLAS), providing recommendations on cultural
trainings and facilitating cultural events for the organization.

¢ Clinical Coordinators provide support and guidance to program management to ensure
accreditation readiness, contract compliance, and use of best practices. The Clinical
Coordinators conduct a review of client records, fiscal audits, clinical supervision notes,
and program policies and procedures. The Clinical Coordinators conduct statewide
meetings with programs to ensure continuity of services CFS provides. The Clinical
Coordinators have developed a comprehensive chart compliance checklist to evaluate the
program, identify areas of strengths and opportunities for improvement. To ensure
accreditation readiness, the Clinical Coordinators maintain a program specific COA work
plans which identify all program related standards and evidence to meet the requirements.

¢ Development of a Clinical Risk Management (CRM) committee to evaluate and monitor
organizational practices that involve client risk or limit freedom of choice, issues related
to medications, manual restraints, and research involving clients. The CRM committee
reviews incident reports on a quarterly basis to identify clients with three or more level
one incidents (liability or life threatening incidents) and provides feedback to the
program. The CRM committee reviewed two cwiriculums Crisis Prevention Institute
(CPI) and Professional Assault Crisis Training (Pro-Act) and identified specific programs
that require this type of training based on best practice.

¢ Development of the Internal/External Committee to monitor programs’ compliance with
federal, state, county, contract and accreditation standards. As needed, the committee
meets to review external or internal monitoring, discuss findings, and implement a plan of
action.

» Development of the Clinical Training Task Force to identify training needs for clinical
staff. The task force has surveyed staff and has identified specific training needs. Future
trainings to meet staff needs are being planned.

» The Quality Assurance and Training Department is conducting quarterly trainings in the

organization-wide COA required trainings. These trainings are geared for direct service
staff and supervisors. The trainings cover documentation, client advocacy, therapeutic

10



Applicant: Child and Family Service

rapport, special needs, child abuse and neglect, needs of individuals and families in crisis,
communication barriers and public assistance.

Details of the Performance and Quality Improvement Policy including a flow chart of the PQI
committee structure is attached to this proposal.

As part of the PQI process, programs are asked to identify how they monitor, measure and
collect data on outputs and outcomes. Each program completes the Quarterly Manager’s
Report (QMR) that identifies quality indicators which include:

Client outcomes

Case record reviews

Utilization review

Client satisfaction

Referral source satisfaction
Client grievance

Supervision

Training

Accomplishments and strengths
* Progress on any Action plans

The data gathered for this report is reviewed by the supervisor during regular staff meetings.
The trends identified are discussed and an action plan is developed. This process allows all
staff to participate in the PQI process and provides accountability that the expected outcome
15 achieved. (The Quarterly Manager’s Report form for programs is attached to this proposal)

The QMR allows programs to identify and resolve problems, make improvements to the
program, and identify staff roles and responsibilities.

The Head Start Program

'The Head Start program employs a series of measurement surveys throughout the school year
to assess the student’s educational, health and physical development. Within the first forty-
five days of the program, base line data on the child is obtained in each of these areas. Mid
and end of year screenings are also conducted to measure the child’s progress. Screening
reports on both aggregate classroom and individual data is reviewed with the teachers and
classroom plans are adjusted to reflect areas that need to be strengthened.

Parents are also visited at the beginning of the program and develop an individualized family
plan with the Head Start staff. These plans often include educational, economic, housing or
parenting goals. The family’s progress on these goals is reviewed at regular intervals
throughout the school year. Data gathered from these measurements is used to determine our
progress in meeting DHHS and OCS contract goals.

11
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If the individual screenings or reviews indicate that the child needs additional help to meet
age appropriate developmental milestones, a more in depth assessment is provided and if
appropriate an individual educational plan is written together with the parents, teacher and
involved specialists. These individual plans are reviewed and revised as necessary at regular
intervals during the year.

Other formal mechanisms used include Stakeholder Satisfaction Surveys, Client Satisfaction
Surveys, Annual Program Self Assessment and Community Assessment surveys. These
focus on program quality, service needs and service coordination.

¢ Satisfaction Surveys are sent to collateral provider agencies and community resources
such as the Department of Education, Healthy Start, Easter Seals, Good Beginnings,
Public Health Nursing and WIC.

s Client Satisfaction surveys are sent out to all parents in January and again at the end of
the school year. '

» Annual Self-Assessment is conducted by staff with support of the Policy Council to
determine program strengths and areas for growth with completion date and progress
notes.

¢ Apnnual Community Assessment is conducted by staff, members of the Policy Council

.and representatives of community organizations. This assessment addresses community
resources and needs.

The staff and the Head Start Policy Council members are apprised of program concerns and
achievements found in these assessments. This facilitates immediate buy-in, feedback and
decision-making regarding service delivery. The finished assessments and their resulting
improvements plans or new program goals are shared with staff, Policy Council and the CFS
Board of Directors.

The Head Start program regularly collects data on all Head Start family and child health,
social and child development requirements. The data is continuously updated in the Child
Plus system and monthly reports are shared with staff so they can follow-up with families and
children where indicated. The program participates in the pre and post assessment of the 4
year old students through the Head Start National Reporting System. Overall statistics on the
compliance of the program with Head Start requirements is reported through the annual
Program Information Report (PIR}.

The proposed Head Start expansion will follow Head Start program standards, licensing
requirements and general CFS quality assurance policies and procedures.

QA Monitoring of Service Delivery
Child and Family Service has implemented several quality assurance and evaluation

processes in order to monitor the quality of our service delivery on a regular and
comprehensive basis.

12
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A program specific chart compliance checklist that incorporates contract, COA. standards,
and CFS requirements has been developed and is used by the Clinical Coordinator to review
the program for quality of service delivery and compliance to standards. In order to complete
the checklist, the Clinical Coordinator reviews the program procedures, client charts, other
documentation as needed, and interviews program staff. Once the chart compliance
checklist is completed, the Clinical Coordinator uses the information to write a narrative of
findings, which includes strengths, areas in need of improvement, recommendations, and
timelines. A corrective action plan is generated which details deficient areas, tasks to be
completed, and timelines. The completed checklist, narrative of findings and a corrective
action plan is sent to the Head Start Director, the Kauai Neighbor Island Administrator and
the CFS management for review. The Clinical Coordinator provides follow up on the
program’s corrective action plan to monitor the task completion by the designated timeline.
The Clinical Coordinator completes a program review no more than quarterly and no less
than every six months.

CFS management also conducts program specific meetings to problem solve contract and/or
COA concerns. The purpose of these procedures is to maintain the program’s quality of
service delivery by disseminating consistent information; timely follow up on projects
assigned; on-going review of compliance to contract and COA requirements; monitoring
implementation of revised CFS Administrative Policies and Procedures; and identifying
service gaps. These meetings are held according to the needs and compliance status of each
program, which can range from once a month, quarterly to every six months.

When necessary , the CES Clinical Coordinator will participate with staff in the development,
implementation and monitoring of a program’s Quality Improvement Plan (QIP). This plan
identifies areas of improvement utilizing the following information:

Case record findings from peer review
Chart review findings

Productivity reports

External monitoring review reports
Internal monitoring review reports
Client satisfaction surveys

= Staff feedback

~'The Kauai Neighbor Island Administrator and Head Start Director review the QIP monthly
with their staff. The Clinical Coordinator provides technical assistance to the program to
monitor completion of any items on the QIP. See attached Program Specific Chart
Compliance Checklist.

. PROGRAM DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

The Program Design and Management component includes Program Governance,
Management Systems and Procedures, Human Resources Management, and Facilities,

13
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Materials, and Equipment, These components are described within the Head Start Program
Policies and Procedures or within the larger CFS Policies and Procedures.

Program Governance: Child and Family Service Kanai Head Start has an established Policy
Council comprised of parents from each center, all program options and community
representatives. A formal structure of shared governance allows parents direct contact with
information necessary to maintain effective program standards and address areas of concerns.
The Child and Family Service Board of Directors supports the Head Start Policy Council's
ability and right for shared governance. A member of the Head Start Policy Council is also a
member of the CES Board of Directors. This ensures that communication between Board,
Council and staff occurs in a timely and systematic way so that each party is apprised of
program development, concerns, and achievements.

Management Systems and Procedures: Child and Family Service Kauai Head Start
operates with management systems and procedures for record keeping, communication, data
collection and reporting structures to provide monitoring of ongoing program effectiveness.
Child and Family Service uses the Head Start Family Information System (HFSIS) to collect
data and track information by computer for management of Head Start data. An annual
Community Assessment and program self-assessment is conducted jointly among Policy
Council and staff using the PRISM monitoring tools from ACF. Planning and goal setting
accompanies these annual assessments for program improvements. These annual
assessments allow the Policy Council and staff to better serve families in the program, and to
fine-tune selection and recruitment activities.

Human Resources Management: The Program has written position descriptions and
procedures for recruitment, selection, and training for qualified staff that help build dynamic
and well-rounded teams to work with children and families. Procedures for clear
communication and lines of authority are established along with guidelines and clear
statements of responsibility for job functioning. Annual performance reviews specify areas
of strength and needs for improvement for individual staff. Professional Development Plans
for each staff keep commitments to growth and skills improvement among staff from
managers to teachers. Supervision procedures have been developed to maintain quality
delivery of services and provide for systematic ongoing monitoring of staff.

Facilities, Materials, and Equipment: Child and Family Service Head Start's classrooms
are well designed and equipped with developmentally appropriate learning materials and
playground structures to support development of children ages three to five.
Accommodations for children with disabilities are made for each center as needed. Teachers
review materials and new information annually to update resources for children in the
classroom. Centers incorporate learning stations designed to stimulate conversation, thought,
and action by individual and groups of children, Teachers enhance learning stations with
literacy, numeric, and phonemic awareness activities/materials. :

14
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D. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Child and Family Service Kauai Head Start staff will implement program services listed
above to achieve the following outcomes with the proposed additional funding:

Performance Qutput and Outcomes

FY 08-09

Total Enroliment :

Children < 27

Families 27

Pregnant N/A
Enrollment of Children by Program Option:

Full Day 20

Part Day 7
Children Who Received Physical Examinations: 27
Children Who Received Medical Treatment 3
Children Completed Dental Exams ‘ 24
Children Received Dental Treatment 7
Children with Up-To-Date, or All Immunizations 27
Children with Health Insurance 27
Children Professionally Diagnosed with Disability 3
Children with Disability who received Services 3
Children with Mental Health Problems 1
Children Who Received Mental Health Services 1
Children Who Dropped Out 2
Families Who Participated in a Goal Setting Process Leading to 25
Individualized Family Partnership Agreement
Parents/Guardians Who Received Job Training/School Services 2
Total Parents/Guardians Employed 20

All parents will be provided information through the Parent Resource Directory, containing
26 categories of community services and resources such as: medical insurance for uninsunred
family members, adequate housing or financial assistance with housing, dental, medical, and
mental health care services, educational or vocational training resources and/or nutritional

programs.

Data supporting the Performance Output and Outcomes is routinely collected in our HSFIS
database and reported on annually in the Head Start Program Information Report (PIR).

. PROGRAM AND FISCAL REPORTING

All Head Start program information is entered into the Head Start Child Plus Information
System on a regular basis. This includes demographics, health, educational outcomes,
attendance and family partnership information. Reports can be easily accessed to provide
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timely and accurate information for the Quarterly Activity Reports, the additional Program
Performance reporting requirements and other information requests, as needed.

The Child and Family Service Fiscal department provides monthly program expenditure
reports to each Program Director. The Head Start Director and the Kauai Neighbor Island
Administrator review the expenditure report and compares the line items to projected
amounts. These expendifure reports are also shared with the policy council at their meetings.
Those programs that show variances of over 10% between the projected amount and the
Year-to-Date expenditure total writes an explanation for the variance to the Director of
Program Services and, if necessary, creates a corrective action plan to bring spending into
line with the budget.
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Section IT1
FINANCIAL

A. PRICING STRUCTURE

Child and Family Service complies with chapter 103F, HRS Cost Principles for Purchases of
Health and Human Services.

Method of Payment-The method of payment is cost reimbursement. The proposed budget is
attached to the proposal.

Quarterly Funding Requirements
The anticipated quarterly funding requirements for the fiscal year 2008-2009 are as follows:

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 7 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total Grant

$17,857.00 $17,857.00 $17,857.00 . $17,857.00 $71,428.00

Key Assumptions in Budget Development
The detailed budget assumptions are as follows:

a.

b.

Salaries are based on a market median study to maximize recrnitment and retention.

Insurance excluding auto and workers' compensation is allocated across all programs and
is budgeted at 0.73% of expenses.

Audit Services are allocated amongst all programs based on their expenses.

General expenses such as supplies, telephone, postage, publication and printing are based
on direct program utilization.

Parking/Mileage Reimbursement is based upon the average mileage expenses for
proposed staffing pattern at $0.505 per mile.

Negotiated Federal Indirect Cost Rate - Hawaii Revised Statutes, Chapter 103F allows
agencies to use the indirect cost rate approved by the cognizant federal agency. Child and
Family Service received approval of a Federally Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate of 22.4%
from the Department of Health and Human Services. (The letter indicating the Indirect
Rate is attached to this proposal). However, in this proposal, Child and Family Service
has decided to charge less than the approved Indirect Rate and instead charge 16.9% for
indirect costs. CFS will absorb any indirect costs over 16.9% associated with
implementing this proposal through fundraising and development revenues.
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B. OTHER FINANCIAL RELATED MATERIALS

1. Accounting System
Each year a certified public accounting firm is engaged to complete a full andit of the
Child and Family Service accounting system and financial statements. Each year Child
and Family Service receives an unqualified report reflecting the soundness of our
accounting system and financial records. The audited financial statement and
management letter ending June 30, 2006 was completed by Nishihama & Kishida and are

attached to this proposal.

2. Need for Funding
The Department of Health and Human Service provides funding for half day Head Start

programs. Additional funding is necessary to increase staffing and other operating costs
to extend to a full day program and to provide additional services over the 147 children
funded through the Department of Human Services award. Several of the Head Start
centers on Kauai regularly have waiting lists and eligible Head Start children and families
go unserved because of a lack of funds.

3. Cost Effectiveness :
The extended full-day and June “summer” program option is very cost effective because
it provides full day child care services to low income families by building on the
infrastructure already in place with the half day Head Start programs. In addition, placing
additional children within existing Head Start centers is very cost effective given the
additional funds to support personnel and student specific operational costs.
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Section IV
EXPERIENCE AND CAPABILITY

A. NECESSARY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

Head Start Program - Demonstrated Skills, Abilities and Knowledge

Child and Family Service has provided services to the families on Kauai since 1982. In those
25 years, the office has grown from one small family support program to eighteen programs
and a staff of over 70 full and part-time professionals and paraprofessionals. Child and
Family Service was awarded the Kauai Head Start contract in July 2000. The program fit
well into the continuum of services Child and Family Service was already providing to
Kauai’s families with young children. Child and Family Service maintains a strong
reputation on Kanai for its broad array of services to families. It is widely recognized for
providing strong, cuiturally competent home visiting programs for parents with children 0-5
and community based family support centers providing “family friendly” parent education,
counseling and case management. Parent involvement is encouraged at all levels of program
planning, implementation and evaluation.

Backed by administrative, programmatic and fiscal support from the corporate office on
Oazhu, Child and Family Service was able to open the Kauai Head Start classrooms in August
2000 within three months of being notified of the contract award. In May of 2002, the Head
Start program on Kauai received and passed its first federal monitoring under Child and
Family Service administration. Kauai Head Start continued to strengthen its classroom
curriculum, provide professional development opportunities for teaching staff, strengthen the
relationship with the Department of Education and enhance services for children with special
needs. In March 2006, the Kavai Head Start centers were again found by the Region IX
program monitors to be in full compliance with all Head Start Program Standards.

The Head Start staff are active in the Kauai Early Childhood Education professional
community and the Hawaii Head Start Association. These partnerships help staff maintain
up-to-date knowledge of professional development opportunities as well as strengthen the
network of services that support Kauai’s young families. In addition, the broad range of
family support services provided by Child and Family Service on Kauai make it even easier
for Head Start staff to assist families. Families can be referred to on-going parent education
classes at the family centers; receive additional parenting support for older children through
the HomeReach program; or pregnant mothers and families with infants needing additional
services can receive support through the Healthy Start and/or Baby S.A.F.E. programs.

In the Head Start program parents receive quality child care services that allow them to work
or attend school and pursue their economic and education goals. The children and parents are
provided Head Start services by well trained and experienced staff with strong administrative
support. Through the Head Start staff, the expansion families will be well connected to a
wide range of family support services within Child and Family Service as well as the broader
Kauai community.
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Seven Years of Experience in Head Start Services

In Fune 2007, Child and Family Service completed its seventh year of providing Head Start
services on Kauai. The Kauai Head Start program has nine classroom sites across the island.
The program currently has three full day programs supported through funding from the Office
of Community Services and one full day program supported through donations and private
fees. The proposed services would provide Head Start services to an additional 7 eligible
families as well as expanding services through the day and through June for another 20
children. The placement of centers across the island allows families to receive services in
their own community or near their jobs or training programs.

As noted above Child and Family Service has a long history of providing quality services to
Hawaii’s families. Working with Kauvai’s families for 25 years has given the Child and
Family Service staff administrative and community experiences that facilitated the successful
start up of the Head Start program in 2000. The community was very supportive and we
were able to set up classrooms on local church property, at elementary schools and in a low
income housing apartment complex. Because of the strong relationship Child and Family
Service had built over the years with the Department of Health, DOE, Easter Seals and other
cominunity organizations, these partners readily extend their help and regularly refer families

to Head Start.

The Kauai Head Start staff have a deep understanding of the Head Start program: its
philosophy, goals and program standards. Many of the staff worked in Head Start programs
before coming to Child and Family Service. In addition, a third of the staff are former Head
Start parents. This balance of staff with extensive Head Start experience as teachers and
parents and staff from other early childhood education programs allows Head Start to grow
and expand while staying.true to the Head Start model. Child and Family Service provides
staff with regular supervision and ongoing training to maintain best practice in all aspects of
the Head Start program. Administrative and program staff also attend specific Head Start
sponsored training to make certain that we continue to comply with program performance
standards. Child and Family Service has contracted with OCS to provide expanded day
programs on Kauai since 2000. The program has consistently met or exceeded annual
contract performance outcomes.

Child and Family Service as an Organization
A detailed description about Child and Family Service and its Continuum of Care is attached

to this proposal.

Projects and Contracts Pertinent to the Proposed Services

The DHHS contract for Head Start services supports the main Head Start program on Kauai.
The contract requires adherence to the Performance Standards and provides an on-site federal
monitoring every three years. Kauai Head Start received and passed its first review under
Child and Family Service in 2002, was reviewed again in 2005 and received a report March
2006 confirming that the program met all performance standards. The program is expecting
to be monitored again in 2008.
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Child and Family Service has provided the Healthy Start Early Identification and Home
Visifing services on Kauai for over 15 years. The program is monitored annually and has an
extensive list of program goals and objectives that are reviewed by the funder at the end of
each year. Staff working in the Healthy Start program receive extensive training in early
childhood development which is often shared with the other programs at staff in-service
‘meetings.” Many families transition from the Healthy Start program to Head Start services as

their children reach 3 years.

The Baby S.A.F.E. and HomeReach programs bring additional services and skills to the
Child and Family Service office. Head Start staff gain increased awareness of the impact of
substance abuse on Kauail families as well as learn how to teach intensive parenting skills
from the staff in these two programs. Below is a list of pertinent past and present contract
experience relevant to the Kauvai Head Start Extended-day program.

Contract

Service

Description

Contractor

Name

Period

Child Care 2000 to | Full day child care Office of Cormnmunity
Services for present | services for low income Services/Department of Labor
Head Start parents who are working, | and Industrial Relations
Parents seeking employment or in | Dawn Hirakawa
school (808)586-8675
830 Punchbow! Street, Rm. 420
Honolulu, HI 96813
Early Head 11/06 Expansion of Head Start | Office of Community
Start and through | services on Kauvai Services/Department of Labor
Head Start 12/07 and Industrial Relations
Program Dawn Hirakawa
(808)586-8675
830 Punchbow! Street, Rm. 420
Hoenoluln, HI 26813
Head Start 2000to | Comprehensive services ACF/DHHS
Program present | designed to advance social | Jan Len
competencies and school | (415) 437-8481
readiness in young 90-7™ Street, 9™ Fioor
children of low-income San Francisco, CA 94103
families
Pre/Plus 2007- Pre/Plus Préschool Department of Human Services
Services present | services at Kilauea Benefit, Benefit and Support
Elementary School for Services Division
families at or below 200% | Marja Leivo
of poverty 820 Mililani Street, Suite 606
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
Healthy Start | 1989 to | Systematic screening and | DOH/MCHB
Early present | assessment of Cindy Hirai
Identification overburdened families of | (808) 733-4182
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C;l;tl;i“ i?:il:;‘e Description Contractor
newborns, or prenatal Department of Health
women Maternal & Child Health Branch
741-A Sunset Avenue
Honolulu, HI 96816
Healthy Start | 1989 to | Family outreach and home | DOH/MCHB
Home present | visits for the prevention of | Cindy Hirai
Visiting child abuse and neglect/ (808) 733-4182
infants through age 5 Department of Health
years Maternal & Child Health Branch
741-A Sunset Avenue
- Honolulu, HI 96816
Baby S.AFE. | 2000to | Family outreach for DOH/ADAD
present | parenting and pregnant Terri Nakano
women who are using (808) 692-7506
substances and need Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division
referral to substance abuse | Department of Health
treatment programs 601 Kamokila Blvd., Rm. 360
Kapolei, HI 96707
Family 1996 to | Community based family | Department of Human Services
Centers present | support service centers Jeanne Reinhart
(case management, 810 Richard Street Ste. 400
counseling, parenting, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
clothing and food '
distribution) for at risk
families

Community Input and Satisfaction :
Through participation in community comrmittees and coalitions, CFS gains insight into
community needs, gaps in services and family and community satisfaction with existing
services. Families are also given frequent opportunities to express their opinions, satisfaction
Ievel, concerns, and questions. CFS administers satisfaction surveys to families using our
services and referral sources to obtain feedback on service coordination, as well as other
quality measures. The Kauai Neighbor Island Administrator and Head Start Director review
survey results with the Policy Council and program staff. If indicated, procedures are revised
to appropriately address service coordination issues. The CFS Director of Quality Assurance
and Training reviews the satisfaction surveys to identify organization wide service issues and
to establish training priorities

. FACILITIES

Child and Family Service maintains facilities throughout the State which are equipped and
appropriately furnished to deliver the full range of services.
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Head Start Program Facilities

Kauvai Head Start Centers are equipped with state-of-the-art learning materials and age
appropriate playground facilities. Continuous maintenance and upgrading are built into
service provision. All of the Head Start centers offer child appropriate materials and
resources with learning stations for discovery and stimulation of new developmental skills
and have quality outdoor playground equipment. Staff have technical supports needed to
deliver immediate and appropriate information to students and families, such as copier
machines, faxes, phones and computers on site.

The additional Head Start students will be placed in the centers nearest to their homes or
parents’ workplace. The expansion full day and June summer program will be in Lihue
where we have the highest population of working families. The Lihue Hale Malie Head Start
Center has two classrooms with a large fenced playground. Their playground renovation and
new playground equipment will be completed by Spring 2008 and will be fully ADA
accessible. Although it is a new center for Head Start (opened July 2007), it has been a
preschool facility for many years and is centrally located on a main street in Lihue. This
location is very accessible for parents who are working in Lihue or attending classes at Kauai
Community College which is less then 5 miles away.

~ Child and Family Service is Accessible Statewide

Headquarters: The corporate office is located at 91-1841 Fort Weaver Road, Ewa Beach,
Hawaii. Child and Family Service maintains 35 other sites throughout the State, on the
islands of Hawaii, Kauai, Maui, Molokai, and Oahu.

ADA Accessibility: Most of the Child and Family Service sites meet accessibility
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). While Child and Family
Service is in the process of ensuring that all its sites are accessible, alternative arrangements
are provided for those for whom it is needed.

Communication Accessibility: CFS maintains a wide area network to provide data
connection between its nine major sites on five islands using frame relay technology.
Currently 19 additional sites, as well as home and mobile users are connected either through
remote dial-in or Internet access. Staff members are equipped with desktop or laptop
computers furnished with current technology. The major application systems already in place
include a windows-based accounting system, applicant tracking system, a statewide
correspondence tracking and records management system, a human resources/personnel
systern, a time and attendance system, and a client tracking system.

The organization is well equipped and resources are shared throughout. Resources include:
- Video monitors, VCRs and DVDs for showing educational materials.
An extensive library of print and electronic material covering topics such as Head Start
parent participation, parenting skills, self-esteem, family systems, and family
preservation.




Rk

N

Applicant: Child 2nd Family Service

Videoconferencing capability is available at the Vineyard and Ewa sites on Oahu and at
each neighbor island office. This facilitates communication between sites and creates
more opportunities for training.
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Section V
PROJECT ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING

A. PROPOSED STAFFING, STAFF QUALFICATIONS, SUPERVISON AND
TRAINING :

1. Proposed Staffing
Chiid and Family Service Kauai Head Start proposes to support its additional students
and expanded full day center by using OCS funds to fund a half-time Family Advocate
position and additional Head Teacher and Classroom aide hours for our existing staff.
Two relief Teachers (0.25 FTE), Classroom Aides (0.25) and a Relief Aide (0.125 FTE)
will be scheduled to maintain optimum staffing to provide quality care throughout the
day. The extended full-day program operates between 7:30 a.m. until 4:30 p.m. including
one half-hour set up and clean up. A foster grand parent it also assigned to this classroom
and parents provide additional adult superviston on a daily basis.

The Head Teachers and Classroom Aides in the full day programs work 40 hours per
week, with a cross over of 3 hours daily with teacher qualified relief staff and one hour
with Classroom aide support. Teachers have time to accommodate preparation of
materials and lesson plans, coordinate USDA and attendance tallies, and other areas of
team service delivery systems such as data collection, reporting and outcomes
monitoring. Teacher-to-Teacher conferencing occurs daily on events in the classroom
and status of children and families in the center to support a smooth continuum of care for
children throughout the day. Service integration is also achieved via monthly Teacher-
Family Advocate meetings and bi-annual team conferencing, which inciudes Teachers,
Area Specialists, Family Advocates and, if necessary, special needs professionals.

The teaching staff receive direct supervision from the Education Manager. The program
receives oversight from the Head Start Director, Kavai Neighbor Island Administrator
and the CFS Director of Program Services. The Director of Program Services provides
coordination for program implementation, fiscal, and quality concerns. The Vice
President of Programs supervises the Kauai Neighbor Island Administrator. Percentages
of the VP, Neighbor Island Administrator, Head Start Director, and Education Manager’s
time are not being allocated to this Head Start expansion request.

Kauai Head Start is sufficiently staffed to maintain teacher to student ratios in compliance
with Hawaii licensing requirements and Head Start program standards. The Family
Advocate provides assessment and support to the parents so that they can create and
implement family goals to improve the economic, health, career, housing and/or
educational status of the family. Direct service and supervisory time supports the
viability of the proposed program and an administrative infrastructure needed to support
the wide range of comprehensive daily operations and timely delivery of services.
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Calculated Client/Staff Ratio and Caseload Capacity

Staffing and personnel management meet the requirements of 45CFR Part 1304.52, State
labor laws and Department of Human Services (DHS) licensing regulations. The Head
Start Performance Standards state that any Head Start classroom must have a qualified
Head Teacher and an Aide present, regardless of the number of children. Al Kauai Head
Start centers are licensed for between 18 and 20 children per classroom. Classroom
teacher/ student ratios will be met throughout the day at all Head Start programs.
Caseload for the Family Advocates runs approximately 50 families per advocate.

Protecting the Privacy and Rights of Youth and Family

Child and Family Service employees follow applicable state and federa! laws in obtaining
and release of client information. Child and Family Service’s policy regarding Client
Rights and Confidentiality Procedures are attached.

. Staff Qualifications

Qualified and Experienced Service Team. The following staff positions make up the
Extended-day program team:

Director of Program Services: The Director of Program Services (DPS) has
management authority of the contract, with primary oversight responsibility for Child and
Family Service early childhood and children's services statewide. This individual is a -
member of the organization’s senior management team. The DPS also works with Head
Start Director to implement and develop performance-based measurement; provides input
to the Vice President of Programs on programmatic issues; and participates in
Committees and Task Forces throughout CFS to encourage program improvement.

Head Start Director: Develops, establishes, implements and monitors program
objectives; maintains and/or improves quality of services; identifies program needs,
makes recommendations and carries out needed actions; oversees staff recruitment
process; and monitors contract requirements so that deadlines are met. Provides direct
program management, coordination of program components, and integration of the
program into existing available community resources. Supervises Area Specialists and
Family Advocates. Provides leadership and works closely with. the parent Policy Council
and the shared governance mandates.

Family Advocate: Supports the family involvement standards of the Head Start
program. Develops and oversees the individual family plan and provides support, case
management and advocacy to participating parents.

Head Teacher: Responsible for establishing a nurturing and challenging classroom
environment for young children; reaching both individual child and the group; utilizes
principles of child growth and development in teaching curriculum keeping the
educational and emotional well being of the youth and families priority; integrates
children with special needs into group activities; develops lesson plans, maintains
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adequate student records, creates developmentally appropriate activities, and
arranges/attends parent meetings; maintains strong communications with parents and
staff; maintains safety and a hygienic classroom; maintains confidentiality at all times,
Relief Head Teachers have the same capabilities and responsibilities as the regular Head
Teachers.

Classroom Aide: Assists Head Teacher with all aspects of classroom operations; assists
with attendance, snack preparation, USDA meal documentation; assists with individual
direction of students who require assistance in any activity, in managing small groups of
children both in and outdoors; performs some clerical duties; helps organize and clean
classroom and supplies; aftends trainings as specified for teaching staff.

Key Personnel Exceed Minimum Qualifications

The Kauai CFS staff are highly qualified to provide quality Head Start child care services.

CFS has been providing the Head Start services on Kauai through both center and home

based options since 2000. Several of our current staff had Head Start experience prior to

their employment with Child and Family Service and 8 of our Head Start staff members
were former Head Start parents.

¢ The Director of Program Services has management oversight of all Child and Family
Service early childhood and children’s services contracts. The DPS has a Master’s
degree and extensive experience in human services direct service, supervision and
administration.

e The Head Start Director has the daily responsibility for the implementation of the
Head Start services. The Kauai Head Start Director has a Master’s Degree and
extensive experience in administrative and direct service posmons He has been the
Kauai Head Start director since 2006.

»  Eight of the Head Teachers in the Kauai Head Start program have an A.S. Degree in
Early Childhood Education. The other Head Teacher has a CDA certificate and many
years experience as a pre school teacher.

¢ The Classroom Aides in the program have at 2 minimum a High School degree and
experience working with children. Several of our current Classroom Aides also have
educational courses in early childhood education and are working towards their As
degree in Early Childhood Education has been with Head Start on Kauai for three
years, is currently studying early childhood education at KCC and was a Head Start
parent.

* The Relief Teachers and Classroom aides as well as substltutes are required to meet
the same education and experience standards.

o The Family Advocate has eight years experience as a Head Stat Family Advocate

The job descriptions for these positions for key personnel are included in the attachment
section.

CFS Recruitment and Retention of Qualified Staff

CFS has established a number of mechanisms to promote recruitment and retention of
qualified staff. An Employer of Choice committee was established to develop programs
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to promote employee retention and recognition. Several initiatives have been
implemented including the staff recognition fund, longevity and continnous service
awards, employee referral program, and tuition reimbursement. CES continues to adjust
pay rates according to the market median and has made changes to its benefits package.
New initiatives for the coming year will include developing a career path for staff,
offering increased opportunities for training and skill development, identifying and
strengthening supervisory competencies that promote retention, and offering incentives to
staff who achieve excellence (providing quality services to clients, meeting timelines and
performance outcomes, and maintaining productivity).

. Supervision and Training

Supervision of Program Staff - Accountability and Adherence to the Service Model
and Performance Standards

Staff providing direct service in Kauai Head Start receive extensive training in the first
quarter of employment and annually thereafier on the service model. Regular supervision
is used to maintain the program quality and compliance with the service model. The
Supervisor, in individual and group sessions, reviews staff performance and adherence to
program standards and supports staff growth and development.

The Education Manager provides two weeks of in-service training to teachers before
school starts and monthly teacher in-service meetings. In addition, teachers receive
monthly individual supervision at the program site. Using information gathered from
regular child observations, case record reviews and child development outcomes, the
Education Manager helps the teacher individualize the curriculum to the address the
needs of each child in the classroom and create engaging and developmentally
appropriate learning activities. The Education Manager also reviews lesson plans and
daily observational notes for compliance with performance standards. Additional time is
set aside to meet with the Head Teacher, Relief Teacher and the Classroom Aide to
facilitate communication and planning in the classroom. The Education Manager meets
individually with teachers in the home based or family care home options.

The Head Start Director provides individual supervision for the Education Manager once
every other week and group supervision together with the other Head Start Specialists
every week. At the group supervision, program issues are discussed, problems addressed
and, if necessary, corrective action plans created. During the individual sessions, the
Head Start Director provides guidance and direction to the Education Manager with
individual staffing issues and facilitating performance improvement.

The Kauai Neighbor Island Administrator meets weekly with the Head Start Director to
review the program’s progress towards Head Start and OCS contract performance goals

and review any budget variances.
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Focus on Supervision Organization Wide

CES has well established procedures and expectations for supervision. The process of
supervision holds individual staff accountable for appropriate performance of their assigned
duties and responsibilities, monitors the quality of client services, and provides a mechanism
for professional development. One of the major goals of the supervisory process is to provide
direct line staff with the knowledge and support to remove barriers to accessing services and
achieving outcomes with their cases.

To promote excellence in supervision, CFS provides extensive supervisory training. New
supervisors receive an 8 hour supervisory orientation. Within the first year of
employment, supervisors attend fraining sessions in human resources, fiscal, and
administration. In addition, Child and Family Service requires all supervisors to attend a
clinical supervision training module. This module covers topics such as assessing staff
strengths, defining supervisory styles, core components of supervision, and understanding
the dynamics of change. :

Training ~ Enhancing Skills and Knowledge

Child and Family Service is committed to increasing staff knowledge and skill
development through its training program. In a recent survey, CFS employees identified
the ability to learn and develop their skills as one of the important reasons they work for
CFS. The organization has invested considerable resources in training and the
development of training modules, as well as videoconferencing capacity. This enables

- CFS staff on all islands to receive standardized information.

Child and Family Service’s Training Committee has established requirements for
orientation and ongoing training at an organization wide level. These requirements
include those topics that are mandated for the organization to meet accreditation
standards. In addition, each program has identified specific requirements for orientation
and training that meet contract requirements and service specific accreditation standards.
CEFS staff receive announcements of upcoming training opportunities, both internal and
external, through the Quality Assurance and Training Department.

Orientation to the Program and the Organization

Child and Family Service provides orientation for the program and the organization. The
Head Start program provides orientation before teachers enter the classroom. Child and -
Family Service requires new hires to attend an organization orientation within 30 days of
employment. The new hire orientation and a supervisor orientation are offered on a
monthly basis. The table below highlights some of the topics covered in these
orientations. The list is not exhaustive and training content does vary depending on staff
needs and pertinent issues that may arise within the school year.

Program Specific —Pre-service Organization — within 30 days of

__training or within 30 days employment
Goals and underlying philosophy of | Mission and goals of Child and Family Service
Head Start
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Program Specific —Pre-service Organization — within 30 days of
training or within 30 days employment

Methods for identifying and reporting | Organization structure and overview, including

child abuse and neglect communication plan and strategic planning

Head Start Performance Standards Continuous Quality Improvement process

Methods for planning for the Safety program and purpose, including worker’s

successful transition to and from compensation overview

Head Start ' ' '

Disaster Preparedness, 1** Aid and CFS communication pilan

child CPR

Program policies and procedures Information technology, including computer

including standards of conduct network access and usage

Special Needs/IEP issues, advocacy, | Overview of behavior management policy, State | .

ADA and federal laws on confidentiality including
HIPAA

Selected health topics such as asthma, | Overview of philosophy of person and family

allergies, seizures, medication centered services, cultural diversity, client

administration, blood borne participation in planning and delivery of

pathogens, USDA/food safety, services, strength based client assessment and

universal precautions, mental health services, collaboration with other agencies/
partners

Team building; working with families | Client rights and responsibilities, client
grievances and complaints process and client
satisfaction

By the end of the first quarter of employment, employees receive training in:
¢ Cultural competency/cultural approaches with various populations
Personal safety and appropriate behavior management techniques
Continuous Quality Improvement Policies and Procedures

Awareness of special needs populations

HIPAA Policies and Procedures

Topics in the supervisory orientation include organization overview and structure, staff
management, financial management, program development, risk management, and a
communication overview. Supervisors are provided with the procedures and tools for
each of these processes.

Ongoing Training

Once an employee completes orientation, ongoing training opportunities are provided.
An individualized training plan is developed between the supervisor and staff. The plan
identifies areas that need further development. The supervisor tracks the staff
development as an integral part of regular supervision.

Training topics for ongoing tramlng include:
» Awareness of available referral resources in the community
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Program outcomes development and measurement
Special Needs/IEP issues, advocacy, ADA
Child Development/emergent curriculum/early literacy, child outcomes
Selected safety topics such as fire extinguisher/safety, lifting and carrying, First
Aide/CPR, vision training, etc
Substance use and abuse

- Case management/ collaboration/ coordination
Professional boundaries
Selected health topics such as asthma, allergies, seizures, medication administration,
blood borne pathogens, USDA/food safety, universal precautions, mental health.
Team building
Working with Families

* 2 ¢ @ *e & o »

~ Child and Family Service staff members are required to attend annual Cultural

Competence training. The training is intended to increase knowledge of diverse cultural
groups and develop skills that result in positive client outcomes. Some of the topics
covered in this training include understanding and being aware of one’s own cultural
values; being aware of, accepting and understanding cultural differences; understanding
the client’s culture; and respecting differences.

Head Start staff receive monthly in-service training on curriculum and developmentally
appropriate learning theory, assessments and outcomes, parenting issues, communication
skills, special needs issues, positive discipline in the classroom (working with challenging
behaviors) and policies and procedures. Staff also receive information on a variety of
selected topics through participation in classes, workshops, individualized mentoring and
Head Start sponsored specialized trainings.

Additionally, Kauai Head Start staff receives annual training through consultants who
specialize in Head Start issues and Federal program standards. Specific areas of focus
over recent years have included health services systems, governance, parent involvement,
corriculum development and the Head Start Family Information System (HSFIS) data
system. The benefits of this training are many, especially since it is tailor made to
individual program needs and delivered by experts in Head Start.

Videoconferencing

In August 2003, Child and Family Service launched the Mehana Project, a
videoconferencing initiative that provides videoconferencing capability to CFS sites on
Oahu, Kauai, Maui, Hilo and Kona. Child and Family Service was able to secure funding
from private foundations to implement this project. Since our equipment was connected,
8,636 employees and non-employees (duplicate count for multiple training sessions) have
enjoyed the benefits of the videoconference technology.

Videoconferencing is an innovative and cost effective way to meet agency and

community training needs throughout the State. It is also a significant tool in providing
“Best Practice” services and clinical service delivery training to CFS staff and others in
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the non-profit community. Some of the ways CFS utilizes videoconferencing technology

include:

» Standardized training modules. In order to provide quality training, there is a need for
standardization in course content, instructor delivery, visual aids and distributed
materials (handouts). CFS has developed training modules that are presented
statewide via videoconferencing. The training modules include the following subject
matter: substance abuse, child abuse and neglect, positive behavior supports, engaging
challenging families, and medication management.

o Staff case-conferencing of complex family issues. Staff located at remote sites can
work together to discuss issues and accomplish goals for families and children in
treatment. This level of case-conferencing is applicable to any clinical issue, but is
especially helpful for programs requiring specific clinical expertise.

* Best practice discussions at the program level. Regular opportunities will be provided
for program standardization for similar services on different islands. Technology
creates the opportunity to share common and unique approaches among
geographically defined programs, discussing clinical care pathways (what works best
for certain types of clients), and discussing emerging trends.

¢ Training opportunities for staff at the national and international level. Provides new
opportunities to bring Mainland and global expertise to Hawaii’s Human Service
industry.

Community Education

CFS has provided several educational opportunities for mental health professionals and
human service workers statewide. Community training has included issue specific as
well as best practices focused trainings. These opportunities have been very successful
and attracted the participation of numerous human services professionals outside CFS,
including many that flew in from the neighbor islands.

CFS provided these trainings as a community service, providing in-kind labor and
securing additional private funding in order to keep tuition reasonable. Approximately 70
percent of participants in these trainings were from agencies outside CES, and of those,
10-20 percent were from the neighbor islands. Participation in the training events has
ranged from 70 to 300 participants.

CFS is committed to providing additional educational opportunities for the community.

. ORGANIZATION CHART

The basis of the Head Start philosophy is the team approach. A network of support is
provided for pareats, children, families and staff so that issues, challenges and
achievements are a shared experience.

Child and Family Service provides the infrastructure and support to maﬁage programs

effectively. This support is provided through a number of mechanisms including direct
supervision and guidance from the Vice President of Programs and the Director of
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Program Services, the Quality Assurance and Training Departments, the strategic
planning process, the CFS communication plan, and senior management.

The organization chart for this specific contract and the organizational charts, including
the CFES organizational chart and the Kauai Neighbor Island organizational chart,
highlight the supervisory structure. The above referenced charts are attached to this
proposal.
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Section VI
OTHER

A. LITIGATION

Child and Family Service is a party in the following lawsuits:

Haldeman, et al. vs. University of Nations Pre-School; The University of Nations; Hawaii
County Police Department; Child Protective Services; Department of Human Services;
and Child and Family Service, Jointly and Severally

Case No. CV05-00810 DAE K8C, filed in the United States District Court for the District
of Hawaii.

Child and Family Service was named in a complaint filed on December 28, 2005 with
CES filing an answer on June 2, 2006. Discovery is ongoing at this time and trial is
scheduled to begin July 1, 2008.

Elizabeth Chaves vs. Child and Family Service; John Does 1-10; Jane Does 1-10; DOE
Corporations 1-10; DOE Partnerships 1-10; DOE Non-Profit Organizations 1-10; and
DOE Governmental Entities 1-10

Civil No. 07-1-0699-04 SSM, First Circuit Court, State of Hawaii.

Child and Family Service was named in a complaint filed on April 20, 2007 with CES
filing an answer on May 2, 2007. There is no trial date and it is currently assigned to the
Court Annexed Arbitration Program (CAAP). An arbitration hearing in scheduled for
January 9, 2008.

C.B., through his next friends, J.B. and R.B., and J.B. and R B. vs. Child and Family
Service and DOE Entities 1-10
Civil No. 07-1-0595-03 KSSA, First Circuit Court, State of Hawaii.

Child and Family Service was named in a complaint filed on April 3, 2007 with CFS
filing a Motion to Dismiss Complaint on Nov 29, 2007. Motion is scheduled for hearing
at the end of December 2007, before Judge Karen 5.S. Ahn. No trial date has been set,
pending a ruling on the Motion to Dismiss.

Ricardo J. Saugue vs. Child and Family Service, Civil No. CV07-00449 DAE LE, EEOC
Charge No. 378-2005-00391

Child and Family Service were named in a complaint filed on March 31, 2005 with CFS

- filing the first of many responses to EEOC on May 31, 2005. Investigation is ongoing at

this time and jury trial is scheduled to begin on September 23, 2008 at 9:00am before
DAE.
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B. LICENSURE AND ACCREDITATION

The Council on Accreditation of Services for Families and Children (COA) has accredited
CFS since 1980. The Kauai Head Start program was a part of the COA review in February
2006 and found to be in compliance with all COA program standards. As a member of COA,
CFS maintains the highest standards in organization management and program delivery. (See
Attached Accreditation Letter.) CES is also a member of two other national standard-setting.
organizations, the Child Welfare League of America since 1938 and the Alliance for Children
and Families since 1986. Child and Family Service is also a member of the National and
Regional Hawaii Head Start Associations. Because of its accreditation status and
membership in national organizations, CFS has access to current research and best practice
models.
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Section VII
ATTACHMENTS

Declaration Statement

Proposed Budget

Performance and Quality Improvement Plan and Flowchart
Quarterly Manager’s Report

Chart Compliance Checklist

Federal Indirect Rate Letter

Andited Financial Statement Ending June 30 2006 and Management Report
CFS’ Continuum of Care

CFS Client Rights and Confidentiality Procedure

10 Job Descriptions

11. Organization Charts

12. Letter of Accreditation

VONG LA W
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Attachment 1
DECLARATION STATEMENT
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Attachment 3
PERFORMANCE AND QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND
FLOWCHART
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COA STANDARDS:
Refer to PQY

OBJECTIVE:

Child and Family Service {CFS) values a well-defined process for assessing and
improving its overall performance and for meeting standards that promote quality
outcomes. To support the process, CFS develops and implements a written
Performance and Quality improvement (PQI) plan, which is reviewed and updated

annually.

SCOPE:
Child and Family Service program and department staff.

RESPONSIBILITY:
All program and department staff are responsible for contributing and implementing the

PQI plan. The Director of Quality Assurance and Training is responsible for maintaining
this policy.

POLICY:
INTRODUCTION

It is the philosophy of Child and Family Service (CFS) that Performance and Quality
Improvement (PQI) is a process involving the active participation of stakeholders from
all levels of the organization. To promote this process, the Child and Family Service
Performance and Quality Improvement Plan calls for individuals, work teams, and entire
programs to take responsibility for identifying potential areas for improvement and
working to make improvements happen. )

The Performance and Quality Improvement Plan is based on the Child and Family

Service vision, mission, values, and strategic goals. It is developed in a collaborative
effort by Child and Family Service staff and approved by the Child and Family Service

Board of Directors.

Child and Family Service Vision

Generations of healthy people and healthy families ensuring a healthy Hawaii.

Child and Family Service Mission

Strengthening families and fostering the healthy development of children.
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Child and Family Service Values

Child and Family Seivice values Integrity, and believes in a fair and balanced approach
to all activities and decisions.

Child and Family Service values Quality Client Services, and embraces the principles
that promote quality services: client-centered, strengths-based, confidential; solution-
focused, and advocating for self-reliance.

Child and Family Service values Employee Exceilence, recognizes employees as our
most valuable assets and strives to cultivate that best characteristics: initiative,
enthusiasm, creativity, patience, competence, judgment, compassion, and
understanding.

Child and Family Service values Teamwork and Communication, and is commitied to
working as a team and promoting effective communication throughout the organization,

Performance and Quality Imgrovement Philosophy

Child and Family Service promotes an organizational culture that values teamwork,
cooperation, and open communication. These same organizational values ate reflected
in the PQI Plan, the PQI Steering, and the PQI structure and process. Stakeholders
representing the vatious programmatic and administrative units within Child and Family
Servigce are provided formal and informal opportunities to continuously evaluate and
improve Child and Family Service’s client services and the organizational systems that

support those setvices.

it is the intent of Child and Family Service to promote the participation of all stafi in the
PQI process by:

1. Creating and reinforcing expectations about performance and quality improvement

throughout the organization.

Projecting and exemplifying the mission, expectations, and strategic direction of the

organization to external stakeholders and consumers.

Setting direction and performance excellence goals through strategic planning.

Evaluating the organization’s overall performance in relation to established

expectations.

Recommending changes based on findings from the program performance

evaluations.

6. Implementing changes toward enhanced quality of services and the systems
supporting those services.

M

> w

o
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PQI GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The overarching goal of the Performance and Quality Improvement process is to
continually assess and improve overall performance so as o promote quality service
outcomes, - To achieve this goal, Child and Family Service has identified the following

objectives:

Integrating the Child and Family Service Strategic Plan into the PQI process.

Delivery of high quality services to all clients.

Increased program fiscal responsibility and continued contract compliance.

Development and tracking of appropriate client outcomes.

Systematic overview of client progress and justification of continued services.

Qualifying and training all staff to deliver high quality service.

Minimization of risks to clients and staff, thereby improving safety of services and the

service environment. '

8. Monitoring client records for appropriateness accuracy, and completeness,

9. Enhancing accessibility to facilities and services for clients with special needs.

10. Adhering to best practices in all service delivery models.

11. Increasing Administrative/Main office support to Neighbor Islands.

2. Strict adherence to clients’ rights {(see PRG-08-A Screening and Intake Procedure and
PRG-08-A Attachment 3 Client Rights document).

13. Assuring all client information is handled appropriately with specific attention to issues
of privacy and confidentiality (see PRG-05-A Confidentiality Procedure and PRG-13-C
Management and Protection of Private Health Information Procedure).

14, Effective utilization and analysis of data for PQ! related activities.

15. Standardization and centralization of information management in planning, support
and evaluation of PQI activities,

16. Identification of program priority areas for short-term planning and support of the

organization’s Strategic Plan.

NGO sLD =

PLAN DESCRIPTION

Scope of the PQI Process

The scope of the PQI process encompasses all levels of the organization, employs a
variety of methods for the systemic evaluation of the effectiveness and efficiency of
services, with regular and ongoing occurrence of activities related to this process.

All Child and Family Service personnel-participate at some level in the PQI process.

The Executive Core Team, Board of Directors/Advisory members, and PQI Committee
regularly communicate with staff and stakeholders about achievements relative to
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desired outcomes, indicators, and benchmarks or targets. Program and department
staff attend quarterly PQI staff meetings during which they review client data that they
have compiled using the organization PQI implementation mechanisms. (PQl
implementation mechanism descriptions start on page 8). This data is then used to
evaluate program and effectiveness. Select program staff participate in the
organization-wide PQI Committees along with administrative personnel.

Formal organization-wide commities meetings and data review occurs on a monthly,
quarterly and ad hoc basis. All findings and recommendations are reported to the
Performance and Quality Improvement Steering Committee quarteriy for evaluation and

onitoring of the quality of services and the systems supporting those services.
Following is a brief descriptive summary of the Committees that report quanty
improvement findings to the PQI Steering Committee:

The Executive Core Team reviews dashboard items on a quarterly basis which
identifies goals for the organization and current status of the agency. The dashboard
items Include, but are not limited to: financial, procurement, training, human resources,
outcomes, worker’s compensation, clinical risk management, and development. The
dashboard items are updated at a minimum annually or more frequently as needed.

Case Record Review Commiitee reviews data generated from the programs’ quarterly
review of client records.

The Internal/External Report Committee meets at least quarterly or more frequently as
needed to review client satisfaction and referrals source surveys, client grievances and
complaints, monitoring reports from funding sources, reports by licensing bodies,
mandatory reporting, and internal reviews of client records.

Program outcome data is reviewed quarterly by the Outcores Committee. This
committee is also responsible for reviewing program outcomes for reasonableness,
relevance, ability to measure, and adherence io organization and accreditation
standards. The committee will adjust the current outcome model to align with a mission

based approach,

The Safety Committee reviews incident, fire drill, and facility safety reports for safety
and risk management issues that speak to facility/environmental risks and occupational

risks,

The Clinical Risk Management Committee evaluates organizational practices with
clients that involve risk or limit freedom of choice, issues related {o medications, reviews
trend analysis on manual restraints, crisis plans, and research involving clients. The
committee may also review specific high risk clients through an interdisciplinary
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approach to assure that service delivery utilizes the least restrictive interventions and
adheres to best practice standards.

The Training Committee reviews, guides and provides oversight of staff development
and training. The Clinical Training Task Force reports to the Training Committee. The
Video Conferencing Sub Committee reports to the Training Committee.

The Cultural Diversity Task Force (CDTF) is responsible for driving the organizational
efforts toward cultural competency and developing awareness and an appreciation of
cultural diversity.

The Fiscal tmpact Committee Is an ad hoc committee that was established to examine
cross-functional issues that will help guide quality and/or fiscal improvement decisions.

To promote the flow of information and communication in all directions and among all
organization staff, Child and Family Service utilizes a comprehensive internal
communications program (see ADM-08 Communication Plan Policy). The
Communication Plan outlines expectations for regular communication channeis at the
program and administrative levels of the organization on an ongoing basis to foster the

PQI process.

A byproduct of the intemal communications program is that it provides a mechanism for
internal stakeholder input and feedback and a way for information to flow between
levels of the organization to the area it will be most useful. Additional mechanisms for
stakeholder feedback includes trend analysis based on interviews with key
stakeholders, client and referral source satisfaction surveys, community assessments,
integration of cornmunity partners into our programs, and participation in local coalitions
{such as Child Welfare Services Advisory Council, New Begmnzngs Alliance, Adoption
Connection, etc}). Internal and external stakeholders review and discuss the results of
implementing improvement to inform future decision making.

The overall direction of the PQI program is guided by Child and Family Service’s Board of
Directors who provide input and direction through the Sirategic Planning process, review
of the PQI Plan and Annual PQI Report, and through approval of all organizational

policies.

Databases and spteadsheets for storage and analysis of PQ} activities such as Case
Record Review, Program Outcomes, Client Satisfaction Surveys, Incident Reports, and
Training, are managed by the Quality Assurance and Training Department. Data is
forwarded from the programs using standardized forms and is input into the databases
by the QA and Training Department support staff. Data is analyzed, maintained and
reported by the assigned QA and Training Department staff.
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RESPONSIBILITY AND OVERSIGHT

Ultimate responsibility for the quality improvement process at Child and Family Service
rests with the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). The President and CEO,
along with Child and Family Service executive management (Executive Core Team),
encourages and monitors the implementation of organizational-wide quality
improvement processes and activities. All personnel positions at Child and Family
Service include a job duty or responsibility, to actively patrticipate in quality improvement
activities including, but not limited to: consumer input, incident/accident and client
grievance and complaint review, peer record review, and program evaluation/quality

improvement projects.

The PQI Steering Committee is responsible for implementing and monitoring the above-
identified quality improvement practices. The Director of Quality Assurance & Training is
the Chair of the PQI Steering Committee. The committee meets at least quarterly to
discuss organizational-wide issues, review the work of the various PQI Committees and
develop potential solutions. Problern solving may necessitate the appointment of ad-
hoc quality improvement committees or taskforces to explore issues further; ad-hoc
committee membership is comprised of representatives from vatrious levels of the
organization. On a quarterly basis, the PQI Steering Commitiee reviews each
committee’s findings on performance benchmarks, status of projects/activities, significant
findings from data analysis, issues, and proposed solutions to problems and assesses the
impact and effectiveness of quality improvement action plans.

Existing Committees include:

Case Record Review Commiitee
Intemal/External Reports Commiitee
QOutcomes Committee

Safety Committee

Clinical Risk Management Committee
Training Committee

Cultural Diversity Task Force

Fiscal Impact Committee

* & 0 0 8 " P

FEEDBACK FOR CONTINUOUS PERFORMANCE AND QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

Child and Family Service systematically plans for organizational and program-specific
continuous performance and quality improvement. The plan is anticipatory, prospective,
and involves the consumers of service, staff and other stakeholders. The purpose of
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this process is to ideniify perceived areas for improvement and mechanisms for
obtaining feedback from consumers, referral sources, staff, and other stakeholders.
The quality improvement process is multi-leveled with issue identification and resolution.

it is the intent of Child and Family Service to uiilize all sources of information to identify
and resolve issues or problems facing the organization on multiple levels. Input from
consultants, advisory groups, consumer advocates, partners, the community,
consumers, funders, volunteers, Board members, staff and management is gathered
through a variety of formal and informal methods. Focus groups, surveys, and planning
groups provide meaningful opportunities for stakeholders to actively participate.
Participation in planning includes long-term, short-term, and operational planning
processes. The Planning process consists of major planning every two years with
annual updates.

The following are utilized as sources of information and ideas of identification for the
quality improvement process:

1. lIssues identified as a result of the quality assurance efforts of the PQi Steering
Committee. -

2. Areas of concemn identified by organizational staff during panel discussions at the
annual State of the Agency meetings and guarterly Management Council,
Supervisors Council, and Empiloyee Council mestings.

3. lIssues of concern to the program staff are identified via a quarterly team meeting,
which is focused on quality improvement issues. Programs report these issues on a
quarterly basis in the Quarterly Manager's Report (QMR). The Quarterly Manager's
Reports are due to the DPS Administrative Assistant on the 20" day of the month
following the end of each quarter. The DPS will complete the program roll-up report
and turn it in to the VP of Programs by 5" of the following month to complete the
Program's Quarterly Director Report. The scheduled quarterly meetings are devoted
to the following: .
¢ Review of program-specific information.

» Identification of issues resolved on the program level as appropriate or forwarded
to management for follow up and resolution.
Development and monitoring of the action plan.

« ldentification of issues that can be addressed or resolved at the program level.

s I{dentification of issues which need to be forwarded to other levels for follow-up

and resolution.

4. Health, safety, and clinical risk management issues are identified through regular
meetings of the Safety Committee, Clinical Risk Management Committee, and the
Safety Coordinator training mesetings.
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5. Departments report identified trends and issues to the PQI Steering Committee on a
quarterly basis utilizing the Quarterly Director's Report (QDR). Quarterly Director's
Reports are due to the QA & Training Depariment on the first Monday of the second
month following the end of the quarter for review.

6. Staff surveys to identify issues are conducted bi-annually. This survey will provide
an ongoing mechanism {o solicit anonymous suggestions and comments on the
quality of the work environment at Child and Family Service.

7. Child and Family Service staff identifies issues via the Management Council,
Supervisors Council, and Employee Council Meetings. Council meetings are used
for training, communication and issues discussion.

8. Input from consumers gathered through the consumer satisfaction survey
mechanism, community assessments, and other informal mechanisms.

9. input from refenal sources gathered through the referral source satisfaction survey,
and other formal and informal mechanisms.

Issues identified through the above processes may be resolved at the program,
department or committee level. The PQ! Steering Commitiee meets on the 3" week
of the second month following the end of each guarter. Those issues that affect the
whole of Child and Family Service are brought to the attention of the PQI Steering

Committee which has appropriate membership to enable it to solicit input from all the
above-named sources of information.

PQI IMPLEMENTATION MECHANISMS

Long-Term Planning

Child and Family Service conducts a comprehensive Strategic Planning process every
three years, which provides the staff direction, purpose, and guidance in the management
of the organization. The framework for Strategic Planning includes a review of the
organization’s vision and mission statements and identification of organization strategic
priorities for the coming three years. Input is obtained from the Board of Directors,
community, clients, funders, and agency staff with final approval from the Board of
Directors. The Strategic Plan is reviewed annually for continued relevance of the
Strategic Initiatives and identification of special project needs (see ADM-01-A Strategic

Planning Procedure),

Short-Term Planning

* Each of Child and Family Service’s programs and departments completes an annual
short-temm plan that incorporates areas the staff regard as high priority for their program
and depariment. These priority areas are selected to provide supportto the
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organization’s Strategic Plan and are to include measurable goals, budgetary
objectives, specific personnel assigned the responsibility for specific tasks, and
timelines for accomplishment of goals. Progress on identified goals is reviewed during
the quarterly program PQI staff meeting and reported to the PQ!I Steering Commitiee as
part of the program level PQI Meeting Summary report.

Risk Management

Risk management includes the regular review of ressarch, legal/regulatory
requirements, incidents, and accidents. The Safety Committee provides oversight for
facility/environment and occupational related risk management activities, and the

_Clinical Risk Management Committee evaluates and monitors organizational practices
that involve client risk or limit freedom or choice, issues related to medications, and
research involving clients. Both these Committees report their findings and
recommendations directly to the PQI Steering Commitiee.

Safety

The health and safety of all staff and clients is assured through strict adherence io the
Health and Safety procedures. Procedures include the use of a monthly safety checklist
and quarterly Safety Coordinator training. The Safety Committee oversees this process
as well as program staif training regarding health and safety issues. Findings and
actions are reported to the PQI Steering Committee (see OPR-05-A Health and Safety
Procedure and OPR-05-E Facifities Safety Procedure), and Safety training needs are
reported to the Training Committee.

Training and Supervision

The training program for staff is developed on an individual basis depending upon the
staff evaluations, contract requirements, COA standard requirements, and Child and
Family Service staff orientation requirements. The Training Committee develops and
updates the Child and Family Service organization-wide training plan, identifies staff to be
certified trainers in CPl, Pro-ACT, CPR, and First Aid, reviews and revises training
documentation forms, discusses and implements training curriculum, and develops pians
to ensure staff receive timely training. The Training Committee reports findings and
actions to the PQI Steering Commitiee (see PER-01-G Training and Development
Procedure). Staff supervision is conducted regulary for all staff including hourly and part
time employees, and volunteers. Supervision sessions are docurmented (see PER-01-E

Supervision Procedure).
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Cultural Diversit

Child and Family Setvice will promote multi-culturai awareness and understanding
within the community at large. The Cultural Diversity Task Force (CDTF) will enhance
organizational awareness and understanding of the different cultures within the
organization and the client population served. The CDTF aids in establishing policies
and procedures addressing cultural diversity and cultural sensitivity within the
organization and towards its client population. The CDTF will be responsible for
developing and maintaining of a resource base about cultures of the client population
served and ensuring cultural competency training for all staff. The CDTF provides a
forum for discussion about cultural diversity, cultural sensitivity and cuitural similarities
and differences. The CDTF will act as a focal point for issues related to living and
working in a multi-cultural environment,

Internal/External Monitoring Review

internal Quality Monitoring process is designed to provide support and guidance to
program managemant toward improved accreditation readiness and use of best
practices. Each program is assessed utilizing a standardized checklist tool that
incorporates contract, COA standards, and Child and Family Service requirements. A
comprehensive work plan is subsequently developed that identifies program strengths
and areas in need of improvement with timelines for completion. This mechanism
utilizes a team approach and hands-on mentoring of program staff on site. Training
needs are reported to the Training Committee and any identified program level quality
assurance issues are reported to the PQI Steering Committee.

On an annual basis, Child and Family Service, internally reviews the following:
outreach, intake, assessment, service delivery and supervision issues. These are
evaluated to identify barriers and opportunities to providing service to clients within each
program’s defined service population.

Findings from external monitoring activities are reviewed for trends. Areas of strength and
need for improvement are highlighted with corrective action plans developed as

necessary.

The Intemal/External Monitoring Commiittee also reviews client satisfaction and referral
source surveys, client grievance and complaints and mandatory reporting for compliance
with legal requirements. Findings are reported to the PQI Steering Committee.
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Case Record Heview

As part of the Child and Family Service performance and quality improvement process,
an internal review of randomly selected open and closed case records is conducted on
a quarterly basis and cartied out so that workers and supeivisors do not review cases in
which they have been directly involved. The case record review process is distinct from
regular case review, which occurs with the supervisor and the direct service worker.
Indicators utilized in the quarterly reviews are defined and measurable, and incorporate
criteria for evaluation of the appropriateness of services. Sample records include case
records from all direct services provided by Child and Family Service and a sampling of
high-risk cases (see QUA-01-A Case Record Review Procedure). Data from this
process is reviewed by the Case Record Review Commitiee, which reports findings and
actions to the PQI Steering Committee.

Quicomes Neasurement

An Outcome measurement system is developed and implemented for all Child and
Family Service programs which measures the achievement of service goals for persons
served and program effectiveness. The system focuses on mission driven outcomes to
measure Child and Family Service’s progress towards meeting community needs.
Reporting of data is conducted on a quarterly basis at the program level where results
are discussed with the staff, and at the organization level where data is aggregated for
trend analysis by the Outcomes Committee and reported to the PQI Steering
Committee. The focus of these outcomes will depend upon the program but will include
change in clinical and functional status; health, welfare and safety; permanency of life
situation for those appropriate programs, and an indicator that reflects quality of life (see
PRG-15-A Program Outcomes Procedure).

Measurement of Consumer Satisfaction

All Child and Family Service programs are responsible for assuring that all clients
receive the Child and Family Service Client Satisfaction survey at discharge and at least
annually. Surveys are sent to referral sources and other collateral participants for all
programs on an annual basis. Aggregate data from the surveys is compiled on a
quarterly basis and the results are reviewed by the PQI Steering Commitiee (see PRG-
08-1 Client Satisfaction Survey and PRG-08-Q Referral Source Satisfaction Survey

Procedure).
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PQIl Meetings at the Program and Department Level

At least quartetly all program and department staff meetings will focus specifically on
PQl issues. These discussions are documented utilizing Quarterly Program
Management Reports, which include the PQI Staff Mesting summatry and quarterly
review of the Annual Program Plan. Discussions for programs include a review of client
demographics, satisfaction survey results, incident reports, client grievances, case
record review findings, client demographics, expected vs. actual client and program
outcomes, annual program goals, and achievements/special projects. Piscussions for
departments include a review of indicators of quality, internal consumer satisfaction,
incident reports, complaints, and accomplishments/special projects. Results from such
meetings will be forwarded to the PQI Steering Committee for review and potential

recommended action.

Feedback to Stakeholders

Internally, data from program PQI processes are summarized and shared with staff
quarierly at the program and Management level, and quarterly to the Board. Strategic
planning implementation and review is reported quarterly to the Board with updates
every 6 to 8 weeks to management. Additionally, issue identification and feedback
occurs during Council Meetings on a quarterly and annual basis between organization
staff and Executive Management.

Child and Family Service utilizes a variety of approaches, formal and informal, in
providing feedback on a regular basis io extemal stakeholders. Methods of providing
external stakeholder feedback may include: annual agency reports; newsletters
highlighting programs and program activities; networking and coordinating with other
agencies, organizations and other providers as part of collaborative relationships; radio
spots; press releases; public relations evenis such as the annuat O'hana of the Year
award and ceremony; and program participation in community organizations.

Further feedback is provided to funders through monthly, quarterly, and annual reports
per contractual requirements. Information includes the number of clients served, client
outcomes, program accomplishments, and barriers to program success.

Information Management

The Information Technology Department maintains an information -system that is
dependable, protects confidentiality, enables timely and rapid access to information,
and protects electronically maintained data with anti-virus protection, secure protocols

and daily back up of information,

Page 12 of 15
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Client demographic information is coliected through a common face sheet system and
analyzed regularly. Aggregated program data is reported as part of the Quarterly and
Annual PQI Reports which are shared with Management Council and the Board of
Directors (see QUA-01-C Management Information System Procedure).

REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING

The Chalr of the PQI Steering Committee is responsible for keeping minutes for each
meeting and the Chairs of the Committees and Sub Committees are responsible for their
own minutes. The Director of Quality Assurance and Training is responsible for keeping
records from the PQI Steering Committee, all Committees and Sub Committees, as welt
as all reports submitted to or developed by the PQi Steering Committee (see ADM-08-A
Meeting Documentation Procedure). The PQI Steering Committee submits a quarterly
report to the Child and Family Service Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive
Officer for review. The report documents the following information:

Overall Summary of PQI processes

Incident Reporis

Sub-Committee Data and Reporis

Open Issues

Identified Problems :
Recommendations and Response to Identified Problems

The Child and Family Service Board of Directors receives a Quarterly PQI Roll-up Report
summarizing PQI planning and evaluation processes, and which examines aggregate
data on outcomes, client satisfaction, grievances and complaints, risk management,

_ incident reports, external monitoring reports, internal quality reviews, and quality

improvement efforts.

All documents generated and reviewed in the context of PQI activities that contain
individuaily identifiable information are treated as confidential and are either stored in a
secure location or destroyed in accordance with Child and Family Service’s procedures
on Confidentiality and on Management and Protection of Protected Health Information

(PHI).
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ACTION PLANNING

The following will guide all actions to improve services and promote solutions toward
quality improvement efforts:

1. Communication, cooperation, teamwork and inter-departmental activitios are
emphasized in all phases of the quality improvement process.

A task-oriented team approach is utilized to identify, analyze, and solve problems.
The group will remain on task until a resolution to the issue is identified and
implemented.

Formal and informal feedback from consumers of service, stakeholders, and other
collateral sources will be utilized to direct the discussion and decision-making.
When a range of possible solutions has been identified, they will be analyzed
critically, focusing on:

»  Whether the solution actually solves the problem

¢ How it could be implemented

» What advantages and disadvantages it might provide

+ How to prioritize implementation

U

Once a decision has been reached, an implementation action plan is created. The
proposed solution and implementation plan will be brought back to the PQI Steering
Committee for discussion and {o the Management Council and Executive Core Team for
decision-making. K is vital to the success of the performance and quality improvement
process that solutions and decisions are clearly communicated to the source of the
issue identification, and to other appropriate staff using the existing lines of
communication.

EVALUATION

At least annually, the PG Steering Committee will evaluate the effectiveness of the
various mechanisms infegral to the PQI Plan. The review will include an honest
evaluation of the effectiveness of each of these mechanisms, as well as the work of the
committee itseif. An attempted quantification of actual improvements implemented as a
result of these processes will be a part of this review. New expectations and assessment/
monitoring priorities will be established based on the previous year’s progress. The PQI
Steering Committee will also adjust and monitor the PQ! Plan on an annual and as-
needed basis to reflect the new expectations/priorities. Changes to the PQI Plan are
reviewed and approved by senior management and the Board of Directors.
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Applicant: Child and Family Service

Attachment 6
FEDERAL INDIRECT RATE LETTER
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' &
©1-184] Fort Weaver Road : \ e} u '
E j j ]

( Ewa Beach, Hawaii 96706

Phone §08.681.3500 .

Fax 808.681.5280
Email cle@cfehawaiiorg - Ch'I d &F .1
www.childandtamilyservice.orp 1 afﬂl 1“‘}'
SERVICE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS Privato. nonprolit since 1899

Lor Lum
SHAIR

) December 12, 2006
Karhy Inouye:
FIRST VICE CHaTR

Carol Ai May
SECOND VICE CTIAIR

To Whom It May Concemn:
Joanie Shibuya
SECRETARY We would like to notify you that the Department of Health and Human Services
Pasick Ford has approved for Child and Family Service to apply an indirect cost rate to all
TRESSURER progrars,
Howard Ganval
PRESIDENT & CEO We have added a line to show our indirect cost on the Budget and subsequent
Stephanie Ackermmn Expenditure Reporls. A copy of the letter approving our indirect cost by the
Department of Health and Human Services is enclosed.

Jobin L. Avizuni
Kyle Chock

Reobert Fujicka Since;e]y,
Michaet Goshi
Faul Biga

Srantey Heng
( Tim loluns
Jeneral {Ret.) Duright Kealoha Vivian Saravelas

Lorrie Les St . .
Swphmea:Miﬁ: Director of Finance

Lyun McCrory

Steve Mener

Arlene Nakarroto
Atmee Ogata
Michael Ruley
Shelley B. Thompson
Neal Yokota

Heyt Zia

ACCREDITATION
Counctl on Accrediration
AFFILIATIONS

Child Welfare

League of America

Altiance for Children
and Families

International Ferum for
Child Welfare

Hawail dland
Ulnited Way

Maui Unnited Way

Kanai Unijred Way

Child and Famly Sewdes s Hacwaii's leader in nongovenmrent socinl and humen senices and advoesics for children and
farities in need, wvith the primasy perpose of strengrhening fasniliss avd fosteving the healthy davelopment of children.



¥ Program Bupport Canter
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Finenchs) Managsmas $arvics

Divialon of Coat Alloeatien

NEW ADDRESS  DEAWestiratiuieofics
an Fransless, CAB410Y-

Patti Hates

chigg Executive Officer

Child & Family Bervice 0 ey
51-16841 Fort Weaver Road AUB 2" fﬂﬂ’
Ewa Beach, HI 36708

Deaxr Mas. Bates:

A copy of an indirect cost Negotiation Agreement is attached
This Agreement reflects an understanding reached between yesur:
organization and a member of my staff concerning the rate(g)
that may be used to support your claim for indirect costa on
grants and contracts with the Federal Government. Please have.
the Agreement signed by a duly authorized representative ‘of: your
organization and return it to me BY FAX, retaining the copy: f6r
your files. We will reproduce and distribute the Agreemepit fq:
the appropriate awarding organizaticns of the Federal Governmésnt

for their use,

In order to implement the FINAL indirect cost rate containad 'in the
enclosed Agreement, an adjustment to the indirect coste claimed
under your Federal awarde wmay be required. For HHS project

grants these adjustments must be made in accordance with

the procedures for settlement of indirect coste on HHS project
grants with final negetiated rates describad in the appropriate
'Guide? book for your institution. Adjustments under HHS
contracts must be made in accordance with the provisiocns of the
contracts, Adjustments under awards with othexr Federal agencies
must be made in accordance with the policies of those. agencies,

An indireect cost propopal together with required supporting
information must be submitted to this office for each fiscal year
in which your organization claims indirect costs under grante and

contracta awarded by the Federal Government. Thug, a propoaal
for your FY ending 06/30/07, will be due no later than 12/31/07.

Sincerely,

Minreniolnns

Wallace Chan
Director

Attachment

PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THE NBEGSOTIATION AGREEMENT BY FAX

Fhoney (415] 417-7020 -~ Pax: [41%) 4.:1-1[:: - E-mall: dcastepac.gov



NONFROFIT RATE AGREEMENT
EIN #: " DATE: August 27, 2007

ORGANIZATION: PILING REF.: The preceding
Child Lk Family Service ~ Agreement wap dated
'91-1841 Fort Weaver Road September 14, 2006

Ewa Beach BI 96708

Tha rates approved in thise agreement are for uee on grants, contracts and other
agreementa with ths Federal Government, pubject to the conditiens in Section III.

SECTION 1 INDIRECT COBT RATES? —
RATE TYPEB: FIXED FINRL PROV, {PROVISIONAL) FRBD. (PREDETERMINED} °

PFECTIVE PERIOD

TYDE FROM TO RATE(%)  LOCATIONS APPLICABLE TO

FINAL o7[0i/ns 06/30/06 22.4 ALL ALL PROGRAMA

PROYV, ° 07/01/06 06/30/08 22.4  ALL ALL PROGRAMS
«BABE |

Total direct costh excluding capitml expenditures (buildings,
{pdividual items of equipment, alterations and renovations), subavards
end flow-through Iunds.

(1) N33051



ORGANTZATION;
Child & Family Service

AGREEMENT DATE: August 27, 2007

SECTION 11: SPECIAL REMARKS

TMBMT OF FRINGE FITE: .
This orgsnization idancified the cost of each fringe banefit ssparately as a ditrect cost
when budgeting and charging fringe benefits under federal projects. The fringk benefits
listed below are traated as direct costs,

TREATMBENT OF Ps_I_D ABSENCES: . .
Vacation, iday, sick leave pay snd other paid absences Are inecluded in palaiies and
wagep and are claimed on grante, contracts and other agreaments as part of the nprial cost

for palaries and wages, GSeparate claims for the costs of these paid absences HyY'®. not
made. .

The following fringe benefits are treated ap -direct costa: ]
PAYROLEL TAXES, LIFE INS., DISRBILITY INB., HEALTH INS., RETIRBMENT, AND WORKERS.

COMPENSATION.
DRFINITION OF BQUIPMENT

Equipment is defined as tangible nonexpendeble personal pIOperty having & upeful life of
more than cne year and an acquisition vost of §1,000 or more pex unitc.

(2}



ORGANIZATION:
Child & Pamily Service

AGREERMENT DATE: August 27, 2007
Xv LINITATIONS:

“Ptw TAtN in Chip Agresnent ara Bubject to any statubery or sdnindecyative iimitacione and spply v6 4 QivM) gIant, contrabt oy

nthar agretmént only Go Che exeent that funda ark availpbie. Ascaptance of the rates ig subject to the fellewing conditions|

{1] Saly eosts incurred by the organisstion wexe dntivded in ite indireck eodt $o01 as finally sccepted: such comts ere lagal
ubligavicns of the crpanisation and ary sliouable andexr cha povermimg cont principiesy (2} The sama Copbw theb have beon Exeated 2
indiréct gests Are mob claimefl ap airett costs; () Eimllex sypes of cosks have hagn scderded coneiscent SUcounting treACMARE: And
(4) .Ths inforeacion pivvided by the crganisation whicl wap used to ereblisd the rates i# nor lster £sund to be matarially
ifcopplate or inpccurats Dy the radarsl Goveranenk. Iz such sicunticas tha rate{p}. Hould bt Mbince to xanegortistion st the
dincrevion of thu Fedaral Goveramant.

B,  NEONTIING CKNSQRE! -

This Mgreement is-basasd on the scoounting Bystem purpextsd by the organiastion £o bs in affect during the Mresssht paried. thanges
to the sachod of aecousting for costa which sffatt the amount of reirbursemsnt reayiting Exer tha upe of chis Agreement raquirs
prioxr’ approval ¢f the authoriged representative of Eht cognitant agency. Sush cChangss include, Dut Are not linitud ko, changes in
ths charging of a particular type of coat from indirecr to Alveck. Fallure to obthin approval msy resvle in cost disullowances.

€. [EIXED BRIIH, - .

TF 2 Cixes yAts im in this Agresment, it i based on sn sstioste of che Gosta for tha puriod coversd by tha racte. When che actual
apsts for this perics ars dstexmined, an adjustmenc wil) be made ta & raks of & fucurs yesrimj co compensate for the difference
Eotwasn tha codts used ko astabilish Ent Zixed rate snd sctull eosts. . )

. ULF BY_OTHER FEDRRAL ASENCIRE: :

Yha THTes iR tnis Agracment vars approved in sacordancw wich the autherity la tffice of Mapagemant’ and Budgeb Cixcvier A-ild
clreular, and -ahould ks applind ro grants, tontracks and ochar agresmsents covexed by thim Cireulsr, pubjéet €0 any limications in A
grcve. Mt SXSANiEALicn mBy provids copiss of the Agraenent o other Fedaral Agencits to Hlve then sarly notificaticn of the

Mgzeamant..

EY THE OROANIENTIONY OF BRHALT OF TRE rEDRRAL GOVERNMENT(

cnidd & Famlly Barvice .

PEPRRIMRNT OF HEALTH M¥D PO GRRVICRR . .
{ORIANTZATIO! {MIRMEY)

.y

| BIGHATURE) - |BIONATURE]
Rakn BACS : . _¥allace Chan
(HNE) & IHAMEY
:ﬂao ' _ DIVIpIC eHps AL on
ryehdl ) ’ ITETLE)
glelon R
T BAE) 30S)

upe weeneskvTatve _Robert W. lee
. (8315) 427-7830

) Talsphone 5 -78

(3)



Applicant: Child and Family Service

Aftachment 7
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING JUNE 30, 2006 AND
MANAGEMENT REPORT
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
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AMERICAN SAVINGS BANK TOWER
m . 1001 BISHOP STREET, SUITE 1700
HONOLULYU, HAWAII 96813-3895
NISHIHAMA & KISHIDA, CPAS, INC. TELEFHONE (308) 524-2255
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX (808) 523-2080

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Child and Family Service

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of
Child and Family Service (a nonprofit organization) and affiliates as of June 30, 20086,
and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the fiscal year
then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Organization’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made - by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Child and Family Service and affiliates as
of June 30, 2006, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the fiscal
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As explained in Note K, the Organization entered into an affiliation agreement with a
certain nonprofit organization. This affiliation agreement is a business combination
accounted for as a pooling of interest.



NISHIHAMA & KISHIDA, CPAS, INC.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued a report
dated March 13, 2007, on our consideration of Child and Family Service's internal
controi over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial
reporiing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. .

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
" consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying additional
consolidating information and other supplementary information, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis of the basic consolidated financial statements rather
than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
organizations,” and are not a required part of the basic consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion is fairly
stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements

taken as a whole.

Tihshoma. S Kochido s CPAs Nonc..

" Honolulu, Hawaii
March 13, 2007



Child and Family Service
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(" - June 30, 2006

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS ,
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $75,000 '
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

INVESTMENTS
[nvestments
investment reserve for capital improvements

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings, leasehold improvements
and leasehold interest
Furniture and equipment

(7 + Vehicies
Less accumulaied depreciation and amortization
Leased equipment under capital lease,
less accumulated amortization of $268,127

Land
Construction in progress

OTHER ASSETS

5

$ 2,462,882

.6,728,231

394,921

9,586,034

1,639,609
428,436
2,068,135

13,122,145
2,557,735
225,003

15,904,883
6,001,448

9,903,435

1,068,701
527,832

11,499,968
324,385

$ 23,478,522

See accompanying notes o consolidated financial statements.



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of notes payable
Line of credit
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred support
Mainteniance reserve

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current maturities

(’ OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred rent revenue _
Trust liabilities and post-retirement banefit obfigations

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

$

154,300
93,973
1,656,869
1,122,797

45,093

3,073,032

1,284,463

783,880

191,795
975,675

16,960,527
1,084,314

100,611
18,145,352

$ 23,478,622



Child and Family Service
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Hesfricted . Total
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Public support
Government contracts $ 31,223,581 $ - 3 - $ 31,223,581
Grants 101,125 558,400 - 659,525
United Way -- 884,678 -- 884,678
Contributions and fundraising 427,081 37,391 - 464,472
Net assets released :
from restrictions 1,600,140 (1,600,140) - -
Total public support 33,351,927 (119,671) - 33,232,256
Revenue
Fees for services 383,099 28,870 - 411,969
Investment income ' 156,749 - - 156,749
Rental income , 169,155 - -- 169,155
Other revenue 225,096 - -- 225,096
Total revenue 934,099 28,870 - 962,969
Total public support
and revenue 34,286,026 (90,801) - - 34,195,225
EXPENSES
Community services 28,717,642 -- - 28,717,542
Management and general 1,383,664 - - 1,383,664
Development 253,081 - - 263,081
Facilities management 236,528 - - 236,528
CFSRP 1,250,338 - -- 1,260,338
TPFF _ 1,493,787 - - 1,493,737
Total expenses 33,334,890 - - 33,334,830
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 951,136 (90,801) - 860,335
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF
FISCAL YEAR (RESTATED) 16,009,391 1,175,115 100,511 17,285,017
NET ASSETS AT END OF
FISCAL YEAR $ A 6;960,527 $ 1,084,314 $ 100,511 $ 18,145,352

See éccompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

6



Child and Family Service
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets $ _ 860,335
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash '
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 619,963
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments {8,412)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 10,000
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (1,125,077)
Prepaid expenses 159,659
Other 27,310
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {548,680)
Deferred support 595,025
Deferred revenue (36,109)
Maintenance reserve (3,210) -
Trust and retirement liabilities (15,753)
Total adjustments 325,284
Net cash provided by operating activities 535,051
Cash flows from investing activities . -
Acquisition of property and equipment (754,789)
Proceeds from sale of shori-term investments 214,426
Purchase of investments {365,561)
Net cash used in investing activities {905,924)
Cash flows from financing activitles
Repayments of iong-term debt (155,239
Net cash used in financing activities {155,239)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (626,112)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 2,088,994
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 2,462,882
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the fiscal year for interest $ 97,629

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE A - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Child and Family Service (the Organization) is a private, nonprofit organization providing
human services and advocacy for children and families in need in the State of Hawai
{State). Their primary purpose is siréngthening famifies and helping them to raise healthy
children. The Organization provides individuals, couples, families, and groups with a social
service delivery system that integrates professional counseling, family life education and
advocacy fo prevent and treat psychosocial problems related to maladaptive behavior,
communication and interpersonal relationships. In addition, they also provide services for
children and families needing adoption planning, protection, shelter, residential treatment
and alternative education. The Organization responds to changing community needs by
developing new programs, deleting obsolete ones and by altering services so that they
appropriately meet identified community needs.

Revenues are provided primarily from contractual arrangements with various governmental
departments and agencies with state and federal funds. Other sources of revenues include
grants from trusts and foundations, program service fees, and coniributions.

NOTE B - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) . Principles of consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Organization, CFS Real Property, Inc. (CFSRP), and Tuming Point for
Families, Inc. (TPFF).

CFSRP is a Hawaii nonprofit organization. CFSRP’s purpose is for purchasing,
holding and developing real property and other investment assets for charitabie
purposes in support of the Organization. The Otganization has a supporting interest in
the CFSRP.

TPFF is a Hawaii nonprofit organization which provides programs and services fo
reduce and eliminate the incidence of family violence in the County of Hawaii. TPFF
also provides temporary shelier and other service for victims of domestic abuse. TPFF
became an affiliate of the Organization in December 2005.

All significant inter-organization transactions and balances have been eliminated as of
June 30, 20086, and for the fiscal year then ended.

(2) Basis of accounting and financial statement preseniation - The consolidated
financial statements of the Organization and related affiliates have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting. Net assets, public support and revenues and
expenses are classified based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted - Net assets which are free of donor-imposed restrictions; all revenues,
expenses, gains and losses that are not changes in temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets.
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Child and Family Service -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE B - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3

(4)

(5)

(6)

)

Temporarily Restricted - Net assets whose use by the Organization is limited by
donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or that can be fulfilled
by actions of the Organization pursuant o those stipulations. -

Permanently Restricfed‘ - Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed
restrictions that neither expire with the passage of time nor can be fulfilled or
otherwise removed by actions of the Organization.

Use of estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generaliy accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents - The Organization considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less tc be cash
equivalents.

Promises to give - Unconditional promises to -give are recognized as contribution
revenue in the period received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses
depending on the form of the benefits received. Unconditional promises to give are
fecorded at net realizable value if expected to be collected in one year and at fair
value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditional promises to give
are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Investments - Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values and all investments in debt securities are reported at their fair values in the
consolidated statement of financiat position. Unrealized gains and losses are included
in the change in net assets. Investment income and gains restricted by a donor are
reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met (either by
passage of time or by use) in the reporting period in which the income and gains are
recognized. Certain investments are held in pooled investment funds at fair value.

Property and equipment - Properly and equipment are recorded at cost, Acquisitions
in excess of $1,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient
to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations over their estimated useful lives
of 3 to 30 years and are computed using the straight-line msthod. '

Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged 1o expense;
expenditures for betterments are capitalized. Property refired or otherwise disposed of
is removed from the appropriate asset and related accumulated depreciation
accounts. Gains and losses on sale of assets are reflected in current operations.



Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
' June 30, 2006

NOTE B - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Deferred support - The Organization records grant awards accounted for as
exchange fransactions as refundable advances uniil the related services are
performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.

Restricted and unrestricted revenue and support - Contributions, revenues, and

" support are recorded in the period earned as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or

permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor restrictions.

Support that is restricted by the grantor or donor is reported as an increase in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Recognition of government grani revenue - Government grants are recsived from
the federal, state and municipal governments. Revenues on cost reimbursement
contracts are recognized when allowable and reimbursable expenses are incurred,
and upon ‘meeting the legal and contractual requirements of -the funding source.
Revenues on fee for service contracts are recognized when the services required by
the contractual agreements are satisfactorily performed. These revenues are generally
considered exchange transactions, and are thereby recorded as revenues of the
unrestricted net asset class. Funding received in advance of the applicable revenue
recognition criteria is recorded as deferred support in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Donated services and facllities - Donated services are recognized as contributions if
the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills,
are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Organization. Significant and essential donated services are performed by various
individuals and businesses to support the Organization’s programs and fundraising
activities. These services have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as the criterlas were not met.

Functional allocation of expenses - The cosis of providing the various programs
and other aclivities are summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated
statement of activities. Accordingly, costs are allocated to the benefited programs and
supporting services based on direct costs incurred and management's estimate of
resources consumed by these functions.

Income taxes - The Organization is exempt from income taxation under Section
501{c)(3} of the Internal Revenue Code.
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: Child and Family Service
. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( June 30, 2006

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS

The carrying values of the Organization's investments at June 30, 2006, were as follows:

Amount
Money market $ 277917
Mutual funds 329,711
U.S. government obligations 323,881
Carporate bonds 24,368
Equity securities 1,112,258
$2.068.135
\ Investment return on the investments and other sources are summarized as foliows:
Amount
Interest and dividend income $ 148,337
Realized gain 36,724
( Unrealized loss _(28.312)
) $_156.749

Expenses relating to investment revenues, including custodial fees and investment advisory
fees amounted to $8,202 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

NOTE D - CHARITABLE REMAINDER TRUSTS AND CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITIES

The Organization administers various charitable remainder trusts and charitable gift
annuities whereby the donor contributes assets in exchange for distributions for a specified
period of fime fo the donor or other beneficiaries. At the end of the specified time, the
remaining assets are available for the Organization’s use. Assets received are recorded at
fair value on the date the agreement or unitrust is recognized, and a liability equal to the
present value of the future distributions recorded. The difference between the fair value of
the assets received and the liability to the donor or other beneficiaries is recognized as
contribution revenus.

The Organization has recorded the following amounts related to the trusts and giit annuities:

Amouni
Trust and gift annuity assets $ 181,267
Present value of future distributions $ 29,089
Change in value of assets $§ (11,818)
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Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE E - CFS WEST OAHU CENTER

CFSRP owns the facility known as the CFS West Oahu Center (Center) in Ewa Beach,
Hawaii. The facility was financed through pledges from individuals, organizations and
foundations, a state grant and bank borrowings. Phase | of the Center was completed in
September 1997, and Phase !l of the Center was completed in April 1998.

Weinberg Foundation - The Organization received $1.5 million from the Harry and Jeanette
Weinberg Foundation, Inc. (Weinberg) for the development of the Center, The agreement with
Weinberg required the Organization to ralse a $1 million endowment fund, whereby the
income from the ‘endowment would be used for the maintenance and upkeep of the Center.
The Organization had five years following the completion of the construction of the Center to
fund the endowment fund. The Organization was required to return the contribution if the
endowment fund was not properly funded. The $1.5 million pledge was transferred to CFSRP
effective July 1, 1996 and the Center was completed in 1998.

In January 2002, CFSRP obtained an amendment to the agresment to deposit $104,003
annually to a separate Dedicated Capital Improvement Account for the maintenance and
upkeep of the Center in place of raising the $1 milion endowment fund. Deposits 1o this
account began in July 2002, and are required to be continued unfil July 2019. The total
amount of the reserve account was $428,436 as of June 30, 20086.

Siate of Hawaii - In 1996, the Organization entered into an agreement to provide space in
the Center to the State over a 30-year, rent-free term. In exchange for the rental space, the
State provided the Organization with a grant to provide financial assistance in the
development of the Center. The Organization recorded a portion of the grant as deferred rent.
The arrangement was transferred to CFSRP effective July 1, 1996 Deferred rent revenue
totaled $783,880 as of June 30, 2006.

12



Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
) June 30, 2006

NOTE F - NOTES PAYABLE

Long-term obligations are summarized as follows:
Amount

CFSRP

Morigage payable to Bank. of Hawaii and First
Hawailan Bank in monthly installments equal to a
principal amount of $11,841 plus all monthly
accrued interest (6.02% at June 30, 2006}, due
December 2013. The note is secured by a first
mortgage on the Center property and by a security
interest in pledges and grants. $ 1,076,993

Note payable to the United States Depariment of
Agricuiture Rural -Housing Service in  monthly
installiments of $1,410, including interest at 4.75%,
due April 2031, secured by a security interest in all its
income due or 10 become due to and all assessments
imposed or to be imposed by CFSRP. 246,074

TPFF

Note payable fo Bank of Hawail, adjustable interest
rate (6.375% at June 30, 2006) in monthly
payments of $1,875, including escrow and interest
payments, due September 2019. The noie is
collateralized by a mortgage over the Kona Shelfter

leasehold interest. ' 115,696
‘ 1,438,763
Less current maturitics 164.300
$ 1,284 463

The aggregate maturities of the notes payable for future years are as follows:

Fisca! Year Ending June 30, Amount

2007 $ 154,300

2008 155,000

2009 155,700

2010 156,400

2011 157,100

Thereafter 660,263

$ 1438763
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Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE F - NOTES PAYABLE (Continued)

Total interest expense amounted to $97,629 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

The Organization has a $3,500,000 revolving line of credit with a bank, bearing interest at
9.50%, secured by receivables, equipment, furniture and fixtures. This line of credit expires
May 1, 2007. There were no outstanding borrowings as of June 30, 2006.

The Organization also has available a $100,000 line of credit with advances availabte for up
to a year. The interest rate at June 30, 2006, was 10.39% and the line of credit expires in
July 2007, The line of credit is collateralized by substantially all assets of the Organization.
The outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2006, was $93,973.

NOTE G - COMMITMENTS
Operating leases
As lessee - The Organizétion leases various properties and facilities in which to
conduct its programs. The Organization also leases various office equipment and

vehicles. Minimum future rental payments under noncancelable operating leases
having initial or remaining terms of more than one year are summarized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount

20067 $ 1,724,000

2008 1,113,000

2009 653,000

2010 329,000

2011 62,000
Thereatter 74,500

$ 3.955.500

As lessor - The Organization rents a portion of its facilities to others. At June 30, 2006,
approximate future minimum lease rental income from third parties on noncancelable
operating leases with remaining terms of one year or more, excluding amortization of
rents received in advance, were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount

2007 $ 137,000

2008 66,000

2009 - 51,000

2010 . 52,000

2011 52,000

Thereafter 631.000

$ 1.039.000
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Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE H - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Net asseis are released from donor restrictions primarily by incurring expenses, which
satisfy the restricted purposes, or after a specified date. Temporarily restricted net assets
as of June 30, 2006, were as follows:

2006

Administration/Management and General $ 25,109
Aloha United Way 389,695
Alternative Education 63,178
Community Center 42,545
Development 4,560
Domestic Abuse 94,984
Head Start 14,627
Heaithy Start 15,160
Senior Programs ‘ 88,380
Therapeutic Programs 34,133
Violerice Programs ‘ 970
CFSRP . 47,000
TPFF 22,700
Other specific restricted - 241,373

$ 1084314

NOTE | - CONCENTRATIONS

The Organization maintains its cash accounts at various financial institutions. Cash
balances in accounts at each bank are insured up to $100,000 per account holder by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FPIC). In assessing ifs concentration of credit risk
related to cash, the QOrganization places its cash in financial institutions, which may at times
exceed FDIC insurance limits. The Organization also receives a subsiantial amount of its
suppott.from state and federal government agencies. Significant reductions, if any, in the
level of this support may have an adverse effect on the Organization’s programs and
activities.

NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement pian - All full-time non-bargaining employees of the
Organization who have at least 1,000 hours of service during the plan year are eligible fo
participate in a 403(b) defined contribution plan. Participants may elect to contribute up to
15% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. The plan allows the Organization
to make an elective contribution of up to 2% of the participants’ compensation. Union
members may also elect to participate in this ptan. Total contributions to the 403(b) plan
were approximately $129,500 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

15



N

g

Child and Family Service
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2006

NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

TPFF has a retirement plan that covers all gligible employees of TPFF. The amount of the
employer contributions, if any, is determined by an annual written resolution of the board of
directors. Allocation of employer contributions among participants in the plan is made in
proportion to the participant’s annual compensation. The board of directors elected not fo
make a contribution to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Other post-retirement benefit plan - The Organization has a benefit plan that provides
post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits to retirees who meet certain
qualifications. The plan is unfunded. Effective November 1, 1998, the plan was amended to
curtail acerual of further benefits.

The net periodic post-retirement benefits cost was $15,075 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, The weighted-average discount rate used to measure the-accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation was 6.33% as of June 30, 2006. The accrued post-refirement
benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position was
$164,714 as of June 30, 2006.

The health care cost trend rate represents the rate of long-term expected growth of medical
benefits under the plan resulting from non-age-related factors. The heaith care cost trend
rate used to measure the expected cost of benefits covered by the plan was 8% in fiscal
year 2006, reducing to 5% -over a ten-year period for health maintenance organization
premiums.

The effect of a one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate
increases the periodic post-retirement benefit costs by approximately $420 in fiscal year
2006. Accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation for health care benefits increased by
approximately $8,000 as of June 30, 2006.

NOTE K - CONSOLIDATION OF TURNING POINT FOR FAMILIES, INC.

The Organization entered into an affiliation agreement on December 28, 2005, with Turning
Point For Families, Inc. (TPFF), a Hawaii nonprofit corporation. The agreement gave the
Organization conirol of TPFF through a majority voting interest in its governing board and also
provides TPFF to benefit from the management, administrative, and programmatic services
that the Organization has available. The Organization may make financial contributions to
TPFF in support of its working capital and other needs and shall provide administrative and
management support as necessary. During fiscal year 2006, the Organization and TPFF did
not conduct any inter-organizational financial transactions.

The activities of TPFF are combined with the Organization and reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as of the earliest year presented using the pooling of interests method as
required by the Accounting Principles Board (APB) Number 16 Business Combinations. As a
result, net assets as of June 30, 2005, were restated to reflect the consolidation of TPFF.
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Child and Family Service
_ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( June 30, 2006

NOTE K - CONSOLIDATION OF TURNING POINT FOR FAMILIES, INC. (Continued)

Details of the resuilts of operations of the previously separate organizations for the period before
the affiliation agreement was consummated on December 28, 2005 were as foliows: _

_Organization* - TPFF
Revenues $ 17,152,658 $ 809,170
Expenses . /16,681,925 752,589
Change in net assets $ __ 470633 $ _b66581

* Amounts include CFSRP.

NOTE L - MAINTENANCE RESERVE

The Organization receives federal grant funds from a Community Development Block Grant

(CDBG) Program through the City and County of Honolulu (City} for acquisition and

improvements of certain buildings to be used for Organization’s programs. The contract

requirements stipulate that any excess program income generated from these properties
( are to be returned to the City.

An agreement was made between the Organization and the City that any excess program
income would be held and set aside in a maintenance reserve fund for use in future
maintenance costs of the fagilities in lieu of monthly remittance to the City.

The maintenance reserve as of June 30, 2006, consisted of the following:

Amount
Balance as of June 30, 2005 $ 48,303
Excess program income as of June 30, 2006 ' 68,920.
Less maintenance costs for June 30, 2006 (72,130}
. Balance as of June 30, 2006 $ _45,093
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Child and Family Service

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

{ June 30, 2006
Efiminating
CFS CFSRP TPFF Entries - Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,784629 $ 436,189 $ 242,064 § ~ § 2462,882
Accounts receivable 6,632,187 147,355 80,042 (131,353} a 6,728,231
Prepaid expenses 374,379 16,632 3.910 - 394 921
Total cutrent assets 8,791,195 600,176 328,016 (131,353) 9,586,034
INVESTMENTS
Investments 1,309,988 329,711 - - 1,639,699
Investment reserve for capital
improvements — 428,436 - -- 428,436
1,309,988 758,147 - - 2,068,135
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
. Buildings, leasehold improvements
and leasehold interest 101,317 12,687,046 333,782 - 13,122,145
Furniture and equipment 2,236,658 151,351 169,726 - 2,557,735
Vehicles 134,347 68,649 22,007 - 225,003
2472322 12,907,046 525,515 - 15,904,883
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization 1,951,488 3,734,749 315,211 - 6,001,448
. 520,834 9,172,297 210,304 - 9,903,435
Leased equipment under '
capital lease - - - - -
Land - 1,068,701 - - 1,068,701
Construction in progress - 527,832 - - 527,832
520,834 10,768,830 210,304 -~ 11,499,968
OTHER ASSETS 341,081 - 8,804 (25,500) OV 324,385
$ 10,963,008 § 12,127,153 § 5451 $ (156.853) § 23478522

(1) - To eliminate intercompany transactions.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABIUITIES
Current maturities of notes

payable
Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities

Deferred support
Due fo affiliate
Maintenance reserve

“Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
‘Notes payable, less cument

maturities

OTHER LIABILITIES

Deferred rent

Trust liabilities and post-
retirement benefit obligations

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
- Permanently restricted

Eliminating

CFS CFSRP TPFF Entries Total
$ ~ $ 148800 $ 5700 $ - 154,300
- - 93,973 - 93,973
1,528,368 81,664 98,200 (31,353} 1,656,868
1,044,666 - 78,131 - 1,122,797
100,000 25,500 (125,500) @ -
- 45,093 - - 45,093
2,673,034 280,847 276,004 (156,853) 3,073,032
- 1174467 109,99 - 1284463
- 783,880 - - 783,880
191,795 - - - 191,795
191,795 783,860 ~ ~ 975,675
6,083,144 9,840,959 136,424 - 16,960,527
1,014,614 47,000 22,700 - 1,084,314
100,511 - - - 100,511
8,098,269 9,887,959 159,124 - 18,145,352
$ 10,963,008 $ 12,127,153 ¢ 545124 § (156,858) § 23478522




CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Public support
Government contracts
Grants
United Way
Contributions and fundraising

Total public support

Hevenue
Fees for services
Investment income
Rental income
Other revenue

Total revenue

Total public support
and revenue

EXPENSES
Community services
Management and general
Development
Facilities management
CFS Real Property
TPFF

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING
OF FISCAL YEAR, RESTATED

NET ASSETS AT END
OF FISCAL YEAR

Child and Family Service

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

: Eliminating
CFS CFSRP TPFF Entries Toltal
$ 20339057 $ 601565 § 1282959 § - § 31,223,581
550,600 - 09,925 - 659,525
844,678 - 40,000 - 884,678
456,753 - 7,719 - 464,472
31,200,088 601,565 1,430,603 - 33,232,256
536,007 - 134,972 260,000 O 411,959
126,311 28,304 2,134 - 156,748
- 1,192,752 - 1,023,597 O 169,155
94,302 121,200 9,594 T - 225096
757,610 1,342,256 146,700 1,283,597 962,969
31,057,698 1,943,821 1,577,303 1,283,507 34,195,205
20,722,636 - - (1,005,004) @ 28,717,542
1,389,927 - - (6,263) " 1,383,664
253,299 - - {218y 253,081
248,550 - - (12,022) 236,528
- 1,510,338 - (260,000 1,250,338
- - 1,493,737 ~ 1,493,737
31,614,412 1,510,338 - 1,493,737 (1,283597) 33,334,890
343,286 433,483 83566 - 860,335
7,754,983 0,454,476 75,558 - 17,285,017
$ 8008263 $ 0887959 $ 159,124 § -~ § 18,145,352

(1) - To eliminate intercompany transactions.
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NISHIHAMA & KISHIDA, CPA’s, INC. TELEPHONE (808) 524-225%
(__ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX (808) 523-2090

To the Board of Directors
Child and Family Service

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Child and
Family Service (CFS) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we considered CFS’
internal control to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the consoclidated financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal
control.

However, during our audit, we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for

strengthening internal controls and- operating efficiency. The memorandum that

accompanies this report summarizes our findings and recommendations regarding those
( ' matters. This letter does not affect our report dated December 13, 2005, on the
. consolidated financial statements of CFS.

Honolulu, Hawaii
December 13, 2005



CURRENT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

ENSURE PROPER UNDERSTANDING OF THE HEAD START 90% LOW-
INCOME REQUIREMENT

During our review of the Head Start Program (CFDA 93.600), we noted that one of
the compliance requirements was that at least 90% of the enrollees must come
from families whose income is below the official federal poverty guidelines or who
are receiving public assistance.

We determined that only 85% of the enrollees met the low-income requirement for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This conditon was a result of a
misunderstanding that applicants receiving Med Quest benefits were income-
eligible. CFS received notice from the Head Start Region IX Office that applicants
who received Med Quest benefits were also eligible for the Head Start Program
and met the low-income requirement. Therefore, from January to March 2005, the
Head Start Program enrolled students who were receiving Med Quest benefi ts as
income-eligible. In March 2005, CFS’'s program personnel determined that
enrollees who received Med Quest benefits did not automatically qualify as
income-eligible. At that point, CFS program personnel stopped using Med Quest
as a measure of income-eligibility.

A federal monitoring team reviewed the Head Start Program in May 2005. The
monitoring team was notified of the non compliance with regards to the 90% of
families below the official federal poverty guidelines requirement. The report issued
by the monitoring team did not consider this situation to be an area of non-
compliance or deficiency.

Recommendation

CFS should ensure that program personnel have a proper understanding of the
requnrements regarding the income eligibility of the Head Start program. CFS
program personnel should also ensure that these requirement levels are properly
met for compliance with federal guidelines.

EXPAND EFFORTS TO ENSURE HEAD START PROGRAM ENROLLMENT
REQUIREMENTS ARE MET OR OBTAIN WAIVER FROM THE GRANTOR

Based on our review of the award agreement for the budget period July 1, 2004, to
June 30, 2005, and our inquiry with the program administrator, we determined that
the required enroliment level was 161 students for the Head Start Program (CFDA
93.600). The program administrator, due to a shortage of enrollees on the island of



Kauai, determined that CFS did not adhere to the enrollment level of 161 students
as specified in the award agreement. This shortfall in enrollment was also reported
by the federal monitoring team in May 2005, and resulted in a noncompliance
condition in their monitoring repott.

Recommendation

The Head Start Program should expand its efforts to promote the services offered
through flyers, presentations, and other media. CFS should also consider
obtaining a waiver to meet the enroliment level or request the level to be lowered.

ENSURE FORMAL POLICY OVER IN-KIND AND MATCHING
CONTRIBUTIONS IS ADHERED TO

When we tested matching, level of effort, and earmarking requirements for the
Promoting Safe and Stable Families (CFDA 93.556), we noted that there was a
lack of adequate supporting documentation for the in-kind and matching
amounts reflected in the reports. We also noted other instances where in-kind
and matching amounts were not recorded properly due to the way information
was presented on the supporting documentation.

CFS does not have a formal policy to address the in-kind and matching
contributions for various programs requiring matching funds. However, it is our
understanding that a formal policy was implemented in the first quarter of FY
2006.

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, states that, “...all contributions, including cash and third party in-
kind, shall be accepted as part of the recipient's cost sharing or matching when
such contributions are verifiable from the recipient’s records.”

Recommendation

CFS should ensure that the formal policy to address the in-kind and matching
contributions is being adhered to and ensure that amounts are properly
supported as required for all programs.

ESTABLISH CONTROLS TO MONITOR SPENDING OF TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CFS accounts for funds received from donors that has time or use restrictions
and codes these funds as temporarily restricted net assets. As expenses are
incurred that meet the donor restrictions, the account balances are reduced



accordingly. During our review of these accounts, we noted that expenses were
charged against certain temporarily restricted net assets even when the balance
was $-0- for that funding source. In some cases, the balance of the accounts
was in the negative position where expenses exceeded the funds available in the
account. As a result, the temporarily restricted net assets were not accurately
stated and monies from unrestricted resources were used to pay for certain of
these expenses.

Recommendation

CFS should establish controls to monitor the spending of the temporarily
restricted net assets, which would include the tracking of what was received,
what was spent and the amount available in each temporarily restricted net

asset,
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Child and Family Service
CONTINUUM OF CARE

The services provided by Child and Family Service are grouped into four program areas:

Early Childhcod Services
Children’s Services

Adult and Family Services
Behavioral Health Services

The programs within each area are listed below:

EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES

1. Baby S.AF.E. 4. Enbanced Healthy Start
*»  Kauai =  Kauai
2. Head Start = QOahu
*  Kauai 5. Perinatal Services
3. Healthy Start «  Kauai
= Kauai 8. Pre-Plus Preschool
= QOahu (Central, Waianae and Leeward) = Kauai
CHILDREN’S SERVICES
1. Alternative Education — Hale O Ulu 5. Adoptions
»  Leeward Oahu = Statewide
2. Community Center 8. Post Permanency Services
= Kauai (Waimea and Kapaa) =  Kauai
3. Comprehensive Counseling Support = Maui
Services (CCSS) « Qsghu
r  Oahu (Leeward and Central) 7. Independent Living Services
= Maui = Kauai
4, Family Strengthening Services B. Sex Abuse Treatment Services
=  Hilo = Hilo
»  Kauai * Kona
=  Oahu *  Maui
= Qahu
ADULT AND FAMILY SERVICES -
1. Community Health Education 7. Senior Caregiver Respile
= Konha »  Oahu
2. Domestic Abuse & Transitionai Shelters 8. Senior Case Management
= Qahu (Honolulu and Leeward) = Qahu
= Hilo (Hale Ohana) 9. Senior Groups — Health Maintenance
3. Domestic Violence Advocacy =  Qahu
»  Hilo 10. Senior Homemaker Services (Adult Chore)
=  Kona = Qahu
»  Maui 11. Supportive Housing and Residential
*  Qazhu Enrichment (SHARE)
4. Developing Options to Viclence : = (Oahu
= Maui i2. REACH (Responsiveness, Encouragement
« Qahu and Assistance through Counseling & Help)
5. Employment Services = QOahu
» Job Creation - 13. Sex Assault Support Services

= |Immigrant and Refugee Oahu
6. Ohana Care
= QOahu

»  Maui

ADM-08, Attachment 1
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Child and Family Service
CONTINUUM OF CARE

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES

1. Counseling Services 7. Community Based Residential
*  Kauai = Qahu (Ka Pa Ola)
2. Intensive Learning Center 8. Therapeutic Group Homes
=  Oahu {Leeward) = Kona (Kona Group Home)
3. Cirisis Mobile Qutreach = Oahu (Julia House and Hale Holopono)
» Hilo 9. Special Schools
= Kona =  Qahu (Hau'oli Na Keiki and Mehana)
*  Maui 10. Community Based Crisis Group Home
4. Employee Assistance Program « Hilo
= Statewide » Kona
5. Therapeutic Foster Homes 11. Respite Home
= Hilo « Hilo
= Kona = Kona
= Maui 12. Crisis Therapeutic Foster Home
=  Qahu = Maui
6. Multisystemic Therapy Services 13. Respite Therapeutic Foster Home
* Hilo = Maui

= Qahu

ADM-08, Aftachment 1

Date/Rev. 10/00; 9/18/03;9/21/06; 12/15/06; 03/16/07; 8/10/07
. ~Page2of2



Child and Family Service
Program Descriptions
November 2007

EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES

Baby S.A.F.E.

This program provides drug and alcohot screenings and assessments, outreach and early
intervention services, case management, referrals to community resources, and education and
skill-building classes. Services are provided to pregnant and post-partum women at high risk for
substance abuse, and are offered island-wide in whatever locations are most convenient to
clients. Baby S.A.F.E. has been offering services on Kauai since July 2000.

Head Start ‘

Head Start is a federally funded preschool program for 3 and 4 year old children at no cost for
income-eligible children. Head Start began as part of the War on Poverty efforts in the late
1960's and has been on the island of Kauai since 1967. Child and Family Service - Kauai Head
Start began serving children in the year 2000 and now provides eight centers around the-island.
The program is contracted to serve 148 children. Head Start has a comprehensive program of
educational, health and social services designed to help the child and parents be prepared for
school.

Healthy Start — Home Visiting

Serves environmentally at-risk families of children, newborn to three years of age. The infants
and children are considered at-risk for child abuse and neglect and developmental delays. The
program provides comprehensive home visitation, child development screening and
intervention, as well as psychosocial assessment, and motivational readiness for treatment and
brief counseling. The intensity of the program varies over the course of service, starting with
weekly home visits, and reducing the frequency as the family and child meet their goals.

Enhanced Healthy Start

Provides comprehensive Healthy Start paraprofessional home visitation services to Child
Welfare Services (CWS) clients and to GWS Diversion clients. Services are enhanced through
provision of substance abuse expertise through a Certified Substance Abuse Counselor.
Program staffing also includes a Registered Nurse to provide additional expertise in the area of

chiid development.

Perinatal Services

This program provides perinatal support services to high-risk pregnant women on Kauai who
are in their first trimester and supports their entry into early prenatal health care. The program is
designed 1o increase the number of women receiving prenatal care in their first trimester,
improve women's health by identifying health, economic, psycho-social and environmental risk
factors, connecting the women with the necessary and appropriate resources that meets their
needs, improve birth outcomes, and to enhance early and adequate prenatal, postpartum and
interconception care. Services include outreach to high-risk populations; initial prenatal health
screen and assessments; care coordination such as referral and support to obtain and maintain
early and continuous prenatal health care; case management, follow-up assessments, and
support each trimester and during the six months post partum period.

Pre-Plus Preschool Services

The Pre-Plus Preschool program is a combination Head Start and private preschool program
funded by the Department of Human Services. The program is located on the grounds of
Kilauea Elementary School on Kauai and provides affordable quality preschool services to
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children ages 3 to 5 years old. The program targets families who meet the income guidelines of
income at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) but do not qualify at the more
stringent income requirements of the Head Start program (at or befow 100% of the FPL). The
school offers a full year, full-day education and supports the increasing number of parents who
are working, in training programs, attending school or trying to enter the work force but still
cannot afford quality preschool services for their children.

CHILDREN’S SERVICES

Alternative Education - Hale O Ulu and STEP Ii

Hale O Ulu is a co-ed secondary alternative education school for at-tisk youth that provides
education, clinical counseling, and social services to students and families who have social
adjustment, emotional, or school related difficulties. Students, who are unable to adjust to a
traditional education system, are referred by the DOE or Judiciary. STEP il students
experienced failures in the school system and dropped out of school. Wanting to earn their high
school diploma and to become job ready motivates them to make a self-referral. For many,
HOU and STEP [l may be their last opportunity to become educationally successful and earmn a
high school dipioma.

Community Centers

In partnership with a community Ohana Board and other communlty agencies, provides family
support and family preservation services to the families in defined areas of Kauai. Incorporating
a community family center model, Community Centers provide a healing and nurturing
environment in which intervention services are interwoven with prevention activities. Services
include information and referral, emergency food pantry, emergency clothes closet, parent skills
classes, outreach activities to engage hard to reach families, individual and family counseling,
and community activities and cultural awareness activities.

Comprehensive Counseling and Support Services (CCSS)

Through. counseling and support services, this program enhances the well being of childrenin a
safe family environment, and reduces reports of child abuse and neglect (CAN) to the Child
Welfare Service Section (CWSS). The goal is to help adult caregivers provide their child with a
safe, permanent home. All adult carstakers referred by the Department of Human Services are
eligible for the CCSS program.

Family Strengthening Services

Provides free intervention services through a voluntary home visitor program to assist families
who are referred by DHS, Child Welfare Services (CWS) Intake Unit. The FSS program is
intended to avert families from CWS and in turn strengthen, empower, support, and assist each
family with their individualized needs. This is accomplished by providing short-term, outreach
services and by providing information and linkages to private and public resources. The
program is an efficient and effective way to strengthen families who are identified by CWS as
being at low to moderate risk of harming their children, thus providing a safer and more
supporiive home environment
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Adoptions

Licensed through the Department of Human Services (DHS) as a child placing organization, the
program assists DHS families to finalize their adoption process by completing the adoptive
family’s home study. The adoption program is also licensed to assist Hawaii families who wish
to adopt domestically from another state and need home study and post placement services. It
is also licensed to complete international adoptions from China and the Philippines. The
program is affiliated with Holt International-Children’s Services to assist Hawaii families with
their adoptions from other countries such as Korea, Guatemala, and Vietnam.

Post Permanency Service

Provides a free and voluntary program designed to preserve the placement of adoptive children
who are in long-term, permanent placement with a new family. Child and Family Service have
been successfully providing permanency support services to families on Oahu since 1999 and
on Kauai and Maui since 2000. The purpose of the program is to prevent the disruption of the
newly formed family unit by providing custom-tailored support, intervention and education. Staif
meets the family in their own home at times most convenient to the family.

independent Living Services

Provides assistance to foster youth to learn age and develcpmentally appropriate hfe skills and
fo support a successful transition to independent adulithood. Youth are generally taught life
skills such as learning physical/emotional/psychological/spiritual self-care, decision making,
problem solving, communication, money management, health education, accessing community
services, and defining and working toward vocational and/or educational goals.

Sex Abuse Treatment Services

Provides a comprehensive service model for families and individuals who have experienced
intra-familial sexual abuse. Services are provided to child and adult victims, non-offending
pariners, alleged juvenile and adult offenders, and siblings. Treatment is provided through
individual, dyad, family therapy and an extensive group program. The various components of
the program are designed to reinforce each other for more comprehensive treatment.

ADULT AND FAMILY SERVICES

Community Health Education

Implements a community based health education program that focuses on providing family
planning and reproductive health services education to the following populations: School aged
populations — K-12; Individuals of reproductive age (14 years-44 years old); Community
organizations serving those individuals; and Hard to reach populations who may be at high risk
for unprotected sexual activity due to culfural, developmental or health factors including males,
teens, homeless individuals, and substance abusers and service providers serving the hard to

reach populations.

Domestic Abuse and Transitional Shelters

The Domestic Abuse Shelters (DAS) provide victims of domestic violence and their families with
a safe haven of temporary shelter, provision for basic needs (food, clothing etc.), counseling
and services for children. Transitional Apariment Program (TAP} provides housing for victims
who need safety and support and are ready to go to school/work. Clients learn dynamics of
domestic violence, develop safety plan, improve self-esteem and learn healthy parenting skills.
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Children develop safety plans and learn they’re not responsible for domestic violence. Length of
stay varies depending on individual needs, up to 90 days in the Shelters and up to 12 months at
the Transitional Apartments. The Shelters have been in operation for 24 years on Oahu and 10
years in Hilo. The Transitional Apartments have been in operation for 14 years.

Domestic Viclence Advocacy

The program is designed to provide assistance to Temporary Assistance to Needy Families
(TANF) and Temporary Assistance to Other Needy Families (TAONF) program recipients who
have or are currently experiencing issues of safety and functioning related to domestic violence,
which would adversely affect their ability to become self-sufficient, Activities include
assessment, service planning, counseling services, case management and linkage and referral,
The program has been in operation since 2002.

Developing Options to Violence

Provides a comprehensive array of services to reduce famliy violence in an effort to break the
cycle of violence. The program provides domestic violence intervention services to adulis,
juveniles, and children who have been adjudicated and/or referred by Family Court. The goal of
the program Is to change destructive behaviors and replace with positive, healthy behaviors.
The Oahu program has been in operation since 1986 and Maui since 1995.

Employment Services

+» Employment Core Services for Immigrants and Refugees. This program is designed to
provide employment preparation, counseling, and job placement to low-income and at-risk
immigrants and refugees to help them achieve self-reliance, greater self-sufficiency and
increased financial security. The program staff members effectively track the attainment of
successful outcomes, and guide and monitor client progression through the removatl of
bartiers to finding and keeping employment. Job preparation, acculiuration, job piacement,
job retention and maintenance are the services used in measuring attainment of outcomes
and gear clients towards the achievement of self-reliance. CFS has been serving the
immigrant and refugee population since 1983.

» Employment Creation. The program is designed to assist low-income persons, immigrants
and refugees to become self-employed in their own business. The program provides
specialized training in the area of small business creation and entrepreneurship, as well as
linkage to mentorship and available resources. Services include: entrepreneurial
assessment, English language classes, self-employment workshops, developing business
plans, individual business counseling, business management, resources and referrals, and
business support services. The program began in July 2007.

Ohana Care

Designed to improve the quality of life for families, care receivers, and caregivers by offering a
continuum of quality care that is flexible and individualized in order to prolong the care giving
relationship. The program actively assists the care receiver and the caregiver in implementing
an individualized, strengths based service plan on how to reduce stress and link with the
appropriate community resources. The program also provides supportive counseling. The

program has been in operation for & years.
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Senior Caregiver Respite

The program is designed to support caregivers who prowde regular, ongoing, unpaid care to
dependent elderly persons. The goal is to improve the quality of life of dependent elderly
individuals by enhancing the emotional and physical well-being of caregivers through linkage to
respite services. The program has been in operation for 20 years.

Senior Case Management

Case management services are designed to assist frail, elderly adults and their famity
member(s) or caregiver(s) in arranging for support that will allow them to remain at home and to
help empower them to manage their own situation. The program has been in operation for 17
years on Oahu and 5 years on Maui.

Senior Groups - Health Maintenance

Offers health support groups to aduits over the age of 60 who are frail, disabled, chronically ill,
depressed, and/or isolated. These adults are vuinerable and at risk for further decline and
institutionalization, and their caregivers are at risk for exhaustion and burnout. The Health
Maintenance Program also offers the No Fear of Falling fall prevention groups to adults 60
years and older that are at risk for falls due to two or more chronic health conditions. The
program has been in operation for 27 ysars.

Senior Homemaker Services (Adult Chore)

Services are provided to eldetly and disabled adults who need help with their routine household

chores in order to maintain a healthy lifestyle within their own homes. Recipients must qualify for
services under the Department of Human Services (DHS) guidelines. The program has been in

operation for 10 years.

Supportive Housing and Resident Enrichment Programs (SHARE)

Designed to assist older and disabled adults living in Punchbowl, Pumehana and Kalakaua
(Makua Alii and Paoakalani) Homes with individual and group services that will allow them to
continue living in their residences. Staff maintain on-site offices at all buildings to facilitate
services, which include case management for individual residents; “drop-in” services for
individuals who need less intensive assistance; arranging for health promotion, education, and
socialization group activities; and arranging for translation services for non-English and limited-
English speaking residents.

REACH (Responsiveness, Encouragement and Assistance through Counseling and Help)
Provides support, case management, and other services to older adults who are at risk of, or
have been physwaity, psychologically or sexually abused, financially exploited, or neglected by
others or by one’s self. REACH accepts referrals from the potential client, family members or
relatives, neighbors, social workers, and other heaith professionals or community service
agencies. Additionally, it provides information, assessment, collaborative case management,
financial counseling and management, referral to legal counseling and services, and referral to
other needed community services. The program has been in operation for 5 yrs.

Sexual Assault Support Services (SASS)

Provides crisis intervention, clinical, and community health promotion services to residents of
the County of Maui. Clinical services are for survivors of sexual abuse, child or adult, and their
families. Crisis Services include a crisis hotline and face to face crisis stabilization services.
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Community Health Promation services involve protection and prevention education
presentations to groups throughout the county. The program has been in operation for 7 years.

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES

General Counseling (Counseling Services)

Established on Kauai in 1994 to provide short-term professional clinical therapy and counseling
services for individuals, families and couples in need that would not be able to qualify for other
CFS programs. A qualified professional staff of therapists provides a full range of confidential
counseling services to meet the ongoing dynamic needs of the community at reasonable costs,
Costs are determined on a sliding scale depending on clients’ income.

Intensive Learning Center (ILC)

Designed to meet the educational and instructional needs of the DOE special needs students,
ages 12 to 20 years. CFS recognizes that success in school and gaining an education is crucial
to a student’s healthy and adaptive development. ILC provides personalized support, guidance
and skills necessary for these students to meet the expectations and demands of a regular
school setting. With comprehensive educational and behavioral support in a structured
academic environment, students are guided in developing skills necessary to meet the social
and behavioral demands of learning. |LC provides year-round programming.

Crisis Mobile Outreach (CMO)

Provides face-to-face assessment services for youth in an active state of psychiatric crisis
and/or youth whose caregivers can’t safely and adequately respond to their needs. If an out-of-
home placement is necessary o de-escalate the youth, CMO refers to Crisis Stabilization
services to provide short-term, acute residential intervention with twenty-four (24) hour services

and supervision.

Employee Assistance Program (Hawaii Employee Assistance Services)

The Hawaii Employment Assistance Services (HEAS) program contracts with businesses and
work organizations in both the private and public sector. HEAS offers a host of support services
for the workplace and for employees including: professional counseling, management
consultation, education, training, crisis management, substance abuse assessment and referral
for both Department of Transportation (DOT) Safety Sensitive and non-DOT. The service
approach is to offer short-term, solution-focused counseling and consultation that emphasizes
strategies for resolving problems. Child and Family Service has provided employee assistance
services since 1983. '

Therapeutic Foster Homes

Provides foster placement and clinical services for youth ages 12 to 20 that have been identified
as needing out-of-home placement with additional resources to accommodate their emotional,
behavioral, and mental health issues. Many of these youth have experienced losses,
disruptions, and trauma in their lives and have been unable to achieve stability in other
placements. The TFH program offers a system of support, counseling and skill building services
to clients as well as training and support to foster parents.
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Multi-Systemic Therapy (MST)

This program provides structured, comprehensive intervention for youth at risk and their
families. Multi-systemic therapy is based on a social ecological mode! (Bronfenbrenner, 1979)
that views youth behavior as being created, promoted and maintained by a variety of factors
beyond those internal to the youth. MST approaches antisocial and delinquent behaviors in
children and adolescents as a combination of family, school, peer group, and
cognitive/intellectual features that act upon one another.

Community Based Residential Program

Ka Pa Ola targets female youth ages 12-18 that have been identified by the Department of
Health as requiring out-of-home residential placement due to severe emotional and behavioral
problems. The program provides therapy, medication management, behavior management and
a special education classroom; family counseling is also provided. The program accepts youth
from throughout the state of Hawaii. Child and Family Service developed Ka Pa Ola in
response to Department of Health’s request to fili a gap in their service array.

Therapeutic Group Homes

The Therapeutic Group Homes (TGH) are designed for youth, ages 12 to 20, who require
twenty-four hour care and whose needs can best be met in a planned program of smalt group
living within a community-based setting. The TGH programs offer structure and order, which
allows the youth served to develop and enhance positive personal and interpersonal skills and
behaviors. Support and assistance are provided, as needed, to foster positive participation in
both group living and community activities.

Special Schools :

The Special Schools, Hau'oli Na Keiki and Mehana, provide educational and mental health
services to children ages 3-12 years diagnosed with autism and/or pervasive developmental-
delay. These youth have been unsuccessiul in a regular school environment. By providing a
highly structured, nurturing learning environment with supplemental behavioral health services,
youth are given specific instruction designed to meet the individual needs of the youth. Stafi
members are trained in empirically supported technigues that have proven to be effective with
this population and are provided in both one-to-one and small group activities. The program
includes a family support and training component which empowers families to advocate for and

support their children.

Community Based Crisis Group Home

Provides short-term, acute interventions to youth ages 12 to 20 experiencing a mental health
crisis. The program is provided in a small homelike group home as an altemative to acute care
or community hospital crisis stabilization. Normal length of stay is one to three days to stabilize
the crisis and transfer youth to a lower level of care.

Respite Home
The Respite program provides respite care as needed to families that are linked with the

Depariment of Health Child and Adolescent Mental Health Division. Respite services are
provided in a small homelike group home setting, and normal length of stay is two 1o three days.
Respite services are designed to give these families short-term dependable relief to allow them
to rejuvenate and provide a more stable family environment upon the youth's return, Positive
reinforcement, structure, and 24-hour support services are available in the respite home.
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Crisis Therapeutic Fosier Home

Provides foster placement and clinical services for youth ages 12 to 20 who have been
identified as needing out-of-home placement and are in crisis. Services are provided with
additional resources to accommodate their emotional, behavioral, and mental health issues.
Many of these youth have experienced losses, disruptions, and trauma in their lives and have
been unable to achieve stability in other placements. The TFH program offers a system of
support, counseling and skill building services to clients as well as training and support to foster

parents.

Respite Therapeutic Foster Home

Provides a safe, short-term and supportive environment in a foster home for youth with
emotional and/or behavioral challenges. This service provides support to the parent/ caregiver
in their efforts to continue caring for the youth in the home setting, thus reducing the risk of out

of home placement at a higher level of care.
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! Y . Procedure: RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Child & Family No: PRG-08-M
rsat, ot 1599 Date/Rev: 2M0/03; 6/7/04; 914/04; 2/25/05
COA STANDARDS:

G1.1.01-G1.1.03

OBJECTIVE:

Out of respect for the rights and dignity of each client served by Child and Family
Service (CFS), ail personnel and contractors are well informed on client rights and
responsibilities and implement standard processes for participation in the protection of
these rights at all levels of service delivery.

SCOPE:
This procedure applies to all CFS personnel and contractors.

RESPONSIBILITY:

All personnel and contractors are knowledgeable of client rights and participate in their
protection. All program personnel and direct service contractors are responsible to
follow the organization’s Client Rights and Responsibilities Document, inform clients
and/or their parent/legal guardian of their rights and responsibilities, and provide
sufficient information for them to make an informed choice about using the program'’s

services.

Program Managers are responsible to train staff on this procedure and ensure staff
compliance with it.

The Director of Quality Assurance is responsible for the periodic review and update of
this procedure in observance with changes in public law, and is responsible for
monitoring the organization’s adherence to this procedure.

PROCEDURE:
. CLIENT NOTIFICATION

A. Child and Family Service notifies all clients and families of their Rights through
the following:

1. Posting the Client Rights and Responsibilities document in the reception area
of all administrative and program offices. (Foster homes do not need to post
these.)

2. Providing the client/family with a copy of the Client Rights and
Responsibilities document on initial contact {See PRG-08-A Intake
procedure).

3. Reviewing the Client Rights and Responsibilities document with the
client/family, then sign and date the document.

Page 1 of 3
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rtvat, st siae 1555 Date/Rev: 2/10/03; 6/7/04; 9/14/04; 2/25/05

4. Giving the client/family a copy of the signed and dated Client Rights and
Responsibilities document.

B. If the client’s first language is not English, the program will make every effort
possible to provide the document in the major language group of the population
served.

C. The information is presented to clients with special communication needs in a
way that is appropriate and effective for their need,

il. PROGRAM REQUIRED RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Mandated clients: Individual rights may not be abridged unless specifically
required by legal mandate or court order. Program specific procedure(s) outline
the process for staff to follow and supporting documentation (a copy of the
mandate or court order) is placed in the client's record.

B. Program Specific: Each program will have program specific client rights,
including the following information in the second half of the CFS Righis and
Responsibilities document (see PRG-08-M Attachment 1).

1. Program specific information will include, at a minimum, the following:

a. Basic expectations for use of the program’s services,

b. Hours of operation,

c. Any rules, behavioral expectations and other factors that could result in
discharge or termination of services,

d. The right of a client to receive services in a manner that is non-coercive
and that protects the client’s right to self-determination, and

e. Contract specific rights and/or responsibilities.

C. At no time can information be removed from the attached Client Rights and
Responsibilities Document.

D. Requests for program specific client rights and responsibilities forms are
approved through the assigned Director of Program Services, prior to use by the
program.

Ill. CLIENT RIGHTS UNDER HIPAA

A. Below is a list of individual's rights under the HIPAA Privacy regulations (45 CFR)
and their associated CFS procedures.
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Child & Family No: PRG-08-M

SERVICE "

Date/Rev: 2/M10/03; 6/7/04; 9/14/04; 2/25/05

Privale, sonpeolil sincs 189%

1. Right to receive written Notice of Privacy Practices (See PRG-13-B Notice of
Privacy Practice procedure),

2. Right to access their protected health information (PHI) (See PRG-05-D
Individual's Rights Related to Protected Health Information (PHI) procedure),

3. Right to request amendment of their PHI (See PRG-05-D Individual's Rights
Related to Protected Healih Information (PHI) procedure),

4. Right to request restrictions on use/disclosure of PHI (See PRG-05-D
Individual's Rights Related to Protected Health Information (PHI) procedure),

5. Right to an accounting of disclosures of PHI (See PRG-13-F Accounting for
Disclosure of Protected Health information procedure), and

6. Right to request confidential communications (See PRG-05-E Client Request
for Alternate Method of Communication procedure).

IV. CLIENT RIGHTS ADVISOR

A. The Director of Quality Assurance is designated as Child and Family Service's
Rights Advisor.

B. In the absence of the Director of Quality Assurance, the Accreditation and
. Privacy Officer will serve as Rights Advisor.

V. DOCUMENTATION
Once the client and/or parent/legal guardian has signed and dated the Client Rights
and Responsibilities Document, they receive a copy and the original is placed in the
client’s record.

This administrative procedure is supplemented at the program and/or department

level by program specific procedures or departmental standard operating
procedures..

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Client Rights and Responsibilities Document

APPROVED:

Geri Marulio, R.N,, Dr. PH
President and CEO
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Child &Family Client Rights and Responsibilities Document

SERVICE
Privatc, nonprofit since 1898

CLIENT RIGHTS:

#*

¥

*

The right to a humane service and treatment environment that affords reasonable protection
from harm and appropriate prlvacy

The right to treatment and services under conditions that are free from unlawful
discrimination and support your personal liberty. Such liberty will be restricted only as
necessary to comply with treatment needs, law, and judicial orders.

The right to be provided with a reasonable explanation of all aspects of your services and/or
treatment.

# The right to confidentiality of records except when staff are mandated by law to report

suspected dependent adult abuse, child abuse and/or neglect; when handling any legal
proceedings or when conditions of emergency occur and/or there are threats of homicide or
suicide. .

The right to written notice of privacy practices, including the right to request that we
communicate with you about your protected health information (PHI) at an alternative
location in accordance with CFS policy and procedures.

The right to obtain an accounting of disclosures made and restrict certain disclosures of your
protected health information, at your request and in accordance with CFS policy and
procedures.

The right to an individualized, written service and/or treatment plan developed promptly. You
have the right to participate in any service and/or treatment planning including revisions.
Your service and/or treaiment will be according to this plan. There will be petiodic review
and reassessment of this plan, and appropriate revisions will be made.

# The right to have access to your record upon request and in accordance with CFS policy

and procedures.

# The right to submit written request to correct, amend or supplement any portions of your

LR 3 T I . B

record that you feel are not accurate, relevant, or complete, according to CFS policy and
procedures.

The right to a location for delivery of service that is least restrictive and the most convenient
among available alternatives.

The right to select a provider agency and to receive a CFS referral to another provider
agency.

The right to file complaint/grievance w;th respect to infringement of these rights, including
the right to have such grievances considered in a fair, timely, and impartial manner.

The right to be informed promptly, in appropriate language so that you can understand your
rights described in this section.

The right to exercise your rights described in this section without any negative sffect on your
services and/or treatment.

The right to access a qualified advisor in order to understand and exercise your rights.

The right to refuse service and to be informed of the possible consequences of such refusal.
The right to refuse participation in research without informed, voluntary and written consent.

PRG-08-A, Attachment 3

PRG-08-M, Attachment 1

Date/Rev. 2/1B/00; 3/31/03; 6/7/04; 9/14/04; 1/5/05; 5/24/05
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Child &Family Client Rights and Responsibilities Document

SERVICE
Private. nonprofit since 1899

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES:

The responsibility to comply with program rules and behavioral expectations in order to gain
the most from treatment/setvices and avoid the need to discharge or terminate services.
The responsibility to provide appropriate and timely notice when canceling an appoiniment,
unless cancellation is due to an emergency.

The responsibility to comply with program hours of availability.

The responsibility for open communication with your assigned worker to promote your active
participation in the planning and development of your services.

The responsibility to actively participate in the services that are offered/provided.

The responsibility to treat Child and Family Service staff in a respectful manner.

*E OEHF R W

PROGRAM SPECIFIC RIGHTS:

# See attached form if applicable

My rights and responsibilities have been explained to me in a language that | can understand.
! am aware of and understand my rights and responsibilities and have received a copy of my
tights and responsibilities.

Client and/or Parent/Legal Guardian of Minor (Please print your name)

Client’s Signature Date Parent/Legal Guardian's Signature Date

Witnessed by:

Employee's Name and Title

Your Rights Advisor is and can be reached at

PRG-08-A, Attachment 3

PRG-08-M, Attachment 1

Date/Rev. 2M18/00; 3/31/03; 6/7/04; 9/14/04; 1/5/05; 5/24/05
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0 2 , Policy: CONFIDENTIALITY
Child & Family No: PRG-05

SERVICE

Pejvate, nooprofil sinco 1899 Date/Rey: 2/7100; 3M7/03; 4/7/04; 11/3/04

COA STANDARDS:
G1.5; G9.5.01

OBJECTIVE: .
Child and Family Service takes a profective role with a client’s right to privacy and the
safeguarding of protected health information (PHI).

SCOPE:
All organization personnel will participate in protecting clients’ rights to privacy.

RESPONSIBILITY::

It is the responsibility of all organization personnel and contractors to comply with Child
and Family Service (CF8) policies and procedures that ensure protection of client
privacy. Itis the added responsibility of all management staff to ensure personnel and
contractors follow through with such policies and procedures.

The Director of Quality Assurance is responsible for maintaining this policy through
periodic review of and madification in compliance with any changes in federal or state
regulations, and is responsible for monitoring the organization’s adherence to this policy
and associated procedures.

POLICY:

No information or documentation regarding any client or clients (whether current or
former) is released external to CFS in any form (written or verbal) by any CFS
personnel or contraciors without first getting writien, informed Authorization For Use and
Disclosure from the client. Certain exceptions apply related to mandatory reporting
requirements, emergency situations, court orders, subpoenas and other exceptions as
sef forth in CFS policies and procedures.

CFS policies and procedures are in accordance with federal and state laws that protect
the rights of clients receiving physical and mental health services, clients with substance
abuse/use or treatment, and clients with HIV/AIDS. CFS seeks legal guidance when
necessary regarding issues related to confidentiality of records and for unusual requests
for information from external sources,

Furthermore, Child and Family Service will not enter into. any contract agreements
which jeopardize the privacy and/or confidentiality rights of clients.

APPROVED:

- Gerl Mérullo, R.N., Dr. PH Lori Ann C. Lum
President and CEO Chair, Board of Directors
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. ) Procedure: CONFIDENTIALITY
SERVICE *

Date/Rev: 2[7/00; 3/20/03; 4/7/04; 11/3/04

Privale, nonprofit since [89%

COA STANDARDS:
G1.5, G39.5.01, G11.5.01

OBJECTIVE:
Child and Family Service takes a protective role with clients’ rtghts to privacy and the

safeguarding of protected health information (PHI).

SCOPE:
All organization personnel and contractors participate in protecting clients’ rights 1o

privacy.

BRESPONSIBILITY:

All CFS personnel and contractors comply with the policies and procedures that
address protection of client privacy. Management staff are responsible to train their staff
on the policies and procedures that address protection of client privacy and to make
sure staff follow those policies and procedures.

The Director of Quality Assurance is responsible to maintain this procedure through
periodic review of and revision to the procedure, and is responsible for momtormg the
organization's adherence to this procedure. CFS compliance with changes in federal or
state regulations is identified in revisions to this procedure and associated policy.

DEFINITIONS:

Protected Health Information (PHI) means individually identifiable information relating
to past, present or future physical and mental health condition of an individual, provision
of health care to an individual, or the past, present or future payment for healthcare
provided to an individual.

Blanket Consent/Authorization is a general consent/authorization that does not
identify the specific information being requested, the specific dates that the consent
takes effect and expires, and/or the purpose for which the information is being
requested. Use of blanket consents/authorizations is NOT permissible at CFS. (See I,
A., on page 2 for information that is required on consents/authorizations.)

@ CFS policy is:

+ No protected health information will be given to anyone outside Child and Family
Service without prior written authorization of the client and/or parent/legal guardian
(this includes information in any format, verbal or written), and ,

+ The client’s right to privacy is safeguarded.

Page 1 of 6
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. . Procedure: CONFIDENTIALITY
Child & Family No: PRG-05-A
v st i 1659 Date/Rev: 2/7/00; 3/20/03; 4/7/04; 11/3/04
PROCEDURE:

l. Protection of Clients’ Privacy and Confidentiality

Methods for safeguarding client confidentiality can include, but are not limited to:

Client records are confidential; access is limited to authorized personnel and
records are kept in a secure area.

Staff do not discuss client information except during the provision of services,
treatment planning, or during case supervision; and only in a private area.
Client intervisws and counseling sessions are conducted in a private room or
area to prevent incidental disclosure of confidential information.

The Program Manager or assigned professional staff will assess the validity or
necessity of any request for confidential client information. If the request to
use/disclose the information is appropriate and in the best interest of the
client/family, the Program Manager or assigned professional staff will obtain the
client and/or parent/legal guardian’s authorization.

When using/disclosing confidential information, only the Minimum Necessary will
be used or disclosed. (Refer to procedure PRG-14-A Minimum Necessary
Requirements).

Transporting of confidential information is discouraged. In the event this cannot
be avoided, staff will follow procedure PRG-05-B Transporting and Securing
Confidential Information.

Il. Authorization to Use and Disclose Protected Health Information (PHI)

When the need to externally use or disclose a client’s protected health information is
necessary for provision of services, staff will obtain client authorization by
completing an Authorization to Use and Disclose Protected Health Information form.
(Attachment 1)

When the client is a minor, or an adult who is incapable of providing informed
authorization for use and disclosure of PHI, staff obtains authorization from the
parent or legal guardian.
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A. BRequired Content for Written Authorizations

1.

Each authorization for the use and disclosure of an individual’s PH! is written
in plain language and includes, at a minimum, the following information:

A detailed description of the informaticn to be obtained or disclosed.

The name, title or position of the person who is being authorized to obtain
or disclose the information and what agency they are with (when
applicable).

The name, title or position of the person to whom the requested use or
disclosure may be made and what agency they are with (when
applicabie).

‘Purpose of the disclosure, or a statement that the disclosure is at the

reqguest of the individual.

~ An expiration date, condition or event that relates to the individual or the

purpose of the use or disclosure; the authorization shall state that it will
expire after 90 days for one-time release of information, or after one year
unless the individual has opted for a shorter or longer time. An individual
may specify a longer period of time for the duration of the authorization
only if the person:
- Is part of an approved research study and has given authorization for a
longer period of time, or
- Is expected to continue receiving services beyond one year and has
given authorization for a longer period of time.
A statement of the individual’s right to revoke the authorization in writing,
and exceptions to the right to revoke, together with a description of how
the individual may revoke the authorization. Upon written notice of
revocation, further use or disclosure of PHI shall cease immediately
except to the extent that CFS has acted in reliance upon the authorization
or extent that use or disclosure is otherwise permitted or required by law.
The statement that treatment, payment, enrollment or eligibility cannot be
conditioned on the individual signing the authorization or a statement
setting forth consequences of not signing.
A statement that the information may only be re-released with the written
authorization of the individual, except as required by law,
The dated signature of the client or parent/legal guardian will be
recognized as the effective date of the authorization.
If a personal representative of the client signs the authorization, a copy of
the representative’s authority to act on behalf of the individual (such as the
official letter of guardianship, or a notarized medical power of attorney,
etc.) must be included with the authorization in the case record. (Refer to
procedure PRG-13-1 Personal Representatives)
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2. A separate authorization is required for each agency or provider that PHI is
being shared with. _

» When information is to be shared with more than one worker in the same
agency, a separate authorization is not required for each
workerftitle/position. One authorization can be completed for that agency
and includes the titles/positions or program/department that will be
sharing PHI. (Reference: 45 CFR 164.508(c)(1)(iii))

B. Copy to be Provided

A copy of the completed authorization is given to the client, and the signed
original is placed in the client's record.

C. Authorization for Use and Disclosure Related to Drug or Alcohol Treatment

A separate authorization form (Attachment 2) is used when the information to be
used/disclosed identifies the client as being in a drug or alcohol program or as
having a drug or aicohol problem. This authorization form complies with federal
law 42 C.F.R. Part 2, and prohibits redisclosure of the specified client information
by the person or agency receiving it.

lll. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information Without Authorization

A. Court Subpoena

The coutrt subpoena of a client record is one of the exceptions to releasing
information without client consent. If an attempt is made to serve a staff member
with a subpoena, or the staff receives a request from an attorney, they should
notify their Supervisor immediately. Only designated persons are to accept
subpoenas. (See procedure ADM-09-A Subpoenas/Court Testimony/Legal
Correspondence (Client Related).

Information about substance abuse clients is NOT to be released without a Court
Order; a subpoena is not sufficient.

B. Mandated Reportihq

Authorization is not required for mandatory reporting of suspected abuse or
neglect, or to warn identifiable individuals against whom credible, serious threats
of bodily harm have been made. (Refer to procedures PRG-07-A Mandatory
Reporting of Abuse and Neglect, and PRG-06-A Duty to Warn)
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Private, nonprofil since 1899

Date/Rev: 2{7/00; 3/20/03; 4/7/04; 11/3/04

IV. Persons with Special Needs

VL.

For ciients who are particularly vulnérable because of mental disability or functional
illiteracy or children without family ties, staff exercise extra precautions to protect
their confidentiality when obtaining and releasing PHI.

These efforts are documented in the client’s record.

Client Participation in Research

Prior to participating in research, clients authorize use and disclosure of their PHI by
signing the Consent to Participate in Research form (Refer to procedure PRG-02-A
Research}.

The signed form is placed in the client’s record.
Client Participation in Media Events or Public Performances

CFS takes a protective role with clients to shield them from loss of privacy through
unwanted public scrutiny. This may include media inquiries, interviews, or
participation in public events. No client information is released and no participation in
public events occurs without the client’s written consent. (Refer to procedure ADM-
01-D Media Relations)

VIl. Contracts

CFS will not enter into any contract agreements which jeopardize the privacy and/or
confidentiality rights of clients. The organization reviews contracts to ensure that
they are consistent with the CFS confidentiality poilcy and the HIPAA Business
Associate contract requirements.

VIIl. Use & Disclosure of PHI'via Electronic Media

Electronic transfer of PHI either by e-mail, computer disk or other means for
purposes other than billing is discouraged. However, when required by coniract or
in the event an alternative is not available, staff reasonably safeguard PHI from any
intentional or unintentional use or disclosure. All persons with access to PHI have an
obligation to maintain the confidentiality of client information via electronic media.
Client information/PHI is not placed in any shared area on the CFS network. If PHI
is placed on any network drive, it is safeguarded through restricted network access
and in accordance with CFS policy/procedures for computer access that ensures
security of client information. (See procedure OPR-04-C Network Access to CFS)
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IX. Ongoing Obligation to-Protect Client Confidentiality

X1

Obligations regarding confidentiality continue even after termination of employment,
serfvice, or association with CFS. Al staff, volunteers, foster parents, and Business
Associates with CFS exercise appropriate measures and care when storing,
transporting, photocopying, disposing of, network printing, downloading, emailing or
faxing confidential information. Precautions are taken to avoid having computer
monitors, printers, fax machines, personal day planners, personal digital assistants
(PDA’s) or paper records in view of unauthorized onlookers while such data is
displayed.

Retention

Authorizations that have been dated and signed (or a copy of same) are retained for
a period of seven (7) years from the latest date of execution or the last effective

date.
Privacy and Confidentiality Violations

Personnel and contractors are expected to report violations or suspected abuses of
client privacy/confidentiality to their Supervisor and/or the Privacy Officer for CFS.
Failure to follow the policy and procedures on client confidentiality will resuit in
disciplinary action. Reporting of privacy and confidentiality violations is outlined in
procedure PRG-13-G.

ATTACHMENTS:

1.

2.

Authorization to Use and Disclose Confidential Information/Protected Health

Infermation ,
Authorization to Use and Disclose Gonfidential Information/Protected Health

information — Drug and/or Aicohol

APPROVED:

e

Geri Marullo, R.N., Dr. PH
President and CEQ
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_ , AUTHORIZATION TO USE AND DISCLOSE CONFIDENTIAL
Child & Family INFORMATION/PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION*

SERVICE
Privale, nonprolil since 1899

Name: DOB:

, hereby authorize Child & Family Service (CFS) fo use and disclose the following confidential
heatth information.

Specific information

RELEASE (Send Information -- Use and Disclose)

The purpose to RELEASE this information is

| authorize (specific person or persons) to use and disclosure
RELEASE my confidential information fo:

Individual/Agency/Qrganization

OBTAIN (Request Information — Use and Disclose)

The purpose to OBTAIN this information is

| authorize (specific person or persons) to use and
disclose OBTAIN my confidential information from:

Individual/Agency/Organization

[ further authorize the release of;
1} HIV/AIDS information: o

Yes
No —
Not applicable

PRG-05-A, Attachmant 1
PRG-08-A Attachment 8
Date/Rev. 4/22/03; 4/7/04; 2/25/05
Page 1 of 2



*Protected Health information includes any and all information contained in the case record related to the
client, including identifying information such as date of birth, name, etc.

If the above information is to be released or obtained, these are the specific benefits,
risks and alternatives:

< Materials may be shared in any of the following manner, unless otherwise specified: written,
mailed, facsimile, electronically transferred (E-mail, computer diskette), or verbally.

< This authorization has been made freely, voluntarily and without coercion.

< | was able to ask questions and receive answers about this release.

+ Child and Family Service may not condition treatment or provision of services on whether |
sign ot do not sign this authorization.

% The information used or disclosed by this authorization may be subject to redisclosure by
the recipient and no longer be protected uniess prohibited by Federal or State Law.

< 1 understand that | have the right to revoke (withdraw) this authorization in writing, except |
cannot revoke this authorization for information that has already been disclosed subject to
the authorization. Please refer to the Child and Family Service “Notice of Privacy Practices.”
| may submit such a written request to revoke authorization to my worker.

| understand this Authorization will expire when services are terminated; when | withdraw
from services; when | withdraw this Authorization in writing; or one-year from this date.

Name: Name:
(Please print) {Please print— Parent, Legal Guardian of minor)
Signature: Signature:
Date: Date:
Witnessed by: Date:
(Siaff Name and Tiile)

PRG-05-A, Attachment 1
PRG-08-A Attachment 8
Date/Rev. 4/22/03; 4/7/04; 2/25/05
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Yy AUTHORIZATION TO USE AND DISCLOSE CONFIDENTIAL
INFORMATION/PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION* -

Child &Family DRUG AND/OR ALCOHOL
SERVICE
Privale, nonprofit since 1899
Name: DOB:

I, hereby authorize Child & Family Service (CFS) to use and disclose the following confidential
drug and/or alcohol information,

Specific information

RELEASE (Send information -- Use and Disclose)

The purpose to RELEASE this information is

| authorize (specific person or persons) to use and disclosure
RELEASE my confidential drug and/or alcoho! information to:

Individual/Agency/Organization

OBTAIN (Request Information — Use and Disclose)

The purpose to OBTAIN this information is

I authorize (specific person or persons) to use and
disclose OBTAIN my confidential drug and/or alcohol information from:

Iindividual/Agency/QOrganization

*Protected Health Information includes any and all information contained in the case record related to the
client, including identifying information such as date of birth, name, ate.

PRG-05-A, Attachment #2
4/22/03; 4/7104
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If the above information is to be released or obtained, thesé are the specific benefits
risks and alternatives: o

“ Materials may be shared in any of the following manner, unless otherwise specified: written,
mailed, facsimile, electronically transferred (E-mailf, computer diskette), or verbally.

<+ This authorization has been made freely, voluntarily and without coercion.
“+ | was able to ask questions and recsive answers about this release.

+ Child and Family Service may not condition treatment or provision of services on whether |
sign or do not sign this authorization.

< | understand that | have the right to revoke (withdraw} this authorization in writing, except |
cannot revoke this authorization for information that has already been disclosed subject to
the authorization. Please refer to the Child and Family Service “Notice of Privacy Practices,”
I may submit such a written request fo revoke authorization to my worker,

| understand that my records are protected under the federal regulations governing
Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2, and cannot be
disclosed without my written consent unless otherwise provided for in the regulations.

And further:

| understand this Authorization will expire automatically when services
are terminated; when | withdraw from services: when | withdraw this
Authorization in writing; or one-year from this date.

Name: Name: _ -
{Please print) (Please print — Parent, Legal Guardian of minor)
Signature: Signature:
Date: Date:
Witnessed by: Date:
(Siaff Name and Titls)

This notice accompanies a disclosure of information concerning a client in alcohol/drug abuse
treatment, made to you with the consent of stich client. This information has been disclosed to you
from records protected by federal confidentiality rules (42 CFR Part 2). The Federal rules prohibit
you from making any further disclosure of this information unless}urther disclosure is expressly
permitted by the written consent of the person to whom it pertains or as otherwise permitted by 42
CFR Part 2. A general authotization for the release of medical or other information is NOT sufficient
for this purpose. The Federa! rules restrict any use of the information to criminally investigate or

prosecute any alcohol or drug abuse patient.

PRG-05-A, Attachment #2
4/22/03; 4/7/04
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A .

%

h

" Date Refurned to Supervisor for Completion: Date Completed JDPE was Received

Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

-1 Initial Employment Period Review [0 Non-Exempt | Non;Barg Date of Evaluation:
1 Annual B Exempt [ Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED:
[0 Other
LATED SPECIEICS:
Employee Name: Paosition: _ Director of Program Services
Status: Hire Date:
Prog/Dept: _ Administration Prog/Dept #:
Supervisor Name: ‘ Title: _ Vice President of Programs

| OSITION SUMMAR]
This section introduces the mission, summarizas the position, and identifies the funclional or competency requirements including skills, experience, and
education or training and licensure necessary to ensure that employees are prepared to handle assigned responsibilities. The information is designed to
indicate the general nature and level of work performed by an employee in this position. It is not 1o be Interpreted as a comprehensive inventory for all
duties, responsibilities, and qualifications of employees assigned to this job. Reasonable accommaodation(s) will be made to enable qualified individuals
with disabltities to perform the assential funstions of this job.

| JOB SPECIFIC'PEREORMANGE REVIEW.

This section utilizes the major responsibilities of the posltion as the basis for the evaluation. The performance standards are end results that can be
measured and result in successful performance of a major responsibility. These are reviewed pericdically to include the cessation of the initial
amployment period and upon annual review,

Vo e no o PART N REVIEW.OF PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
his section is designated 1o evaluate performance on general behavioral expactations of all employees.
[ - i 'PART IV;: DEVELOPMENT AND-GOAL PLAN. -

This section reviews the previous plan and goals to determine results; strengths and/or areas requiring improvement are summarlzed; meaningful goals
are identified and a new plan is developed.

[ v ot P ART Ve EMPLOYEE. COMMENTS ON THE PERFORMANCE:REVIEW.
This eptional section allows employees an opportunity 1o comment on the review or about objectives, such as, commitments to development.
* ' GNATURES*
This evaluation must be signed by the employee and her/his immediate supervisor.
N .. DEFINITIONS OF PERFORMANCE RATINGS ]
Employee consistenlly exceeds the job responsibilities and performance factors and demonsirates

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES)
highly proficient job performance,
MEETS STANDARDS (MS) Performance is competent and meets the job's requirements, Participates in making contributions
to the department or program,
DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) Employee whose performance does not meet the expected performance level of the job's
. requiraments. .
NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply fo the position.

s This Aréa for Use:by Husrian:Resot

Initial Issue Date: Date Received;

Review evaluation and note performance concerns evidenced on the following pages of this standard assessment. If applicable, ensure thata
resolution/action plan has been idantified for each deficiency noted. If any noted deficiency lacks a corresponding resolution/action plan, returm to the
aemployee’s supervisor for compietion.
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

MISSION STATEMENT A o T s
Strengthening families and fostenng the healthy development of chlldren.

“ SUMMARY OF DUTIES . * "

In the Director of Program Services (DPS) respecttve program area, they:

1) Have primary oversight responsibility for their setvices and statewide programs;

2) Are a member of the Core team, being a pant of the overall management tean;

3) Have to implement and develop performance-based measurement;

4) Exercise all normal supsrvisory functions for their Administrators;

5) Provide input to the VP of Programs on programmatic issues;

6) Aftend CFS Board of Directors meetings; and

7) May be selected to partlmpate in Commlttees and Task Forces throughout CFS as determined by the VP of Programs.

[0  Up to and including high school. Requires enough basic education to understand and follow standard practice or oral and
written instructions, able to read and write, use simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a
typewriter.

[0  High school, plus additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, ot other formal training facility
or program. Requires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Knowledge needed such as
stenography, office routines, elementary accounting procedures; aperation of equipment such as bookkeeping and billing
machines, tabulating equipment, transcription machines.

[ High school plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may lead to
licensing, (data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, certified
substance abuse counselor, bookkeeper, etc.

[0 Four-Year College Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - general major. Requires basic
knowledge or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as social work, professmnal accounting, finance,

business administration, and marketing.

[0 Specialized Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency; includes additional PostGraduate courses
required to perform job.

B} Masters' Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

Other (Specify): Master's Degree with demonstrated experience in supervision of the full range of programs in assigned program
area.

(EXPERIENCE

Six months or less

Over six months, up to and including one year.

Over one year, up to and including two years.

Over two years, up to and including four years.

Qver four years, up to and including six years.

={O|o|olo|of

Over six years. .

Other (Specify): Demonstrates ever-increasing scope and responsibility of supervision. Demonstirated strong leadership and team
building skills. Strong communication and writing skills. Experience writing RFPs and Grants required. Five years post masters
supenisory and administrative experience in community or social service agencies.

| OTHER POSITION REQUIREMENTS - CHECK AL

[0  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be contingent on
maintaining a clear driver's abstract.
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

[ [  This job requires a valid Hawaii drivers license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an
as-needed basis throughout the island.

This job requires a valid Hawali driver's license, a clear drivet's abstract, and use of personal vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basls throughout the island.

This job requires a valid Mawali driver's license, a clear drivet's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verification of licensure/certification will be required at time of appointment/hire, and continued emplayment is contingent on
maintaining licensure/certification.

This position is subject to a eriminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPR, CPI and/or van driving training as
such training is necessary to ensure ability/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPI classes OR other Behavioral
Management cerification as may be contract-mandated.

gy d| g| al oja] ol o

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of First Aid classes.

)
m
9
O
;.3?‘
e
-t

Vice President of Programs

‘SUPERVISES” 1 L
O Noone.
[0 Limited supervision, immediate supervisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much
of time may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnel.
[0 Immediate supervision over 3 to 15 employees. Responsible for selection, training and discipline.
[0 General supervision of program/department over 5 to 25 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower level

supervisor(s). Full responsibility for selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budgst limits.

General supervision of program/department (>25 employees) usually through lower level supervisors, Full responsibility for
selecting, traln:ng, and dlsmplme -- sub;ect only to general pohcy or budget llmlts

<

-G OMMUNICATION AND CONTACTS

Requires only routine contact. wathm the unlt or department

services. Normal courtesy, tact and discrefion required.

Regular contact with subordinates, other depariments, and persons and organizations outside the organization to supply or
seek information and reports. Requires use of tact and discretion. May present data and reports at meeting.

]

1 Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/or provide client
0

O

Requires contacts both inside and outside at all organizational levels. Requires considerable tact, discretion and persuasion
to obtain results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. Improper handling may affect operating
results and the delivery of client services.

K  Inside and outside contacts involving difficult negotiations, related to a major division or function, development of networks
and development of teamwork. Requires well- developed sense of timing and strategy

_-:PHYSICAL AND EN; IFIONMEN AL .FIEQUIHEMENTS

Indicate the number of hours {from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be requtred to:

Ksit 35 K stand _1-2 Walk 1-2 3 Drive
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

The physical activities of this position involve: (Please indicate with an "X* all items that are essential functions of this posmon and
(" are performed in excess of levels required for ordinary movement.)

L Balancing [ Crouching 71 Kneeling [ Pulling X Repetitive Movement
[ Climbing & Fingering O Lifting [ Pushing ] Stooping

(fine motor tactility)
1 Crawling X Grasping : 1 Carrying {7 Reaching

An individual in this position will be required to carry or lift weight in this range: {Please indicate with an 'X" only the heaviest weight
range that would be required when performing the essential functions of this position.)

{1 Upto 10 pounds 25 to 34 pounds [ 51 to 74 pounds [[] Weight in excess of 100 pounds
] 11 to 24 pounds 1 35 to 50 pounds ] 75 to 100 pounds

The sensory and communicative activilies include essential activities to the performance of this position: ({Please indicate with an
"X" all that applies when performing this position.)

[X Fesling Hearing ] Smelling BJ Speaking [] Tasting
Seeing (] Ability to distinguish colors

An Individual in this position will be exposed to: {Please indicate with an "X" afl that applies when performing only the essential
functions of this position.)

X] Inside environmental conditions [0 Extreme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for more than
one hour at a time

Extreme heat-ternperature above 100 degrees for more than

[ Outside environmental conditions
che hour at a time

Inside and outside environmental conditions Physical hazards (example: working near electrical current)

Constant vibrating motion Chemical hazards

Bloodborne pathogens Solvents, sterilizing agents
(May be subject to infectious materials.}

Respiratory hazards Grease and oils

Dust, fumes, smoke, gases Eleckical energy

Radiant energy Working around machinery, moving objects and/or vehicles

Doo0O0O oooOo @

Working on ladders and scaffolds

oooo0o ooog

Working with hands in water

Qther (Spemfy)
g tAGES OF CL!ENTS SERVED

This positicn requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s} indicated below:

B Infant: Birth to 1 year Children: 1 - 12 years X Adolescent: 13-17 years
Adult: 18 - 64 years Family/Visitors B Geriatric: 65 years and above
Other (Specify):

All job requirements listed indicate the minimum level of knowledgeg, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to parform the
job proficiently. This job description is not to be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or
requirements. Employees will be required to perform any other job-related instructions given by their supervisor, subject to

reasonable accommodation(s).
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PART ll: JOB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW (THIS SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES IN LENGTH.)

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS COMMENTS

w g 20

JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Participates in the development and implementation of the Organization’s Strategic
Plan.

Directs and coordinates development of the Organization’s policies and procedures
and oversees implementation of the policies/procedures.

Oversees and coordinates the operations and improvement activities of each
assigned Program Area.

Manages projects, prioritizes conflicting requirements and coordinates actions
across program functions. Provides coverage in the absence of program personnel.

Ability to handle multipte priorities.

Represents the Organization in external activities as directed by the Vice President
of Programs.

Evaluates and assesses the skills and perfermance levels of assigned personnel.
Coaches and mentors as appropriate.

Makes decisions on resource allocation up to the fimits specified in Organizational
Birectives.

Understands the principles of finance, budget development and maintenance.

Understands the principles of contract negotiation.

Provides 24 hour clinical and administrative support to programs.

Understands the psychological dynamic, treatment needs and best practices in
treatment of populations serviced by CFS.

Oversees budgets in each program and aggressively works to improve deficit
programs.

Communicates with all assigned administrators routinely to assure implementation
of organization priorities.

Develops plans and seeks funding for deficit programs.

Performs other related duties as assighed.
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Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

( 1 Initial Employment Period Review [0 Non-Exempt Non-Barg Date of Evaluation:
{1 Annual K Exempt [0 Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED:
i Other

:MBLOYEE:RELATED SPECIEICS

Employee Name: Position: _ Neighbor Island Administrator
Status: FT . Hire Date:

Prog/Dept: Prog/Dept #:

Supervisor Name: Title: _ Vice President of Programs

f N:SUMMAT
This section introduces the mission, summarizes the position, and identifies the functional or competency requirements including skills, experience,
educalion or training, and licensure necessary to ensure that employees are prepared to handle assigned responsibilities. The information is designed to

indicate the general nature and [evel of wark pariormed by an employee in this position. It is not to be interpreted as a comprehensive inventory for all
dufties, responsibiliies, and qualifications of employees assigned to this job. Reasonable accommeodation(s) will be made to enable qualified individuals

with disabilities to perform the essential functions of this job.
L ‘ OB:SPECIFIC'PEREORMANCE REVIE\
This section utilizes the major responsibilities of the position as the basis for evaluation. The performance standards are end results that can be

measured and resulf in successful performance of a major responsibility. These are reviewed periodically to include the cessation of the initial
employment period and upon annual review. . .

P i Y. PARTIIE REVIEW OF PERFORMANGE STANDARDS'
(- rhis section is designated to evaluate performance on general behavioral expectations of all employees.

b ' DEVELOPMENT AND GOAL: PLAN

This section reviews tha previous plan and goals 1o determine results; strangths and/or areas requiring improvement are summarized; meaningful goals

are identified; and a new plan is developed.

[ ' “PART Vi’ EMPLOYEE.COMMENTS ON'TRE'PERFORMANCEREVIE

This optional section allows employees an opportunity to comment on the review.

bt \ IGNATURES:

This evaluation must be signed by the employee and his/her immediate supervisor.

L /DEEINITIONS:OF PEREORMANCE RATINGS:

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES) Employee consistently exceeds the job responsibilities and performance factors and demonstrates
highly proficient job performance.

MEETS STANDARDS (MS) Performance is competent and meets the Job’s requirements. Participates in making contributions
to the department or program.

DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) - Employee whose performance does not mest the expected performance level of the joby's
requirements.

NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply to this position.

Initial Issue Date: Date.Received:

Review evaluation and note performance concerns evidenced on the following pages of this standard assessment. If applicable, ensure that a
resolution/action plan has been identified for each deficiency noted. If any noted deficlency lacks a corresponding resolution/action plan, retum to the

( smployee’s supervisor for completion.

" Date Returned to Supervisor for Completion: Date Completed JOPE was Received:
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

_ MISSION STATEMENT

Strengthemug famthes and fostenng the healtlzy developmenr of chzldren

{1  Uptoand including high schoel. Reguires enough basic education to understand and follow standard practice or oral and
written instructions, able to read and write, use simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a
typewriter.

[  High school, plus additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, or other formal training facility
or program. Reguires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Knowledge needed such as
stenography, office routines, elementary accounting procedures; operation of equipment such as bookkeeping and billing
machines, tabulating equipment, transcription machines.

[0 High school plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may lead to
licensing (data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, certified
substance abuse counselor, bookkeeper, etc.

[d Four-Year College Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - general major. Requires basic
knowledge or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as social work, professional accounting, finance,

business administration, and marketing.

]  Specialized Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency; includes additional post-graduate courses
required to perform job.

B  Masters' Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

Other (Specify): Master's Degree in the Human Service Area

;'_EXPERIENCE L
]  Six months or Iess
{0 ©versix months, up to and including one year.
[0 Overone year, up to and including two years.
[0  Overtwo years, up to and including four years.
Over four years, up to and including six years.
O Oversixyears.

Other (Speclfy) Five Years post maslers supervisory and administrative experience in community and service agenmes

"SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE, SK

KIELS;-AND ABILITIES REQUIRED" |

Ability and organization to manage multiple contracts, large number of employees and/or complex budgets Knowledge of area of
program concentration, grant writing experience

[1  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be contingent on
maintaining a clear driver's abstract.

[0  This job requires a valid Hawail driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an
as-needed basis throughout the island.

1 This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of personal vehicle to transpor clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to fravel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.
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PART L  POSITION SUMMARY

, I [0  This job requires a valid Hawail driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to transport clients, as
{ needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

[0  The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verification of licensure/certification will be required at time of appointment/hire, and continued employment is contingent on
maintaining licensure/certification.

This position is subject to a criminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful comple{ion of CPR, CPI and/or van driving training as
such training is necessary to ensure abilify/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPI classes OR other Behavioral
Management certification as may be contract-mandated.

O d| oy o o

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of First Aid classes.

REPORTS TO. |

Vice President of Programs

No one.

Limited supervision, immediate supervisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much
of time may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnel.

Immediate supervision over 3 to 15 employees. Responsible for selection, training and discipline.

General supervision of program/department over 5 to 25 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower level
supervisor(s}. Full responsibility for selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits,

x| oOlol o|lole

General supervision of program/department (>25 employees) usually through lower level supervisors. Full responsibility for
selecting, tralnlng, and dlsmphne .- sub]ect enly to general policy or budget limits.

CGMMUNICATION AND CONTACTS

Requires only routine contact wuthm the unit or depanment

D

Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/or provide client
services. Normal courtesy, tact and discretion required.

seek information and reports. Requires use of tact and discretion. May present data and reports at meeting.

O
[0 Regular contact with subordinates, other departments, and persons and organizations outside the organization o supply or
O

Requires contacts both inside and outside at all organizational levels. Requires considerable tact, discretion and persuasion
to obtain results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. improper handling may affect operating
results and the delivery of client services.

X1  inside and outside contacts involving difficuit negotiations, related to a major division or function, development of netwarks
and developmant of teamwork. Reqwres well-developed sense of timing and strategy.

PHYSICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENT

Indicate the number of hours {from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be required to;

Sit B8 Stand 1 Walk 1 [ Drive
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

rThe physical activities of this position involve: (Please indicate with an "X" all items that are essential functions of this position and
(' are performed in excess of levels required for ordinary movement.)

[ Balancing [ Grouching [ Kneeling [ Pulling ] Repetitive Movement
[ Glimbing Fingering 7 Litting 1 Pushing [] Stooping

{fine motor tactility)

(O Crawling Grasping 7] Carrying ] Reaching

An individual in this position will be required to carry or lift weight in this range: (Please indicate with an 'X® only the heaviest weight
range that would be required when performing the essential functions of this position.)

Up to 10 pounds [1 25 to 34 pounds [[J 51 to 74 pounds [ Weight in excess of 100 pounds
[1 11 to 24 pounds (T 35 to 50 pounds ] 75 to 100 pounds

The sensory and communicatfve activities include essential activities to the performance of this position: (Please indicate with an
*X" all that applies when performing this position.)

[ Feeling B Hearing [] Smelling B Speaking (O Tasting
Sesing ] Ability to distinguish colors

An individual in this position will be exposed to: (Please indicate with an "X" all that applies when performing only the essential
functions of this position.)

[X] Inside environmental conditions [J Extreme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for mare than
ong hour at a time
-1 K& Outside environmental conditions [1 Exireme heat-temperature above 100 degrees for more than
L one hour at g time
Inside and ouiside environmental conditions [} Physical hazards (example; working near electrical current)
[J Constant vibrating motion [0 Chemical hazards
[0 Bloodborne pathogens O Solvents, sterilizing agents
{May be subject to infectiouss materials.)
[ Respiratory hazards [0 Grease and oils
[0 Dust, fumes, smoke, gases [0 Electrical energy
] Radiant energy [ Working around machinery, moving objects and/or vehicles
{1

Working with hands in water Warking on ladders and scaffolds

Other {Specify):

CLIENTS SERVED - '\ "

This position requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s) indicated below:

[ Infant: Birthto 1 year [0 Children: 1-12 years [0 Adolescent: 13 -17 years

O Aduli: 18 - 64 years E1  Family/Visitors [0 Geriatric: 65 years and above

Other (Specify): All ages preferred, but will vary depending on the concentration of programs for each neighbor isfand

( 4l job requirements listed indicate the minimum level of knowledge, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to perform the
- job proficiently. This job description is not {o be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or
requirements. Employers will be required to perform any other job-related instructions given by their supervisor, subject to
reasonable accommodation(s).
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PART li: JOB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW (THIS SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES IN LENGTH.)

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS COMMENTS

w g 20

JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Provides oversight and coordination of the programs. Provides documentation and
required reports in a timely, professional, and accurate manner.

Develops and negotiates contracis.

Develops, implements, and monitors program goals, objectives, and outcomes
including monitering the quality and quantity of services and compliance with
contract, accreditation, and regulatory requirements,

identify problem areas and develop solutions with other management staff. Provide
administrative support to reduce systemic barriers to program success.

Provides community leadership through networking with community leaders,
funders, and advocacy groups. Aitends community meetings. Conducts public
relations activities to enhance the image of CFS in the community.

Assists in developing and implementing strategic plans.

Develops new programs and assists with program expansion through obtaining
funding and enhancing programs. Assist in grant and RFF writing.

Develops, iImplements, and monitors budgets, revenue, and expenses for the
program. Addresses problem areas.

Hires, supervises, and evaluates staff. Monitors productivity of staff individually and
as a program. Provides 24 hour clinical and administrative support to staff,

Assures that a safe environment is maintained.

Oversees facilities and equipment belonging to agency to assure maintenance.

Performs other related duties as assigned
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Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

D, Initial Employment Period Review [ Non-Exempt Non-Barg Date of Evaluation:
i Annual B Exempt [l Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED: 8-01-2006
[0 Other

Lo - EMPLOYEE:RELATED SPECIFICS’ i

Employee Name: Position: _Head Start Director/Program Administrator
Status: Hire Date:

Prog/Dept: Prog/Dept #:

Supervisor Name: Title: NI Adrninistrator

L.
This section introduces the misslon, summarizes the position, and identifies the functional or competency requirements including skills, experience, education or
training, and licensure necessary to ensure that employees are prepared to handle assigned responsibilities. The information is designed 1o indicate the general
nature and level of work performed by an employee in this position. Itis notte be inlerpreted as a comprehensive inventory for all duties, responsibilities, and
qualifications of employees assigned to this job. Reasonable accommodation(s) will be made to enable qualified Individuals with disabilities to perform the essential

functions of this job.
E S PART II:; JOB:SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW.

This section ufilizes the major responsibilities of the position as the basis for evaluation. The perfermance standards are end results that can be measurad and
result in successful performance of a major responsibility. These are reviewed periodically to include the cessation of the initial employment period and upen

annual review.

Lo PART:HII:. REVIEW.OF PEREORMANCE STANDARDS:
Thia section is designated to evaluate performance on generai behavioral expectations of all employees.
Lioen 2 PARTAV: DEVELORMENT -AND GOAL PLAN: E

This section reviews the previous plan and goals to determine resulls; strengths and/or areas requiring Improvement ara summarized; rmeaningful goals are
identified; and a new plan is developed.

[ e PART Vi :EMPLOYEE COMMENTS .ON THE PERFORMANCE: REVIEW.,

This optional section allows employses an opportunity io comment on the review.

This evaluation must be signed by the employee and his/her immediate suparvisor.

DEEINITIONS OF:PERFORMANCE RATINGS

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES) Emplayee consistently exceeds ihe job respansibilities and performance factors and demonstrates highly
proficient job perfermance.

MEETS STANDARDS (MS) Performance Is competent and meets the job's requirements. Participates in making contributions to the
department or program.

DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) Employage whose performance does not meet the expected performance level of the job's requirements.

NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply to this position.

.- . This‘Ared for-Use by Huniati: Résolicas

Initial lssue Date: Date Received:

Review evaluation and note periormance concerns evidenced on the following pages of this standard assessment. If applicable, ensure that a
resolution/action plan has been identified for each deficiency noted. If any noted deficiency lacks a corresponding resclution/action plan, return to the

employee's supervisor for compietion.

Date Returned to Supervisor for Completion: Date Completed JOPE was Received:;
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

[0  Upio and including high school. Requires enough basic edusation to understand and follow standard practice or oral and written
instructions, able to read and write, use simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a typewriter.

[0 High school, plus additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, or ather formal training facility or
program. Requires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Knowledge needed such as stenography, office
routines, elementarty accounting procedures; operation of equipment such as bookkeeping and billing machines, tabulating

equipment, transcription machines.

{Ti  High school plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may lead to
licensing {data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, cerified substance

abuse counselor, bookkeeper, etc.

O  Four-Year College Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - general major. Requires basic knowledge
or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as social work, professional accounting, finance, business administration,

and marketing.

[  Specialized Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency; includes additional post-graduate courses required
to perform job.

K Masters’ Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

Other (Specify): Master's Degree in the Human Ser\nce area

EXPERIENGE o D e
Six months or Iess

Over six months, up to and including one year.

D

1 Over one year, up fo and including two years,

Over two years, up to and including four years.

Over four years, up to and including six years.

{0

Qver six years.

Other (Spemfy) Four years post masters supervisory and admlnlstratlve experlence in commumty or social service agencnes

"_‘SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILIT[E"_)'REQU[RED

Ability and organization to manage multiple contracts, large # of employees, and/or complex budgets.
Knowledge of area of program concentratlon

: OTHER POSITION REQUIRE' ENTS ‘CH

[ This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be contingent on
maintaining a clear driver’s abstract.

This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed
basis throughout the island.

as well as a willingness to iravel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

O
| This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of parsonal vehicle o transport clients, as needed,
[

This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to transport clients, as needed, as
well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

i1 The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verification of licensure/certification will be required at time of appeintment/hire, and continued employment is contingent on
maintafning licensure/certification.

1  This position is subject to a criminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions.
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

[l Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPR, CP and/or van driving training as such training
is necessary to ensure ability/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

( Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPI classes OR other Behavioral Management
certification as may be contract-mandated.

I:] Continued emp]oyment in this posmon is contlngent on successful completion of First Aid classes.

Appropnate D:rector of Program Ser\nces

SUPERVISES

No one.

Limited supervision, immediate suparvisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much of time
may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnel,

Immediate supervision over 3 to 15 employees. Responsible for selection, training and discipline.

General supervision of program/department over 5 to 26 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower level supervisor(s).
Full responsibility for selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

®R| OOl Oljg|

General supervision of program/department (>25 employees) usually through lower level supervisors. Full responsibility for selecting,

training, and dlsmphne - - subject only to general poltcy or budget |ImItS

| COMMUNICATION AND CONTACTS

Requires only routine contact wnthln the umt or department

Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/or provide client services.
Normal courtesy, tact and discretion required.

Regular contact with subordinates, other departments, and persons and organizations outside the organization to supply or seek
informatfon and reports, Requires use of tact and discretion. May present data and reports at meeting.

N o| alof

Requires contacts both inside and outside at all organizational levels. Requires considerable tact, discretion and persuasion to obtain
results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. Improper handling may affect operating results and the
delivery of client services.

O Inside and outside contacts involving difficult negofiations, related to a major division or function, development of networks and

development of teamwork. Requires well- developed sense of tamlng and strategy.
i PHYSICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS '

Indicate the number of hours {from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be required to:

Ksit 6 B Stand 1 B walk 05 M orve 0.5

The physical activities of this position involve: (Please indicate with an *X" all items that are essential functions of this position and are
performed in excess of levels required for ordinary movement.}

[ Balancing Crouching [ Kneeling [ Pulling Repetitive Movement
[ Climbing {1 Fingering ] Lifting 1 Pushing [ Stooping

{fine motor tactility)
[ Crawling [} Grasping Carrying [] Reaching

An individual In this position will be required to carry or lift weight in this range: (Please indicate with an X" only the heaviest weight range
that would be required when performing the essential functions of this position.)

Up to 10 pounds ] 25 to 34 pounds [ 51 to 74 pounds L] Weight in excess of 100 pounds
[ 11 to 24 pounds B135t050pounds = [ 75to 100 pounds

The sensory and communicative activities include essential activities to the performance of this posifion: (Please indicate with an *X* all that
- wlies when performing this position.)

| Feeling Hearing [ Smelling [ Speaking [0 Tasting
X Seeing [ Ability to distinguish colors
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

. NTS feol dj.’

An individual in this position will be exposed to: (Please indicate with an "X" all that appliss when performing only the essential functions of
'~ position.}

{\b - Inside environmental conditions O E);Freme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for more than one hour at
atime
[0 Outside environmental conditions O Extre.me heat-teniperature above 100 degrees for more than one hour
atatime
[0 inside and outside envirenmenta! conditions O  Physical hazards (example: working near electrical current)
{1 Constant vibrating motion [0 Chemical hazards
1 Bloodbomne pathogens 1 Solvents, sterilizing agents
{May be subject to infectious materials.)
[ Respiratory hazards O Grease and oils
[ Dust, fumes, smoke, gases O Electrical energy
] Radiant energy {1 Working around machinery, moving objects and/or vehicles
[0 Working with hands in water “[d  Working on ladders and scaffolds
Other {Specify):
'AGES OFCLIENTSSERVED - -~ . .~ =

This position requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s) indicated below:

O3 Infant: Birth to 1 year [J Children: 1-12 years [ Adolescent: 13 -17 years
[J Adult: 18 - 64 years ] FamilyVisitors Geriatric; 65 years and above

_( " or (Specify): Depends on Administrators area of responsibility

All job requirements listed indicate the minimum level of knowledge, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to perform the job
proficiently. This job description is not to be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or requirements.
Employers will be required to perform any other job-related instructions given by their supervisor, subject to reasonable

accommodations.
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PART II: JOB SPECIFIC PERFOHMANCE REVIEW (TH)S SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES IN LENGTH.)

MGE #N
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS S IS {tA COMMENTS

n=EZ0

JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Provides oversight and coordination of the programs. Provides documentation and required
reports in a timely, professional, and accurate manner,

Develops and negotiates contracts.

Develops, implements, and menitors program goals, objectives, and outcomes including
monitoring the quality and quantity of services and compliance with contract, accreditation,
and regulatory requirements.

Identify problem areas and develop solutions with other management staff. Provide
administrative support to reduce systemic barriers to program success.

Provides community lsadership through networking with community leaders, funders, and
advocacy groups. Attends community meetings. Conduets public relations activities to
enhance the image of CFS in the community.

Assists in developing and implementing strategic plans,

Develops new programs and assists with program expansion through obtaining funding and
enhancing programs.

Develops, implements, and monitors budgets, revenue, and expenses for the program.
Addresses problem areas.

Hires, supervises, and evaluates staff. Monitors productivity of staff individually and as a
program. Provides 24 hour clinical and administrative support to staff.

Assures that a safe environment is maintained.

. Performs other related duties as assigned

[~
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Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

(‘ _1 Inilial Empioyment Petiod Review X Non-Exempt X' Non-Barg Date of Evaluation:
0 Annual [ Exempt [0 Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED: 08/30/2004
[0 Other

SEMPLOYEE-RELATER:SPEGIFIC

Employee Name: . Position:  Family Advocate
Status: ' Hire Date:

Prog/Dept: _ Kauai Head Start Prog/Dept #:

Supervisor Name: Title: __Program Director

T

OSITION:SUMMAR

This section introduces the mission, summarizes the position, and ideniifies the functional or competency requirements including skills, experience, and
education or training and licensure necessary to ensure that employees are prepared to handle assighed responsibilities, The information is designed to
indicate the general nature and level of work performed by an employee In this position. Itis nol to be interpreted as a comprehensive inventory for all
duties, responsibiliies, and gualifications of employees assigned lo this job. Reasonable accommodation{s) will be made to enable qualified individuals
with disabilities to perform the essential functions of this job,

L JOBSPECIFIC PEREORMANCE REVIEW
This section utilizes the major responsibilities of the position as the basis for the evaluation. The performance standards are end results that can be

measured and result in successful performance of a major responsibility. These are reviewed periodically to include the cessation of the initial
employment period and upon annual review,

I ST R

:PARTIL: . REVIEW.OF PEREORMANCE STANDARDS”
( fhig sec}ion is designated to evaluate performance on general behavioral expectations of all amployees.
I ~BART IV:: DEVELOPMENT AND GOAL'PLAN:
This section reviews the previous plan and goals to determine resulls; strengths and/or areas requiring improvement are summarized; meaningful goals
are identified and a new plan is developed.
Lo o2 o7 . PARTV: EMPLOYEE COMMENTS ON THE PEREORMANCE REVIEW
This oplional section allows employees an opporunity to comment on the review or about objectives, such as, commitments to development.
L {=8IGNATURES
This evaluation must be signed by the employee and her/his immediate supervisor.
§ -DEEINITIONS OF PEREORMANCE RATINGS

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES) Employee consistenily exceeds the job responsibilities and performance factors and demonstrates
highly proficient job performance.

MEETS STANDARDS (M5) Periormance is competant and meets the job's requirements. Participates in making contributions
to the department or program. .

DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) Employea whose performance does not meet the expected performance level of the job's
requirements.

NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply to the position.
£ 2 his: Afeafor-Useiby Human Res

Initial Issue Date: Date Received:

Review evaluaiion and nole performance concerns evidenced on the following pages of this standard assessment, If applicable, ensure that a
resolution/action plan has been identified for each deficiency noted. If any noted deficiency lacks a corresponding resolution/action plan, return to the
employee’s supervisor for completion.

Date Returned to Supetrvisor for Completion: Date Completed JDPE was Received
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

( "SSion StaTEvENT

Strengthening families and fostering the healthy development of children.

Under the supervision of the Family Involvement Coordinator, the Family Advocate is primarily responsible for providing families
with finkages to community resources, developmental assessments and supportive services to families in the program.

Up to and including high school. Requires enough basic education to understand and follow standard practice or oraf and
written instructions, able to read and write, uses simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a
typewriter.

[0 High school, pius additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, or other formal training facility
or program. Requires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Knowledge needed such as
stenography, office routines, elementary accouniing procedures; operation of equipment such as bookkeeping and billing
rnachines, tabulating equipment, transcription machines.

<] High school plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may lead to
licensing, (data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, certified
substance abuse counselor, bookkeeper, etc.

[0  Four-Year College Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - general major. Requires basic
knowledge or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as social work, professional accounting, finance,
business administration, and marketing.

[]  Specialized Degree from a schoot accredited by a recognized acerediting agency; includes additional PostGraduate courses
required to perform job.

[J Masters' Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

(‘ Other (Specify): Education requirements preferred.

Six months or less

O

QOver six months, up to and including one year.

<

[0  Overone year, up to and including two years.
[0  Overtwo years, up to and including four years.
[0  Overfour years, up to and including six years.
[0 Oversixyears.

Other {Specify):

Two years experience in human services field and work with children and families preferred.
Good written and verbal communication skills.
Good interpersonal skills.
CPR and First Aid certification required upon hire.
Ability to work as a team member.

Able to work flexible hours to meet families' schedules, including evenings and weekends.

| OTHER POSIHION REQUIREMENTS ~ CHECK 4

[J  This job requires a valid Hawail driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be contingent on
maintaining a clear driver's abstract.

~ tEJ  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an
( as-needed basis throughout the island.

X  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of parsonal vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island. .
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

r [d  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verification of licensure/certification will be required at time of appointment/hire, and continued employment is contingent on
maintaining licensure/certification.

This position is subject to a criminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPR, CP! and/or van driving training as
such training is necessary to ensure ability/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPl classes OR other Behavioral
Management cerification as may be contract-mandated.

oy a| O o! glo

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successtul completion of First Aid classes.

CREPORTSTO: . “oii: | oo

Program Director

E e Ao

No one.

Limited supervision, immediate supervisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much
of fime may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnel,

Immediate supervision over 3 to 15 employees. Responsible for selection, training and discipline.

General supervision of program/department over 5 to 25 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower level
supervisor(s). Full responsibility for selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

O O|gl Ox|

General supervision of program/department (>25 employees} usually through lower level supervisors. Full responsibility for
selectrng, training, and dtsmpllne - SUbjeCt only fo general pollcy or budget |ImllS

COMMUNICATION AND i ONTACTS

Requires only routine contact w:thln the unit or department.

Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/or provide client
services. Normal courtesy, tact and discretion required.

Regular contact with subordinates, other departiments, and persans and organizations outside the organization to supply or
seek information and reports. Requires use of tact and discretion. May present data and reports at mesting.

L__[IZIEE]

Requires contacts both inside and outside at all organizational levels. Requires considerable tact, discretion and persuasion
to obtain results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. Improper handling may affect operating
results and the delivery of client services.

O Inside and outside contacts involving difficult negotiations, related to a major division or function, development of networks
and development of teamwark Requwes weII developed sense of timing and strategy

Indicate the number of hours (from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be required to:

Msit 5 [K Stand 1 K walk 1 K Drive 1
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

The physical activities of this position involve: (Please indicate with an “X" all items that are essential functions of this posilion and
are performed in excess of levels required for ordinary movement.)

[C] Balancing * [X Crouching - [ Kneeling 1 Pulling Repetitive Movement
& Climbing [ Fingering [ Liiting [ Pushing [ Stooping

(fine motor tactility)

O Crawling [J Grasping Carrying [J Reaching

An individual in this position will be required to carry or lift weight in this range: (Please indicate with an X" only the heaviest weight
range that would be required when performing the essential functions of this position.) -

[T Up to 10 pounds 25 to 34 pounds {151 to 74 pounds [] Weight in excess of 100 pounds
[[1 11 to 24 pounds [J 35 to 50 pounds 175 to 100 pounds

The sensory and communicative activities include essential activities to the performance of this position: (Please indicate with an
"X" all that applies when performing this position.)

(3 Feeling < Hearing B Smelling [ Speaking [ Tasting
Seeing [ Ability to distinguish colors

An individual in this position will be exposed to: {Please indicate with an "X" all that applies when performing only the essential
functions of this position.)

[7] inside environmental conditions [0 Extreme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for more than
one hour at a time

] Outside envircnmental conditions [0 Extreme heat-temperature above 100 degrees for more than
‘ one hour at a time

B Inside and outside environmental conditions [0 Physical hazards (example: working near electrical current)

[ Constant vibrating motion E] Chemical hazards

Bloodborne pathogens [0 Solvents, sterilizing agents

(May be subject to infectious materials.}

O Respiratory hazards [1 Grease and oils

[0 Dust, fumes, smoke, gases [0 Electrical energy

[0 Radiant energy [0 Working around machinery, moving objects and/or vehicles

] Working with hands in water O Working on ladders and scaffolds

Other (Specify):

AGESOFCUBTSSERVED. | " © .. ."iis

This position requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s) indicated below:

1 Infant: Birth to 1 year B Chidren: 1-12years [ Adolescent: 13 -17 years
[0 Adult: 18- 64 years Family/Visitors [1 Geriatric; 65 years and above
Other (Specify):

All job requirements listed indicate the minimum level of knowledge, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to perform the

,0b proficiently. This job description is not to be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or

requirements. Employees will be required to perform any other job-related instructions given by their supervisor, subject to
reasonable accommodation(s).
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PART Ii: JOB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW (THIS SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES IN LENGTH.)

D
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS :I COMMENTS
8
JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS
Provides families in the program with referral and assistance in meeting goals for
family strengthening.
Provides home visiting services to families in the program to help them develop
Individual Family Support Plans.
Provides assistance to families who need help completing applications or other
processes for services in the community including housing, financial assistance,
child support, and other services needed.
Teaches and provides parents with information on child deveiopment; stress
management, financial planning, and parenting skills,
Encourages and facilitates parent involvement in class and committee activities.
Provides observations of the child in the home as a part of the child’s case record.
Assists families with children who have special needs in obtaining and
understanding enroliment in Department of Education programs and services.
Assists families in communicating concerns and suggestions for program
improvement.
Assists families in learning o become advocates for their children and promoting
educational values.
Maintains current, accurate and updated ciient files.
Performs other related duties as assigned.
PERFORMS OTHER RELATED DUTIES AS ASSIGNED
Page bof 5 Approved 11/05




Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

( 1 Anitial Employment Period Review {1 Non-Exempt Non-Barg Date of Evaluation:
1 Annual Exempt [0 Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED: 8/30/2004
[0 Other

“EMPLOYEE-RELCATED:SPECIFIC!

Employee Name: Position: _ Education Manager
Status: Hire Date:

Prog/Dept: _ Kauai Head Start Prog/Dept #:

Supervisor Name: Title: Program Administrator

This section introduces the mission, summarizes the position, and identifies the functional or competency requirements including skilis, experience, and
education or frainfng and licensure nacessary to ensure that employees are prepared to handle assigned responsibilities. The infermation is designed to
indicate the general nature and level of work performed by an employas In this position. Itis not to be interpreted as a comprehensive inventory for all
duties, responsibiliies, and qualifications of employees assigned to this job. Reasonable accommadation(s) will be made to enable qualified individuals
with disabiiities to perform the essential functions of this job.

This section utilizes the major responsibilities of the position as the basis for the evaluation. The performance standards are end results that can be
measured and result in successful performance of a major responsibility. These are reviewed pericdically to include the cessation of the inffial
employment period and upon annuat review.

This seclion reviews the previous plan and goals lo determing results; strengths and/or areas requiring improvement are summarized; meaningful goals
are identified and a new plan is developed.

This evaluation must ba signed by the employee and her/his immediate supervisor.

;DEEINITIONS. OF PERFORMANCE RATINGS:

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES) Employee cansistently exceeds the job responsibilities and performance factors and demonstrates
highly proficient job performance.

MEETS STANDARDS (MS) Performance is competent and meets the Job's requirements, Participates in making contributions
{o the depariment or program.

DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) Employee whose performance does not meet the expected performance level of the job's
requiremenis.

NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply to the position.

Initial Issue Date: Date Received:

Review evaluation and note perfermance concems evidenced on the following pages of this standard assessment. I applicable, ensure thata
resolution/action plan has been identified for each deiiciency noted. If any noted deficiency lacks a corresponding reselutionfaction plan, return to the

( asmployee's supervisor for completion.

Date Returned to Supervisor for Completion: Date Completed JDPE was Received
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

Strengthening families and fostering the healthy development of children.

WISSION STATENERT

Under the Supervision of the Program Administrator, the Head Start Education Manager is responsible for the implementation of the
Education and Early Childhood Development components of the Kauai Head Start Program, oversees the day-to-day functions of
all classroom sites, supports and enhances curriculum development and teacher training, supervises Head Teachers and Teacher's
Aides, and manages the data collection of child development program outcomes and performance measures, sets-up new sites.

Up to and including high school. Requires enough basic education to understand and follow standard practice or oral and
written instructions, able to read and write, use simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a
typewriter.

[0  High school, plus additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, or other formal training facility
or program. Reguires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Knowledge needed such as
stenography, office routines, elementary accounting procedures; operation of equipment such as bookkeeping and billing
machines, tabulating equipment, transcription machines.

[0  High school plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may fead o
licensing, (data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, certified
substance abuse counselor, bookkeeper, etc.

X  Four-Year College Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - general major. Requires basic
knowledge or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as social work, Early Childhood Ed., business
administration, and Family Resource

[0 Specialized Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediling agency; includes additional postgraduate courses
required to perform job,

[J  Masters' Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

Other (Specify): Bachelor's Degree in early childhood education, child development or related human services fieid.

| EXPERIENCE: =
[0 Sixmonths orless
O  ©ver six months, up to and including one year.
[1  Over one year, up to and including two years.
BJ  Overtwo years, up to and including four years.
O  Overfour years, up to and including six years.
[J Oversixyears.
Other {Specify):
SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES REGUTE

Must have experience in preschool classroom teaching and training in theory and practice of child development.

Must have experience working with program target population {families who are experiencing poverty and who are isolated from
community resources preferred).

Experience in supervising program operations and direct semvice staff,

Experience with and knowledge of community resources for children and families.

Ability to work with others and reach agreement.

CPR and First Ald certification required upon hire.

Good written and verbal communication skills.

“OTHER PO

Good organizational and administrative skills.

B  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be contingent on
maintaining a clear driver’s abstract.

X This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an
as-needed basis throughout the island.
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

) l This job requires a valid Hawali driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of personal vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

& This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to fransport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verification of licensure/certification will be required at time of appoiniment/hire, and continued employment is contingent on
maintaining licensure/certification.

pupn

4

This position is subject to a criminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPR, CPI and/or van driving training as
such training is necessary to ensure ability/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CP] classes OR other Behavioral
Management certification as may be contract-mandated.

gy Q3| 4

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successiul compietion of First Aid classes.

. REPORTS TO

Program Administrator

(SUPERVISES L T

No one.

Limited supervision, immediate supervisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much
of time may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnal.

0y O|O

Immediate supervision over 3 to 156 employees. Responsible for selection, training and discipline.

General supervision of program/department over 5 to 25 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower level
supervisor(s). Full responsibility for selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

X

General supervision of program/department (>25 employees) usually through lower level supervisors. Full responsibility for
selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

Cealn

Requires only routine contact within the unit or depariment.

Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/or provide client
services, Normal courtesy, tact and discretion required.

O] OO

Regular contact with subordinates, other depariments, and persons and organizations outside the organization to supply or
seek information and reports. Requires use of fact and discretion. May present data and reports at meeting.

Requires contacts both Inside and outside at all organizational levels. Bequires considerable tact, discretion and persuasion
to obtain results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. Improper handling may affect operating
results and the delivery of client services.

X

Inside and outside contacts involving difficult negotiations, related to a major division or function, development of networks
and development of tearwork, Requires well-developed sense of timing and strategy.

O

0

Indicate the number of hours (from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be required to:

MKsit a3 Bd stand 2 B Walk 1 B Drive 2
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PART |: POSITION SUMMARY

The physical activities of this position involve: (Pleass indicate with an 'X" all itemns that are essential functions of this position and
are performed in excess of levels required for ordlnary movement.)

< Balancing (X Crouching B Kneeling Pulling Repetitive Movement
] Climbing Fingering Lifting X Pushing Stooping

{fine motor tactitily)

Crawling Grasping Carrying Reaching

An individua! in this position wili be required to carry or lift weight in this range: (Please indicate thh an "X only the heaviest weight
range that would be required when periorming the essential functions of this position.)

O Up to 10 pounds [X] 25 to 34 pounds 1 51 to 74 pounds [ Weight in excess of 100 pounds

[3 11 to 24 pounds B 35 to 50 pounds [ 75 to 100 pounds

The sensory and communicative activities include essential activities to the performance of this position: (Please indicate with an
"X" all that applies when performing this position.}

[T Feeling ] Hearing Smelling X Speaking [ Tasting
Seeing 1 Ability to distinguish colors

An individual in this position will be exposed to: (Please indicate with an X" all that applies when performing only the essential
functions of this position.}

O Inside environmental conditions [T Exireme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for more than
one hour at a time

M Outside environmental conditions [0 Extreme heat-temperature above 100 degrees for more than
one hour at a fime

B Inside and outside environmental conditions O Physical hazards {example: working near electrical current)

[ Constant vibrating motion [1 Chemical hazards

Bloodbome pathogens Solvents, sterflizing agents

{May be subject to infectious materials.)

[0 Respiratory hazards [0 Grease and cils

[0 Dust, fumes, smoke, gases O Electrical energy

{7 Radiant energy [0 Working around machinery, moving objects and/or vehicles

<1  Working with hands in water ] Working on ladders and scaffolds

Other (Specify):

AGESOFCLIENTSSERVED .~ © .

This position requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s) indicated below;

[l infant: Birthto 1 year & Children: 1-12 years O Adolescent: 13-17 years

[l Adult: 18- 64 years L1 Family/Visitors [l Geriatric: 65 years and above
Other {Specify): This position specifically works with children in the age range from 3-5 years.

All job requirements listed indicate the minimum level of knowledge, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to perform the
. 1ob proficiently. This job description is not to be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or
requirements. Employees will be required to perform any other job-rglated instructions given by their supervisor, subject to
reasonable accommodation(s).

Page 4 of 5 Approved 11/05



PART li: JOB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW (THIS SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES IN LENGTH.)

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS

wa 20

m

COMMENTS

JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Responsible for all aspects of Early Childhood Education curriculum development
and implementation for the Kauai Head Start program in accordance with the ACF
Performance Standards for the areas of Early Childhood Education and Child
Development Services.

Education Manager will work colfaboratively with Head Start specialist and staff to
ensure high quality of care for children and families served.

Education Manager will supervise teaching staff and ensure that all classroom
volunteers receive appropriate training and oversight.

Education Manager will oversee daily center activities and schedules, lesson
planning, supplies, and coordination of Individual Education or Action Plans with the
Department of Education for participants as needed.

Select and maintain a core group of substitute teachers, teacher’s assistants and
classroom aides.

Establishment and start up of new centers as needed.

Work collaboratively with community resource persons in the area of Early
Childhood Education and Care and will be an active participant in the local chapter
of HAEYC and other relevant community groups.

Work with Head Teachers to establish annual training plans and individual training
goals for all center staff to ensure compliance with Child & Family Service standards
regarding staff credentials.

Works closely with the Kauai Administrator and Program Administrator, Head Start
Policy Council and appropriate staff to establish appropriate resources to implement
the Head Start Program

Meet with local resources, make recommendations for curriculum development,
classroom equiprment, and any other arrangements to begin set up appropriate
classroom communities

Will be responsible for compliance with all State Department of Human Service
Group Child Care Licensure standards and licensure renewals.

Provide training and implementation of the performance outcomes and the National
Reporting System

Performs other related dutfes as assigned

PERFORMS OTHER RELATED DUTIES AS ASSIGNED
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. Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

( 7  Initial Employment Period Review Non-Exempt X Non-Barg Date of Evaluation;
H Annual ] Exempt [ Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED:  8/30/2004
[0 Other

Employee Name: Position: _Head Teacher
Status: . Hire Date:

Prog/Dept: _ Kauai Head Start Prog/Dept #:

Supervisor Name: Title: Education Manager

£

This section introduces the mission, summarizes the position, and identifies the functional or competency requirements Including skills, experience, and
education or training and licensure necessary to ensure that employees are prepared to handle assigned responsibilities. The information is designed to
indicate the general nature and level of work performed by an employee in this position. Itis not to be interprated as a comprehensive inventory for all
duties, responsibilities, and qualifications of employess assigned to this jJob. Reasonable accommodation(s) will be made to enable qualitied individuals

with disabilities to perform the esseniial functions of this job.
[ ‘ ' JOBSPEGIEICPE

This section utllizes the major responsibilities of the position as the basis for the evaluation. The performance standards are end resulls that can be
measured and result in successiul performance of @ major responsibility. These are reviewed periodically to include the cessation of the initial
employment period and upon annual review.

R e BEVIEW:OF-PERFORMANCE: STANDARDS
( ¢his section is designated to evaluale performance on geheral behavioral expectations of all amployees.-
[t : DEVELOPMENT.AND/GOAL PL;

This section reviews the previous plan and goals to determine results; strengths and/or areas requiring improvement ara summarized; meaningful goals
are identified and a new plan is developed.

L {EPEREORMANGE REVIE
This optienal section allows employees an opportunity to comment on the review or about objectives, such as, commitments to development.
[ PART: Vi:: SIGNATURES

Wrds

Employee consistently exceeds the job responsibilities and performance factors and demonstrates

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES)

highly preficient job perfermance.

MEETS STANDARDS (MS) Performance is competent and meets the job's requirements. Participates in making contributions
to the depariment or program.

DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) Employee whose performance does not meet the expected performance level of the [ob's
requirements.

NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply to the position.

"L
X

Ljman.Ras

Initial Issue Date: Date Received:

Review evaluation and note performance concerns evidenced on the following pages of ihis standard assessment. If applicable, ensure that a
resolutionfaction plan has baen identified for each deficiency noted. If any noted deficiency lacks a corresponding reselution/action plan, return to the

( employese’s supervisor for completion.

Date Returned to Supervisor for Completion: Date Completed JDPE was Received
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

'MISSION STATEMENT

Strengthening families and fostenng the healthy development of cluldren

SUMMARY OF DUTIES

Under the supervision of the Educatlon Manager the Head Teacher is primarily responsible for planning and lmplemennng the dally
ctrriculum, managing and supervising all aspects of the Head Start Program for their classroom site.

[0 Upto and including high school. Requires enough basic education to understand and follow standard practice or oral and
written instructions, able to read and write, use simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a
typewriter.

[J  High school, plus additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, or other formal training facility
or program. Requires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Knowledge needed such as computer
skills necessary

1 High schoo! plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may lead to
licensing, {data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, certified
substance abuse counseler, bookkeeper, etc.

{1 Four-Year Coliege Degree from a schocl accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - general major. Requires basic
knowledge or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as social work, professional accounting, finance,

business administration, and marketing.

[0  Specialized Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency; includes additional postgraduate courses
required to perform job.

[0  Masters’ Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

Other (Specify):

Degree in Child Development or Eary Childhood Education from an accredited college or university and six months working
experience in an Early Childhood program;

Or Credential in Child Development Assoclate program or organized two-year college program (60 credits) and Certificate in Early
Childhood Education, plus one year supervised teaching experience in an Early Childhood program; Or Bachelor's degree
in Elementary Education from an accredited college or university plus six months working in an Early Childhood program,
plus six credit or equivalent approved Child Development of Early Childhood training courses (included as paii of
bachelors of arts or science degree);

Or Bacheler's degree in any field from an accredited college or university plus twelve credits or equivalent approved Child

Development ar Early Chlidhood tramlng courses (mcluded as part of bachelors of arts or smence degree)

ﬂfEXPERIENCE
O Sixmonths or Iess
Over six months, up to and including one year.
[J  Overone year, up to and including two vears.
| Over two years, up to and including four years.
1 Over four years, up to and including six years.
[0 Over six years.

Safety, challenging behaviors, curriculum, working with parents eic.

Other (Specify): On-going monthly in service training with topics focusing around but not limited to Child Development, Health &

,-{OTHEH :P'_SI 'VIO REQUIREMEN TS = CHECKALL

Must have excellent communication, organization, supervision and problem solving skills, flexibility, and willingness to work as a

team member.
Experience with children ages 3-5 and their families.
CPR and First Aid cerllflcatlon reqmred upon hlre

[X] This job requires a valid Hawali driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be confingent on
maintaining a clear driver’s abstract.
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

14 This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an

as-needed hasis throughout the island.

Y This job requires a valid Hawail driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of personal vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the istand.

This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to transport clients, as
heeded, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verification of licensure/certification will be required at time of appointment/hire, and continued employment is contingent on
maintaining licensure/certification.

This position is subject to a criminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions,

Continued employment in this pesition is contingent on successful completion of CPR, CP! and/or van driving training as
such training is necessary to ensure ability/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CP) classes OR other Behavioral
Management certification as may be contract-mandated.

O O O] ®| olgl o

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of First Aid classes,

_BEPORTSTO - ' - . ... .-

Education Manager

CSUPERVISES: * © ..
O Noone.
Limited supervision, immediate supervisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much

of time may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnel.

[1  Immediate supervision over 3 to 15 employees, Responsible for selection, training and discipline.

[0 General supervision of program/department over 5 to 25 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower leval
supervisor(s). Full responsibility for selecting, fraining, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

[0 General supervision of program/department (>25 employees) usually through lower level supervisors. Full responsibility for
selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

[J  Requires only routine contact within the unit or department.

Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/for provide client
services. Normal courtesy, tact and discretion required.

{J  Regular contact with subordinates, other departments, and persons and organizations outside the organization to supply or
seek information and reports. Reguires use of tact and discretion. May present data and reports at meeting.

[1  Requires contacts both inside and outside at all organizational levels. Requires considerable tact, discretion and persuasion
to obtain results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. Improper handling may affect operating
results and the delivery of client services.

[0 Inside and outside contacts involving difficult negotiations, related to a major division or function, development of networks

and development of teamwork. Requires well-developed sense of timing and strategy.

Indicate the number of hours (from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be required to:

Ksit 3 XK Stand 2 Rwak 2 X Drive 1
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

The physical activities of this position involve: (Please indicate with an *X" all items that are essential functions of this position and
are performed in excess of levels required for ordinary movement.)

Balancing B4 Crouching Kneeling [X Pulling Repetitive Movement
& Climbing Fingering B4 Lifting [ Pushing X Stooping

{fine motor tactility)
X Crawiing X Grasping Carrying X Reaching

An individual in this position will be required to carry or lift weight in this range: (Please indicate with an ‘X" only the heaviest weight
range that would be required when performing the essential functions of this position.)

[ Up to 10 pounds (125 to 34 pounds {_151 to 74 pounds [ Weight in excess of 100 pounds
[ 11 to 24 pounds 35 to 50 pounds 175 to 100 pounds

The sensory and commLmnicative activities inciude essential activities to the performance of this position: (Please indicate with an
“X" all that applies when performing this position.)

Feeling Hearing Smelling [ Speaking Tasting
K Seeing & Abiity to distinguish colors

An individual in this position will be exposed to: (Please indicate with an "X" all that applies when performing only the essential
functions of this position.)

[1 Inside environmental conditions [0 Exireme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for more than
one hour at a time

[J Outside environmental conditions [0 Exireme heat-temperature above 100 degrees for more than
one hour at a fime

Inside and outside environmental conditions [0 Physical hazards (example: working near electrical current)

[l Constant vibrating motion O Chemical hazards

B Bloodbome pathogens ] Solvents, sterilizing agents

(May be subject to infectious materials.)

[ Respiratory hazards [ Grease and oils

[J Dust, fumes, smoke, gases {1 Electrical energy

[0 Radiant energy (0 Working around machinery, moving objects andfor vehicles

K Working with hands in water [0 Working on ladders and scaffolds

Other {Specify): Valid driver's license, current no-fault insurance coverage, satisfactory driver's abstract and access to an insured
vehicle. The employee is regularly required to drive. The employee is required to use their personal vehicle unless the agency

vehicle is available. .

| AGES OF CLIENTS SERVED -

This position requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s) indicated below:

] Infant: Birthto 1 year Children: 1-12 years O Adolescent: 13 -17 years
O Adult: 18- 64 years 4 Family/Visitors [ Geratric: 65 years and above

Other (Specify): This position specifically works with children in the age range from 3-5 years.

All job requirements listed indicate the minimum level of knowledge, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to perform the

" job proficiently. This job description is not to be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or
requirerents. Employees will be required to perform any other job-related instructions given by their supervisor, subject to
reasonable accommodation(s).
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PART Il: JOB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW (THIS SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES IN LENGTH.)

|

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS

w =2 =20

COMMENTS

JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Establishes a nuriuring and challenging classroom environment for young children:
reaching both the individual child and the group.

Utilizes principles of child growth and development in all teaching curriculums
keeping the educational and emotional well being of the child and families priority.

Integrate children with special needs into group activities.

Develops lesson plans, maintains adequate student records, create developmentally
appropriate activities, and attend/arrange parent meetings.

Maintains formal and informal communications with parents regarding aspects for
their child's strengths, and needs

Maintains program safety standards and conduct safety drills as required.

Maintains hygienic classroom environment.

Maintains the Federal performance standards for classroom management and
curricuium,

Facilitates parents to link with community resources in coordination with the Family
Advocate.

Communicates with the staff on the special needs and individual goals for the
children enrolied.

Maintains client confidentiality af all times,

Performs other related duties as assigned.

Provides opportunities for parents to be involved in the program and extend their
learning by being their child's “first teacher”.

Design and sets-up classroom space that is appropriate and enriches the child’s
learning experience in relation to the curriculum.

Participates with Early Childhood agencies in local community events.

PERFORMS OTHER RELATED DUTIES AS ASSIGNED
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Child and Family Service
Job Description/Performance Evaluation (JDPE)

(_ 1 Initial Employment Period Review X Non-Exempt K Non-Barg Date of Evaluation:
J Annual 0O Exempt [J Bargaining JDPE REVISED/UPDATED: 08/30/2004
[} Other

TEMPLOYEE:RECATED SPECIEN

Employee Narme: Position: _ Classroom Aide
Status: Hire Date:

Prog/Dept:  Kauai Head Start Prog/Dept #:

Supervisor Name: Title: Education Manager

[
This section introduces the mission, summarizes the position, and identifies the functional or competency requirements including skills, experience, and
education or training and ficensure necessary to ensure that employees ars prepared to handle assigned responsibiliies. The information is designed to
indicate the general nature and level of work performed by an emplayee in this pesition. It is not fo be interpreted as a comprehensive inventory for alf
duties, responsibiiities, and gualifications of employses assigned to this job. Reasonable accommodation(s) will be made to enable qualified individuals

with disabilities to perform the essentfal functions of this job.
[ OB SPECIFIC.PEREORMANCE REVIEW:

This section utilizes the major responsibilities of the positlon as the basis for the evaluation. The performance standards are end resulls that can be
measured and result in successful performance of a major responsibility. These are reviewed periodically to include the cessation of the initial
employment period and upon annual review.

I 'PART NI REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE
( rhis section is designated to evaluate performance on general behavioral expectations of all employees.
[ : ‘DEVELORMENT:AND GOAL BUAN

This section reviews the previous plan and goals to determine results; strengths and/or areas requiring improvement are summarizad; meaningful goals
are idenfified and a new plan is developed.

[ EMPLOYEE COMMENTS.ONTHE PEREORMANCE REVIEW,
This optional seclion allows employees an opporiunity to comment on the review ar about objectives, such as, commitments to development.
This evaluation must be signed by the employee and her/his immediate supervisor,

L JEEINITIONS 'OF PEREORMANCE:RATING!

EXCEEDS STANDARDS (ES) - Employee consistently exceeds the job responsibilities and performance factors and demonstrates
highly proficient job performance.

MEETS STANDARDS (MS) Performance is competent and meets the job's requirements. Participates In making conirlbutions
to the depariment or program.

DOES NOT MEET STANDARDS (DNMS) Employee whose performance does not meet the expected performance level of the job's
requirements.

NOT APPLICABLE (NA) Standard does not apply to the position.
- This Area for Use'byHimatiResolre

Initial Issue Date: Date Received:

Review evaluation and note performance concems evidenced on the following pages of this standard assessment, If applicable, ensurs that a
resolutlonfaction plan has been identified for each deficiency noted. If any noted deficiency lacks a corresponding resolution/action plan, retum to the

( employee's supervisor for completion.

Date Returned to Supervisor for Completion: Date Completed JDPE was Received
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PARTI: POSITION SUMMARY

-1 MISSION STATEMENT o L
Strengthenmg fam;l:es and fostenng the healthy developmen: of children.

Under the direct supervision of the Education Manager and the Head Teacher, the Classroom Aide is primarily responsible to assist
the Head Teacher in developing a nurturing and challenging classroom environment. The Classroom Aide assists in planning and
implementing classroom activities as organized by the Teacher and performs daily classroom management and program

operations.

[<]  Uptoand including high school. Requires enough basic education to understand and follow standard practice or oral and
written instructions, able to read and write, use simple arithmetic, keep simple records, or use simple office machines like a
typewriter.

O  High school, plus additional courses or specialized training at business or community college, or other formal training facility
or program. Regquires ability to understand and carry out assigned duties effectively. Able to operate a fax and copy
machine, computer skills helpful.

[l High school plus additional training equal to 2 years of college, which requires knowledge of a specialized field or may lead to
licensing, (data processing, accounting, human services), or formalized apprenticeship program. For example, certified
substance abuse counselor, bookkeeper, etc.

[  Four-Year College Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency - genaral major. Requires basic
knowledge or training in a specialized or technical field or trade, such as sacial work, professional accounting, finance,

business administration, and marketing.

[1  Specialized Degree from a school accredited by a recognized acerediting agency; includes additional postgraduate courses
required to perform job.

[0 Masters' Degree from a school accredited by a recognized accrediting agency. Requires knowledge of an advanced type.

Other (Specify): High schoo! vocational childcare training course; or orientation training course in the center. On-going manthly in
service training's with topics focusing around but not limited to Child Development, curriculum, health & safety, special needs,

working with parents ete.

EXPERIENCE .~ ;.. .
B six months or Iess
i  Over six months, up to and including one year.
[0  Overone year, up to and including two years,
[l Overtwo years, up to and including four years.
[0  Overfouryears, up to and including six years.
[ Oversixyears.

Other (Spec:fy)

. SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND 3
One year's experience in a childcare settrng (home or center based) preferred
Good verbal and wiitten communication skills.

CPR and First Aid certificate required upon hire.

This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license and a clear driver's abstract and continued employment may be contingent on
maintaining a clear driver's abstract.

BJ  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an
as-needed basis throughout the island.

[0  This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of personal vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.
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PART I: POSITION SUMMARY

This job requires a valid Hawaii driver's license, a clear driver's abstract, and use of agency vehicle to transport clients, as
needed, as well as a willingness to travel in personal vehicle on an as-needed basis throughout the island.

The nature of this position requires the incumbent to be on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Verffication of licensure/certification will be required at time of appointment/hire, and continued employment is contingent on
maintaining licensure/certification.

This position is subject to a criminal background investigation and continued employment is contingent on a record clear of
convictions.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successful completion of CPR, CPI and/or van driving training as
such training is necessary 1o ensure abiiity/continued ability to perform essential functions of this job.

Continued employment in this position is contingent on successiul completion of CPIl classes OR other Behavioral
Management certification as may be contract-mandated.

O O 0 ®| olal o

Continued employment in this position is centingent on successful completion of First Aid classes.

“REPORTS TO.

Head Teacher & Educa’aon Manager

No one.

Limited supervision, immediate supervisor of one or two employees or directs small work group, assigns routine work, much
of time may be spent doing same work as members of group, limited responsibility for costs, methods, personnel,

Immediate supervision over 3 to 15 employees. Responsible for selection, training and discipline.

General supervision of program/department over 5 to 25 employees; possibly through the use of 1 or more lower level
supervisor(s). Full responsibility for selecting, training, and discipline - - subject only to general policy or budget limits.

0| Ojo| O/rjg

General supervision of program/department (>25 employess) usually through lower level supervisors. Full responsibility for

COMMUNICATION ANB CONTACTS

selecting, training, and dlsclpline .- sub]ect only to general pollcy or budget limits.

X

Requires only routine contact wnhrn the unit or department

Requires contacts both inside and outside the organization in order to furnish or obtain information and/or provide client
services. Normal courtesy, tact and discretion required.

Regular contact with subordinates, other departments, and persons and organizations outside the organization to supply or
seek information and reports. F{eqmres use of tact and discrefion. May present data and reports at meeting.

(|
O
a

Requires contacts both inside and outside at all organizational levels. Hequ:res considerable tact, discretion and persuasion
to obtain results. May present new methods, programs, and controversial issues. improper handling may affect operating

results and the delivery of client services,

Inside and outside contacts involving difficult negotiations, related to a major division or function, development of networks

and development of teamwork. Requires well-developed sense of timing and strategy.

Indicate the number of hours (from 1 hour to 8 hours) that employee would be required to:

Ksit _3 K Stand _2 Bwak 21 X Drive 1
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PART ). POSITION SUMMARY

The physical activities of this position involve: {Please indicate with an *X* all items that are essential functions of this position and
are performed in excess of levels required for ordinary movement.)

Balancing Crouching Kneeling Pulling Repetitive Movement
Climbing X Fingering & Lifting Pushing Stooping

(fine motor tactility)
Crawling Grasping Carrying X Reaching

An individual in this position will be required to carry or lift weight in this range: (Please indicate with an *X" only the heaviest weight
range that would be required when performing the essential functions of this position.)

[J Up to 10 pounds ] 25 to 34 pounds [ 51 to 74 pounds [0 weight in excess of 100 pounds

[ 11 to 24 pounds B4 a5 to 50 pounds [] 75 to 100 pounds

The sensory and communicative activities include essential activities to the performance of this position: {Please indicate with an
"X" all that applied when performing this position.)

X Feeling Hearing Smelling Speaking Tasting
Seeing Ability to distinguish colors

An individual in this position will be exposed to: (Please indicate with an "X" all that applied when performing only the essential
functions of this position.)

[0 Inside environmental conditions [[1 Extreme cold-temperature below 32 degrees for more than
one hour at a time

[0 Outside environmental conditions [0 Extreme heat-temperaturs above 100 degrees for more than
one hour at a time

X Inside and outside environmental conditions O Physical hazards (example: working near electrical current)

] Constant vibrating motion [0 cChemical hazards

& Bicodborne pathogens Solvents, sterilizing agents

{May be subject to infectious materials.)

[0 ARespiratory hazards O Greaseand oils

O Dbust, fumes, smoke, gases [0 Eleetrical energy

[0 Radiant energy O Working around machinery, moving cbjects and/or vehicles

Working with hands in water 1 Working on ladders and scaffolds

Other (Specify): Employee is required to have current no-fault insurance coverage, physical, annual TB and criminal history
check.

AGESOFCLIENTSSERVED - . . =~ .

This position requires knowledge in the care and handling of clients served in the age group(s) indicated below:

[ Infant: Birth to 1 year Children: 1 - 12 years [0 Adolescent: 13 -17 years
[0 Adult: 18 - 64 years 0O Family/Visitors [ Geriatric: 85 years and above

Other (Specify): This position specifically works with children in the age range from 3-5 years old.

All job requirements iisted indicate the minimum level of knowledge, skills, and/or ability deemed necessary to perform the
ob proficiently. This.job description is not to be construed as an exhaustive statement of duties, responsibilities, or

- requirements. Employees will be required to perform any other job-related instructions given by their supervisor, subject to
reasonable accommodation(s).

Page 4 0f 5 Approved 11/05



PART ll: JOB SPECIFIC PERFORIMANCE REVIEW (THIS SECTION MAY BE MULTIPLE PAGES iN LENGTH.)

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS

0w = Z20

M
S

COMMENTS

JOB DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Responsible nce, ation, USDA Meal documentation. Orders consumable and other
necessary supplies, does annual inventory on all classroom materials.

Assists with individua! direction of students who require assistance in any activity,

Assists managing small and large groups of children in classroom and outdoors play
areas. '

Some clerical duties such as copying, and computer knowledge

Help organize and clean classroom and supplies in accordance with Federal
program guidelines and the procedures specified by the Health Services Advisory
Committee and the Health Specialist.

Attends all training specified by the Education Manager and develops a training plan
to be pursued annually. Training will emphasize development of job skills enabling
the Classroom Aide to advance toward the role of Assistant Teacher. Classroom
Aide is encouraged to participate in continuing education opportunities to enhance
skills and pursue training in child development practices.

Participates and preps in daily classroom activities. Does dajly observation and FEIL
notes.

Performs other related duties as assigned.

Works as a team with the Head Teacher in daily lessons and services to children.

PERFORMS OTHER RELATED DUTIES AS ASSIGNED
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Applicant: Child and Family Service

Attachment 11
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Applicant: Child and Family Service
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PRESIDENT AND CEb
Richard Kiarberg

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Chair
Neil P. Newstein

Lawrence M. Abramson
Martha Brown

Sister Ann Patrick Conrad
Samuel W, Croll, III
Michael H. Danjczek
Alan Davis

Beverly F. Grant
Consevella James
James M. Karet
Christopher Leung

P> 1. Lyons

1 E. McNamara
Jean Mirabella

Timothy F. Noelker
Sharon Osborne
Michael J. Rieder
Hilda Shirk

Samuel M, Sipes

Alvin Snyder

Clarence Wood

SPONSORING ORGANIZATIONS

Alliance for Children
and Families
Association of Jewish Family
and Children’s Agencies
Catholic Charities USA
Child Welfare League
of America
Foster Family-Based
Treatment Association
Lutheran Services in America
National Council For Adoption
National Foundation for
Credit Counselin
National Network for Youth
Prevent Child Abuse America
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CREDIBILITY . INTEGRITY . ACHIEVEMENT
June 20, 2006

Howard Garval -
President/CEO

Child and Family Service

91-1841 Fort Weaver Road
Ewa Beach, HI 56782

Dear Mr. Garval:

It is with great pleasure that we inform you that the Council on Accreditation (COA) has aﬁproved the
reaccreditation of Child and Family Service. This recognition of Child and Family Service as a provider of
services of high quality is effective through December 31, 2609 and includes the foliowing programs:

Counseling Services

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) Services

Case Mapagement Services

Substante Abuse Services

Shelter Services

Crisis Intervention Services; Emergency Telephone Response Services; Information and
Referral

Services

Domestic Violence Counseling; Rape Crisis and/or Battered Women’s Services; Szfe Homes
Intercountry Adoption Services

Home Visitor Services

In-Home Support Services-

Family-Centered Casework; Intensive Family Preservation

Foster and Kinship Care Services

Supported Coemmunity Living Services

Group Living Services

Residential Treatment Services

Employment and Vocational Services

Child Care Services

Prevention and Support Services

YVVVVVVVVYVVYVVYY YYVVYY

Included with this letter, for your use in promoting the agency’s success, is a sample news release prepared by
COA. In addition a plaque attesting to your agency’s accredited status will be sent to you shortly.

COA’s program of quality assurance is designed to identify those providers that have set for themselves high
standards for performance, and have made a commitment to their constituents to enhance the effectiveness of
the service they deliver. COA is proud to once again welcomne Child and Family Service to the Community
of Excellence, that unique group of providers that meets the highest standards for professional performance.
‘We are proud to be associated with you and your colleagues. We wish you the very best in your continuing

service to persons in your community.

Sincerely,

Richard Klarberg

President and Chief Executive Officer

RK:cl

cc: Peter Goldberg, President/CEQ, ACF
Shay Bilchick, President/CEO, CWLA

COUNCIL ON ACCREDITATION

120 Wall Street, 11* Floor, New York, NY 10005 * tel: 212.797.3000 fax: 212.797.1428 www.coanet.org



